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2015 2014 2013 2011
) 202,302 166,525 133,118 113,818 96,666
(3,329,801)  (2,741,002)  (2,191,122)  (1,873,444)  (1,591,122)
75,079 73,431 68,425 59,558 47,122
(1,235,800)  (1,208,674)  (1,126,276) (980,325) (775,628)
57,696 55,911 51,743 45,268 36,129
(949,676) (920,295) (851,690) (745,111) (594,683)
25,220 25,220 25,220 21,577 21,577
(415,121) (415,121) (415,121) (355,157) (355,157)
360,806 314,404 265,465 200,328 165,010
(5,938,867)  (5,175,090)  (4,369,554)  (3,297,399)  (2,716,065)
5,474,978 4,731,829 4,016,399 3,408,099 2,794,971
(90,118,138)  (77,885,905)  (66,109,928)  (56,097,310)  (46,005,223)
0.69 0.67 0.62 0.63 0.42
(11) (11) (10) (10) )
- 2.29 2.22 2.30 2.10 1.67
(38) €9 (38) (3%) @n
- 2.29 2.22 2.30 2.10 1.67
(38) €9 (38) (3%) @n
400,420 272,173 119,153 264,633 111,781
(6,590,913)  (4,479,968)  (1,961,258)  (4,355,859)  (1,839,915)
(371,603) (175,979) (231,669) (34,209) (59,353)
(-6,116,585)  (-2,896,614)  (-3,813,272) (-563,080) (-976,950)
124,885 21,879 11,012 18,447 1,460
(2,055,607) (360,128) (181,258) (303,638) (24,032)
12 31 635,843 471,471 349,949 452,855 219,151
(10,465,976)  (7,760,413)  (5,760,161)  (7,453,993)  (3,607,225)
76,192 75,109 68,078 59,340 45,344
% 1.13 1.28 1.39 1.46 1.39
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100% 1987 31
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1999 4.2 1994
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2008 10
2009 15 WLB WLB WLB 2009 16
CSRC 2010
2010 11 2,007,240,869
2010 19 CSRC
2010 449,878,000 2010
CSRC 2013
2013 2,962,813,544
2013 11
CSRC 2013 680,423,172
2013 10
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3) WLB 2008 2009
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4) 2012 CMFM 21.6%
ING B.V.  63,567,567.57 CMFM
2013 33.4%  55.0% CMFM
CMFM 2013 11 28
) CIGNA CMB 50.00%
INA CIGNA CMB
50.00% CIGNA CMB
INA CIGNA CMB
(6) WLB 14.29% 13.33%
') WLB WLB
20.00% 2.88%
(8) WLB CUNC
MUCFC CBRC 2015
MUCFC WLB CUNC  MUCFC 50.00%
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2015
2015 136.729 65.573
16.66% 32.95%
57.696 3.19%
ROAA ROAE 1.13% 17.09%
0.15 2.19
2015 5,474.978
15.71% 2,824.286 12.35%
5,113.220 15.77% 3,571.698 8.09%
2015 19.493
47.410 1.68% 0.57
178.95% 54.47
2014
2015

136,729 117,202

53,419 39,494

12,018 9,671

(67,670) (61,081)

(287) (332)

2 2

134 156

(59, 266) (31,681)

75,079 73,431

(17,061) (17,382)

58,018 56,049

57,696 55,911
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2015 2013 2012 2011
67.59 70.38 74.30 77.65 78.94
26.40 23.72 21.92 17.34 16.17
5.94 5.81 3.71 4.96 4.83
0.07 0.09 0.07 0.05 0.06
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2014
2015
QD) D)

2,691,458 159,885 5.94 2,400,646 150,929 6.29

1,174,151 48,175 4.10 873,418 37,749 4.32

604,403 8,598 1.42 563,026 8,318 1.48

498,585 18,064 3.62 603,612 31,040 5.14

4,968,597 234,722 4.72 4,440,702 228,036 5.14

%
2015 2014
Q) D)

3,350,298 60,448 1.80 3,056,634 64,102 2.10

1,050,196 29,339 2.79 960,520 42,669 4.44

171,336 7,150 4.17 92,385 3,921 4.24

30,612 1,056 3.45 4,000 142 3.55

4,602,442 97,993 2.13 4,113,539 110,834 2.69

/ 136,729 / / 117,202 /

/ / 2.59 / / 2.45

/ / 2.75 / / 2.64

2015 4.72%
2.13% 42 56
2015
11 14

2.75% 2.59%
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2,709,322 40,190 5.89 2,821,656 38,983 5.48
1,293,552 12,852 3.94 1,259,927 12,074 3.80
640,596 2,218 1.37 578,060 2,047 1.40
514,153 3,278 2.53 433,144 4,721 4.32
5,157,623 58,538 4.50 5,092,787 57,825 4.50

2015 2015 10 12
Q) (%)
3,473,271 14,859 1.70 3,400,699 13,413 1.56
1,150,982 6,590 2.27 1,010,954 6,367 2.50
154,120 1,796 4.62 232,183 2,095 3.58
27,804 238 3.40 44,677 380 3.37
4,806,177 23,483 1.94 4,688,513 22,255 1.88
/ 35,055 / / 35,570 /
/ / 2.56 / / 2.62
/ / 2.70 / / 2.77

2015 2.62% 2015
2015 4.50%
2015 1.88%
2015 2015

2.77%
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%
2015 2014
Q) D)
1,483,592 76,943 5.19 1,448,378 82,168 5.67
1,087,562 78,076 7.18 860,497 63,630 7.39
120,304 4,866 4.04 91,772 5,131 5.59
2,691,458 159,885 5.94 2,400,646 150,929 6.29
2015 1,317.558 87.863
6.67% 1,140.707 64.167
5.63%
2015 27.62% 48.175
0.22 4.10%
2015 41.80% 18.064
1.52
3.62%

2015 97.993 11.59%
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0.30
%
2015 2014
() (%)
1,027,006 6,965 0.68 864,524 6,186 0.72
1,211,447 39,038 3.22 1,169,137 41,381 3.54
2,238,453 46,003 2.06 2,033,661 47,567 2.34
711,460 2,971 0.42 588,039 2,799 0.48
400,385 11,474 2.87 434,934 13,736 3.16
1,111,845 14,445 1.30 1,022,973 16,535 1.62
3,350,298 60,448 1.80 3,056,634 64,102 2.10
2015 29.339
31.24%
2015 82.35% 7.150
2015 65.573 16.250
32.95% 50.81% 26.780
40.84%
1.99% 16.235 24.76%
55.66% 14.982 22.85%

40.95% 7.576 11.55%
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57,798 43,341
(4,379) (3,847)
53,419 39,494
12,154 9,829
65,573 49,323

2015 35. 26% 53.419
2014

2015

57,798 43,341

9,562 7,692

3,799 4,116
13,681 7,017

4,215 4,204
18,644 13,033

7,897 7,279
(4,379) (3,847)
53,419 39,494

POS 1.870 24.31%
317 7.70%
6.664
94.97%
11 0.26%
5.611 43.05%
42.75%
8.913
618 8.49%
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2,398 2,467
3,073 1,618
/ (118) (359)
/ 611 (145)
4 21
534 476
4,519 4,238
498 475
188 539
311 341
12,018 9,671
2015 10.79% 67.670
2.87 27 .55%
7.59%
12.51% 15.59% 14.72%

2015 6.69% 4.133
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1,002 35
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
) )
2,824,286 51.59 2,513,919 53.13
(84,842) (1.55) (65,165) (1.38)
2,739,444 50.04 2,448,754 51.75
1,438,017 26.27 996,217 21.05
600,441 10.97 670,007 14.16
63,779 1.16 55,986 1.18
529,617 9.67 469,065 9.91
24,934 0.46 23,560 0.50
2,786 0.05 1,484 0.03
31,835 0.58 27,445 0.58
1,708 0.03 1,684 0.04
3,595 0.07 3,292 0.07
16,020 0.29 10,291 0.22
9,954 0.18 9,953 0.21
12,848 0.23 14,001 0.30
5,474,978 100.00 4,731,829 100.00
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51.59% 1.54
%
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
Q) D)
1,507,770 53.39 1,467,585 58.38
89,815 3.18 75,007 2.98
1,226,701 43.43 971,327 38.64
2,824,286 100.00 2,513,919 100.00
2015 12 31 2.74% 1,507.770
53.39%% 4.99
2015
2015 12 31 19.74% 89.815
2015 12 31 1,226.701 26.29%
43.43% 4.79 2015
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50,809 3.53 33,022 3.31
8,272 0.57 7.168 0.72
10,176 0.71 9,315 0.94
299,559 20.83 278,526 27.96
353,137 24.56 259,434 26.04
716,064 49.80 408,752 41.03
1,438,017 100.00 996,217 100.00
2015 12 31 53.86% 50.809
2015
2014
2014 12 31
2015 12 31
17,543 5,351
9,622 6,165
5,860 6,458
) 17,784 15,048

50,809 33,022
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304 299
3,874 3,970
655 766
3,439 2,133
8,272 7,168
2015 12 31 7.55% 299.559
2015
MLF PSL
2014
2014 12 31
2015 12 31
94,429 77,265
PBOC 94 99
68,822 91,223
66,235 34,190
66,728 73,828
2,906 2,215
1,012 317
300,226 279,137
(667) (611)
299,559 278,526
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747 594
11,154 21,229
20,389 21,335
78,067 111,636
101,702 86,836
58,615 40,450
48,198 56,330
- 402
143,351 24,557
254,858 45,451
717,081 408,820
(1,017) (68)
716,064 408,752
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
/
352,615 372,158 256,074 261,326
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USY39656AA40 50,000 N/A 53,015 23.85 1,332
XS1257592037 34,000 N/A 34,720 15.62 720
00388.HK 4,830 1,003,512 199,097 11.56 -
XS$1328130197 25,000 N/A 25,189 11.33 189
WLGF 11 V 127,000 127,000 126,583 8.67 -
Vv 2,049 217,444 15,682 7.06 -
03988.HK 46,932 15,182,000 52,530 3.05 -
01288.HK 32,323 10,000,000 31,600 1.83 -
MA - 38,400 3,741 1.68 -
00941 .HK 24,726 319,500 27,940 1.62 -
202,912 N/A 220,548 12.82 21,478
2,500 N/A 2,013 0.91 -
) 10
Q) 10
2015 12 31 7.454 4.242
3.212 WLB
2015 12 31
46.17% 13.48% 15.22%
25.13% 92
470,000
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WLB 32,081,937 100.00 231,028,792 30,313,858 2,404,037 3,214,831
CMBICHC 855,545 100.00 1,000,000,000 855,545 290,306 217,146
CMBFLC 6,000,000 100.00 N/A 6,000,000 1,549,897 1,723,195
CMFM 708,193 55.00 115,500,000 882,274 383,184 716,899
CIGNA  CMB 646,443 50.00 725,000,000 1,391,417 148,543 351,658
1,000,000 50.00 1,000,000,000 995,000 (5,000) -
306,671 10.00 180,000,000 345,708 120,600 -
155,000 3.75 110,000,000 155,000 5,500 -
EPS HK$8,400 2.10 2 HK$8,400 HK$1,950 -
189,620 3.77 99,800,000 149,700 - -
HK$20,000 13.33 20,000,000  HK$71,149 HK$21,474 HK$(23)
HK$2,000 20.00 20,000 HK$8,502 HK$792 -
HK$70,000 16.67 70,000,000 HK$130,062 HK$6,389  HK$30,007
HK$21,000 21.00 42,000,000  HK$82,851 HK$5,025 HK$15,344
HK$810 27.00 810,000 HK$3,875 HK$1,222 HK$(78)
HK$3,000 50.00 3,000,000 HK$2,922 HK$45 -
HK$136 0.35 136,000 HK$136 - -
HK$4,023 7.83 100,000  HK$11,254 - -
6,000 6.00 60,000 6,000 - -
HK$570 3.00 N/A - - -

@
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
1,195,623 839 (538) 360,545 420 (629)
1,141,846 9,332  (7,035) 1,020,501 8,879  (9,615)
217 5 O} 1,039 16 )
2,337,686 10,176  (7,575) 1,382,085 9,315  (10,246)
2015
2015
2015 WLB CMFM
2015 12 31 579

9.954
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2015 12 31 5,113.220 15.77%

%

2015 12 31 2014 12 31
(%) D)
3,571,698 69.85 3,304,438 74.82
711,561 13.92 697,448 15.79
62,600 1.22 20,000 0.45
178,771 3.50 94,603 2.14
20,227 0.39 13,369 0.30
7,575 0.15 10,246 0.23
185,652 3.63 66,988 1.52
6,524 0.13 6,068 0.14
12,820 0.25 11,656 0.26
39,073 0.76 45,349 1.03
251,507 4.92 106,155 2.40
867 0.02 771 0.02
64,345 1.26 39,678 0.90

5,113,220 100.00 4,416,769 100.00
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ooooooo
2015 12 31 3,571.698 8.09%
69.85%
%
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
) %)
1,167,467 32.69 973,646 29.46
1,194,064 33.43 1,237,765 37.46
2,361,531 66.12 2,211,411 66.92
835,062 23.38 644,836 19.52
375,105 10.50 448,191 13.56
1,210,167 33.88 1,093,027 33.08
3,571,698 100.00 3,304,438 100.00
2015 12 31 — 56.07% 7.09
49.44% 5.41
69.00%

10.00
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
25,220 25,220
67,523 67,523
6,188 1,902
241 (163)
34,009 28,690
64,679 53,979
145,887 121,665
17,402 16,897
(343) (1,309)
360,806 314,404
952 656
361,758 315,060
2015 12 PBOC
2015
(D)

6.79 1

6.28 1

6.59 2

15.11 1

2015 PBOC

2015

PBOC
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2015 12
12.35% 0.57
178.95%
0.41
%
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
QD)
2,703,082 2,439,368 97.03
73,794 46,634 1.86
31,233 17,343 0.69
11,050 7,580 0.30
5,127 2,994 0.12
2,824,286 2,513,919 100.00
47,410 27,917 1.11
2015
69.82%
0.42 1.11% 2015

58/406
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%
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
) D ) ) D )
1,507,770 53.39 34,333 2.28 1,467,585 58.38 20,466 1.39
768,942 27.23 19,220 2.50 762,925 30.35 12,574 1.65
370,599 13.12 3,810 1.03 350,416 13.94 1,324 0.38
219,706 7.78 3,406 1.55 231,298 9.20 2,106 0.91
(@) 148,523 5.26 7,897 5.32 122,946 4.89 4,462 3.63
3) 89,815 3.18 - - 75,007 2.98 - -
1,226,701 43.43 13,077 1.07 971,327 38.64 7,451 0.77
310,777 11.00 4,744 1.53 338,813 13.48 3,612 1.07
499,455 17.69 2,258 0.45 329,178 13.09 871 0.26
313,244 11.09 4,296 1.37 219,888 8.75 2,069 0.94
O] 103,225 3.65 1,779 1.72 83,448 3.32 899 1.08
2,824,286 100.00 47,410 1.68 2,513,919 100.00 27,917 1.11
)
0) MEA
@)
)
2015
4.79 43.43%
1.07% 0.30
M&A
2015 4.99
2015 0.89

2.28%
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%
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
) D ) ) D )
1,507,770 53.39 34,333 2.28 1,467,585 58.38 20,466 1.39
332,147 11.77 15,238 4.59 360,270 14.33 9,628 2.67
251,373 8.90 10,279 4.09 301,395 11.99 6,547 2.17
213,080 7.54 1,174 0.55 179,983 7.16 460 0.26
159,349 5.64 1,387 0.87 148,473 5.91 741 0.50
101,270 3.59 772 0.76 102,314 4.07 396 0.39
112,337 3.98 78 0.07 101,064 4.02 - -
58,308 2.06 3,923 6.73 64,960 2.58 1,629 2.51
84,240 2.98 186 0.22 52,152 2.07 110 0.21
33,531 1.19 125 0.37 30,421 1.21 150 0.49
30,101 1.07 134 0.45 22,313 0.89 55 0.25
IT
(@) 132,034 4.67 1,037 0.79 104,240 4.15 750 0.72
89,815 3.18 - - 75,007 2.98 - -
1,226,701 43.43 13,077 1.07 971,327 38.64 7,451 0.77
2,824,286 100.00 47,410 1.68 2,513,919 100.00 27,917 1.11

€))
@

2015

2015 84%
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%
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
) O ) O
381,327 13.50 4,790 1.26 290,911 11.57 2,658 0.91
539,925 19.12 10,733 1.99 479,535 19.07 9,895 2.06
368,137 13.03 4,274 1.16 344,987 13.72 2,675 0.78
463,440 16.41 5,071 1.09 385,848 15.35 3,675 0.95
140,913 4.99 3,012 2.14 128,884 5.13 1,823 1.41
292,361 10.35 9,956 3.41 263,511 10.48 4,331 1.64
345,113 12.22 8,862 2.57 322,046 12.81 2,409 0.75
57,773 2.05 - - 69,523 2.77 - -
235,297 8.33 712 0.30 228,674 9.10 451 0.20
2,824,286 100.00 47,410 1.68 2,513,919 100.00 27,917 1.11
[6))
2015
2015
2015 62%
%
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
) @ ) @
671,321 23.77 7,999 1.19 544,936 21.68 3,000 0.55
444,698 15.75 19,587 4.40 450,713 17.93 11,077 2.46
1,241,633 43.96 16,250 1.31 1,059,962 42.16 12,651 1.19
376,819 13.34 3,574 0.95 383,301 15.25 1,189 0.31
89,815 3.18 - - 75,007 2.98 - -
2,824,286 100.00 47,410 1.68 2,513,919 100.00 27,917 1.11
1))
2015 1.80

2.09

61/406



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O00O(E05986)

oOoOooodn
10
%
(
)
2015 12 31
(%) D)
8,400 2.08 0.30
6,585 1.63 0.23
5,534 1.37 0.20
4,644 1.15 0.16
4,572 1.13 0.16
4,000 0.99 0.14
3,940 0.98 0.14
3,934 0.98 0.14
IT 3,570 0.89 0.13
3,502 0.87 0.12
48,681 12.07 1.72
2015 12 31 8.400
2.08% 10 48.681 12.07%
1.72%
%
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
(%) D)
35,396 1.25 27,480 1.09
32,247 1.14 19,542 0.78
11,847 0.42 4,751 0.19
878 0.03 931 0.04
80,368 2.84 52,704 2.10
2,824,286 100.00 2,513,919 100.00
2015 80.368 27.664
0.74 2.84%
46.17% 33.36% 20.47%
90
1.05
%
2015 12 31 2014 12 31

(%) (%)
4,531 0.16 996 0.04

90 2,506 0.09 534 0.02
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2015
0.12 0.16%
2015 12 31 1,672 981
691
2015 2014
65,165 48,764
59,486 32,895
(1,979) (1,641)
() (1,137) (655)
1,464 651
(38,383) (14,917)
226 68
84,842 65,165
2015 12 31
84.842 19.677 178.95%
54.47 3.00% 0.41
2015 12 31 Tier 1 12.57%
10.83% 0.66
t
2015 12 31 2014 12 31

(%)

63/406



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

ooooooo
@
1 Tier 1 347,434 301,977 15.05
2 Tier 1 347,444 301,982 15.05
3 403,409 358,334 12.58
4 3,009,265 2,748,687 9.48
@
2,657,383 2,471,180 7.53

36,972 22,610 63.52

314,910 254,897 23.54
5 3,208,152 2,893,732 10.87
6 Tier 1 10.83% 10.44% 0.39
7 Tier 1 10.83% 10.44% 0.39
8 12.57% 12.38% 0.19

(€))
9 6,275,592
10 5.54% 4.96% 0.58
(€)) 2012 CBRC
Tier 1
Tier 1
2015 12 31
WLB CMBICHC CMBFLC CMFM
@
95% 90% 80%
(3)2015 2015 12 CBRC
2015
5.55% 5.26% 5.51% 2014
2011 CBRC
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2015 12 31 Tier 1 12.15%
10.38% 0.69 0.94
%
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
D)
1 Tier 1 307,888 268,845 14.52
2 Tier 1 307,888 268,845 14.52
3 360,460 320,740 12.38
4 2,765,712 2,546,291 8.62
2,436,307 2,285,300 6.61
31,699 19,123 65.76
297,706 241,868 23.09
5 2,966,543 2,687,891 10.37
6 Tier 1 10.38% 10.00% 0.38
7 Tier 1 10.38% 10.00% 0.38
8 12.15% 11.93% 0.22
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2015 12 31 Tier 1 11.91%
9.93% 0.17 0.33
%
2015 2014
12 31 12 31 )
@

1 Tier 1 347,434 301,977 15.05
2 Tier 1 347,444 301,982 15.05
3 416,834 369,532 12.80
4 3,499,231 3,146,571 11.21
5 Tier 1 9.93% 9.60%  0.33
6 Tier 1 9.93% 9.60%  0.33
7 11.91% 11.74%  0.17
6)) CBRC 2012
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2015 12 31 Tier 1 11.46% 9.44%
0.19 0.32
%
2015 2014
12 31 12 31 %)
1 Tier 1 307,888 268,845 14.52
2 Tier 1 307,888 268,845 14.52
3 373,886 331,937 12.64
4 3,261,357 2,946,283 10.69
5 Tier 1 9.44% 9.12% 0.32
Tier 1 9.44% 9.12% 0.32
11.46% 11.27% 0.19
2015 IRB
IRB 576,858 576,858
1,577,865 1,577,865
1,443,562 1,443,562
491,748 491,748
561,704 561,704
390,110 390,110
IRB 2,426,490 2,722,954
158,050 166,857

7,350 8,927
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2015
2.96 36.97
760
250 99%
2015
1. 301 243
2. 815 347
3. 109 109
4. 671 234
o
2015 2014
() ()
12,508 16.66 30,798 41.94
34,792 46.34 29,105 39.64
22,983 30.61 16,199 22.06
4,796 6.39 (2,671) (3.64)
75,079 100.00 73,431 100.00
2015
34.792 46.34% 6.70

35.72%
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%
2015 12 31 2015 12 31 2015

% % %
2,105,486 38 1,808,257 35 31,968 42
762,902 14 761,795 15 3,572 5
511,402 9 503,469 10 11,163 15
607,634 11 597,665 12 13,218 18
201,537 4 199,294 4 2,990 4
385,401 7 382,889 7 3,683 5
421,469 8 422,455 8 431 1
142,219 3 140,900 3 1,791 2
336,928 6 296,496 6 6,263 8
5,474,978 100 5,113,220 100 75,079 100

%
2014 12 31 2014 12 31 2014

% % %
1,863,145 39 1,629,954 37 1,998 3
590,741 12 586,447 13 10,514 15
425,612 9 414,438 9 14,922 20
527,907 11 515,926 12 15,988 22
173,827 4 170,945 4 3,865 5
333,656 7 328,146 8 7,510 10
378,606 8 370,196 8 11,212 15
126,892 3 121,176 3 2,077 3
311,443 7 279,541 6 5,345 7
4,731,829 100 4,416,769 100 73,431 100

2015 2014 272,173 400,420

2015 2014 175,979
371,603 2015 2014
21,879 124,885

2015 12 31 635,843 2014 12 31 164,372
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25

25
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@
2015 12 31
@ @
25,219,845,601 (2)
@
0} 20,628,944,429 4,590,901,172
2015 12 31
1.00 25,219,845,601

@
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(€))
2010 12 31 17,666,130, 885 17,666,130, 885
290,785
2011 12 31 17,666,130, 885 17,666,130,885
290,785
2012 12 31 17,666,130, 885 17,666,130,885
290,785
2013 2,962,813,544 2,962,813,544 6))
48,768
2013 12 31 20,628,944,429 20,628,944,429
339,552
2014 12 31 20,628,944,429 20,628,944,429
339,552
2015 12 31 20,628,944,429 20,628,944,429
339,552
@ 10 1.74
2010 12 31 3,910,478,000 3,910,478,000
64,366
2011 12 31 3,910,478,000 3,910,478,000
64,366
2012 12 31 3,910,478,000 3,910,478,000
64,366
2013 30 680,423,172 680,423,172 @
11,200
2013 12 31 4,590,901,172 4,590,901,172
75,566
2014 12 31 4,590,901,172 4,590,901,172
75,566
2015 12 31 4,590,901,172 4,590,901,172
75,566
@ 10 1.74
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O)
2015 12 31 266,723 37,967
228,756
®)
2015 12 31 10
D))
HKSCC 538,723,917 (1) 18.00
©) 199
3,289,470,337 (2) 13.04
168-200
40-39
2,704,596,216 (2) 10.72
55
1,574,729,111 (2) 6.24
158
1128
1,258,542,349 (2) 4.99
944,013,171 (2) 3.74
923,853,653 (2) 3.66
32A
696,450,214 (2) 2.76
308
598,434,742 (2) 2.37
28
450,164,945 (2) 1.78
88
16,978,978,655 67.32
€Y}
@
(3)HKSCC HKSCC
[O)) 10
2015 12 31
29.97%

2016 18

73/406



2014
2015

10

10

50%

10%

6.90

6.70

46
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2002 2006 22
(¢))
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
15.03 13.75 14.78 16.59 21.13
247 226 243 273 348
10.90 9.58 10.15 9.46 13.91
179 158 167 156 229
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
21.80 17.10 18.84 19.88 2560
302 237 261 275 354
9.94 9.51 12.2420® 12.22 16.90
138 132 169 169 234
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@

2015 2015 2015 2015 10 2015 11 2015 12
20.21 18.62 18.35 18.69 19.08 18.33
333 306 302 308 314 302
16.70 14.71 16.16 17.73 17.04 16.92
275 242 266 292 280 279

2015 2015 2015 2015 10 2015 11 2015 12
22.65 21.75 19.62 20.85 21.35 18.70
313 301 272 289 295 259
19.30 16.90 17.52 18.82 18.22 17.36
267 234 242 260 252 240

@

¢
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2016 20 30
14.29%

2016 20
2016
20
(L1 Jianhong)
1956
2014
2014
(MA Zehua)
(1953 ) 2014
2014
12
1990 2016
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(L1 Xiaopeng)

1959 2014 11 2015 11
1CBC
(TIAN Huiyu)
1965 12
1998
2003
2003
2006 12
2006 12 2011
2011 2013
2013
2013
(LI Yinquan) FINAFRICA
1955
2001

12
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(SUN Yueying) 2001
1958
(L1 Hao)
1959 1997
2000
2002
2001 12
2007
2007
2013
CMFM
FU Gangfeng
1966 12 2010

HONG Xiaoyuan
1963

2007
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(SU Min)
1968
2014
(LEUNG Kam Chung,
Antony)
1952
2015

JP

80/406



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O00O(E05986)
ooooodn

(WONG Kwai Lam)
1949

2011
IncitAdv
REIT
(PAN Chengwei)
1946 2012
PAN Yingli
1955
2011 11
2005 11
1998 2007
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2003
(GUO Xuemeng)
1966
2012
2001
2012 11
(ZHAQ Jun)
1962
2015
2016
20
2014
LIU Yuan
1962
1984 1991 10 PBOC
1991
10 1994
1994 2003
PBOC
2003 2014 7 CBRC
CBRC CBRC
CBRC
CBRC
2014
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2001 2003
(ZHU Genlin) 2003
1955
2002 2010
2010
2012 2012
2015
2015
(FU Junyuan)
(1961 ) 2000
2015
1996 10 2006
2006
2012
LIU Zhengxi
1963 2000 2004
2004
2011
2011 2015
2015 2015 12
2015
2015 12
2011

(PAN Ji)
1949
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2014
(DONG Xiande)
1947
1984
1985
1997 12 1998
1998
2002
1998 1999
2002 2008
2008
2002 2004
2007 2010
2014 10 65,800
(JIN Qingjun)
1957
1987 1993 10
1993 10
2002
2002
DC
2012 2012
10 2012
2014
(XIONG Kai)
1971 1994
2006
2006 2014
2014
2015

2015
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(HUANG Dan)
1966

2015

2005 2014

2014 12

1988
1993
1994

12
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2016
20

(TIAN Huiyu)
1965 12

(L1 Hao)
1959

(TANG Zhihong)
1960

1995

2006

(DING Wei)
(1957 )

1996 12

2008

CMBICHC

(ZHU Qi)
(1960 )

2008 2008 12

WLB

WANG Qingbin
1956 12

2011
2013 11

2000

(LIU Jianjun)
1965

2000

2013 12
CIGNA CMB
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(XIONG Liangjun) MBA
1963
2003 2014 CBRC
2014
(WANG Liang)
1965 12
2012
2013 11
2015
(ZHAO Ju) MBA
1964 11 2009 12 UBS
2012 UBS
2014 11 2015
CMBICHC
(LIAN Bolin)
1958 2002
2012
2014
CMBFLC

(XU Shiqing)
1961

1993

87/406



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O00O(E05986)
ooooodn

SENG Sze Ka Mee
Natalia
1956 12

2012

2014

2006

2007 2009

2018

2013 12

2009

1996

2010

2016

2015 11
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@

2015 12 31 16

2015 14
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CBRC CSRC

2015

2015
2015 34 110
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2015 11
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2014
2002
2015 GAAP
@
22.35

1.60

2015
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2015

2015
IFRS 2015

6.45



131

2016
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IFRS

38 59

193

16.46
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1
12 31
2015 2014
) ( ) ) ( )
3 234,722 3,863,524 228,036 3,753,473
4 (97,993)  (1,612,965) (110,834)  (1,824,328)
136,729 2,250,559 117,202 1,929,145
5 57,798 951,355 43,341 713,393
(4,379) (72,078) (3,847) (63,322)
53,419 879,277 39,494 650,071
6 12,018 197,816 9,671 159,185
202,166 3,327,652 166,367 2,738,401
7 (67,670)  (1,113,848) (61,081)  (1,005,393)
(287) (4,724) (332) (5,465)
134,209 2,209,080 104,954 1,727,543
11 (59,266) (975,518) (31,681) (521,469)
2 33 2 33
134 2,206 156 2,568
75,079 1,235,800 73,431 1,208,674
12 (17,061) (280,824) (17,382) (286,108)
58,018 954,976 56,049 922,567
57,696 949,676 55,911 920,295
322 5,300 138 2,271
14 2.29 37.69 2.22 36.54
171 302
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12 31
2015 2014
( ) ) )« )
58,018 954,976 56,049 922,567
966 15,900 427 7,028
4,224 69,527 7,415 122,051
404 6,650 788 12,970
64 1,053 35 576
5,658 93,131 8,665 142,626
(53) (872)

13 5,605 92,258 8,665 142,626
5,603 92,225 8,664 142,609
2 33 1 16
63,623 1,047,235 64,714 1,065,192
63,299 1,041,902 64,575 1,062,905
324 5,333 139 2,288

171 302
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12 31
2015 2014
( ) _( ) ( ) )
14,381 236,711 14,793 243,493
16,099 264,990 15,222 250,554
15 569,961 9,381,558 639,992 10,534,268
16 63,779 1,049,802 55,986 921,530
17 185,693 3,056,507 124,085 2,042,439
18 343,924 5,660,989 344,980 5,678,371
19 2,739,444 45,091,248 2,448,754 40,306,491
20 24,934 410,414 23,560 387,798
21(a) 59,081 972,473 40,190 661,527
54(F) 10,176 167,497 9,315 153,325
21(b) 299,559 4,930,741 278,526 4,584,538
21(c) 353,137 5,812,635 259,434 4,270,284
21(d) 716,064 11,786,413 408,752 6,728,058
23 2,732 44,969 1,465 24,114
24 54 889 19 313
25 31,835 524,004 27,445 451,745
26 1,708 28,114 1,684 27,719
27 3,595 59,174 3,292 54,186
28 9,954 163,843 9,953 163,826
29 16,020 263,689 10,291 169,390
30 12,848 211,478 14,091 231,938
5,474,978 90,118,138 4,731,829 77,885,905
62,600 1,030,396 20,000 329,200
31 711,561 11,712,294 697,448 11,479,994
32 178,771 2,942,571 94,603 1,557,165
33 185,652 3,055,832 66,988 1,102,622
34 3,571,698 58,790,149 3,304,438 54,391,049
35 39,073 643,142 45,349 746,445
21(e) 20,227 332,936 13,369 220,054
54(F) 7,575 124,685 10,246 168,649
36 251,507 4,139,805 106,155 1,747,311
37(a) 6,524 107,385 6,068 99,879
38 12,820 211,017 11,656 191,858
29 867 14,271 771 12,691
39 64,345 1,059,119 39,678 653,100

5,113,220 84,163,601 4,416,769 72,700,018
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40 25,220 415,121 25,220 415,121
40 67,523 1,111,429 67,523 1,111,429
42 6,188 101,854 1,902 31,307
43 241 3,967 (163) (2,683)
44 34,009 559,788 28,690 472,237
45 64,679 1,064,616 53,979 888,494
145,887 2,401,300 121,665 2,002,606

46(b) 17,402 286,437 16,897 278,125
47 (343) (5,646) (1,309) (21,546)
360,806 5,938,867 314,404 5,175,090

57 952 15,670 656 10,798
361,758 5,954,537 315,060 5,185,888

5,474,978 90,118,138 4,731,829 77,885,905

2016 30

171 302
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C )
25,220 67,523 1,902 (163) _ 28,690 53,979 121,665 16,897 _ (1,309) 314,404 656 315,060
— — 4,286 404 5,319 10,700 24,222 505 966 46,402 296 46,698
- - - - - - 57,696 - - 57,696 322 58,018
- - 4,286 404 - - (53) - 966 5,603 2 5,605
- — 4,286 404 — — 57,643 - 966 63,299 324 63,623
- - - - - - - - - - 83 83
- - - - - - - - - - (83) (83)
- - - - 5,319 - (5,319) - - - - -
- - - - - 10,700 (10,700) - - - - -
_ _ - - - - - (16,897) - (16,897) (28)  (16,925)
- - - - - - (17,402) 17,402 - - - -
25,220 67,523 6,188 241 34,009 64,679 145,887 17,402 (343) 360,806 952 361,758
2014 12 31
( )
25,220 67,523 (5,547) (951) 23,502 46,347 95,471 15,636 (1,736) 265,465 491 265,956
- — 7,449 788 5,188 7,632 26,194 1,261 427 48,939 165 49,104
- - - - - - 55,911 - - 55,911 138 56,049
- - 7,449 788 - - - - 427 8,664 1 8,665
— — 7,449 788 — — 55,911 — 427 64,575 139 64,714
- - - - - - - - - - 84 84
- - - - - - - - - - (38) (38)
- - - - 5,188 - (5,188) - - - - -
- - - - - 7,632 (7,632) - - - - -
- - - - - - - (15,636) - (15,636) (20)  (15,656)
_ _ _ - - - (16,897) 16,897 - - - -
25,220 67,523 1,902 (163) 28,690 53,979 121,665 16,897  (1,309) 314,404 656 315,060
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C )
415,121 1,111,429 31,307  (2,683) 472,237 888,494 2,002,606 278,125  (21,546) 5,175,090 10,798 5,185,888
— — 70,548 6,650 87,551 176,122 398,694 8,312 15,900 763,777 4,872 768,649
- - - - - - 949,676 - - 949,676 5,300 954,976
- - 70,548 6,650 - - 872) - 15,900 92,225 33 92,258
— - 70,548 6,650 — — 948,804 — 15,900 1,041,902 5,333 1,047,235
- - - - - - - - - - 1,366 1,366
- - - - - - - - - - (1,366)  (1,366)
_ - - - 87,551 - (87,551) - - - - B
- - - - - 176,122 (176,122) - - - - -
- - - - - - - (278,125) - (278,125) (461) (278,586)
_ _ - - - - (286,437) 286,437 - - - -
415,121 1,111,429 101,854 3,967 559,788 1,064,616 2,401,300 286,437 (5,646) 5,938,867 15,670 5,954,537
2014 12 31
( )
415,121 1,111,429  (91,304) (15,653) 386,843 762,872 1,571,453 257,369  (28,575) 4,369,554 8,082 4,377,636
— — 122,611 12,970 85,394 125,623 431,153 20,756 7,028 805,536 2,716 808,252
- - - - - - 920,295 - - 920,295 2,271 922,567
- - 122,611 12,970 - - - - 7,028 142,609 16 142,626
- - 122,611 12,970 - - 920,295 — 7,028 1,062,905 2,288 1,065,192
- - - - - - - - - - 1,383 1,383
- - - - - - - - - - (625) (625)
- - - - 85,394 - (85,394) - - - - -
- - - - - 125,623  (125,623) - - - - _
- - - - - - - (257,369) - (257,369) (329) (257,698)
- - - - - - (278,125) 278,125 - - - -
415,121 1,111,429 31,307  (2,683) 472,237 888,494 2,002,606 278,125  (21,546) 5,175,090 10,798 5,185,888
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75,079 1,235,800 73,431 1,208,674
57,507 946,565 31,254 514,441
1,759 28,953 427 7,028
(1,137) (18,715) (655) (10,781)
4,086 67,256 3,535 58,186
436 7,177 413 6,798
(9,008) (148,272) 4,177) (68,753)
(48,175) (792,961) (37,749) (621,349)
7,150 117,689 3,921 64,540
@ (33) @ (33)
(134) (2,206) (156) (2,568)
O] (66) (©) (49)
38,689 636,821 (59,267) (975,535)
(347,286)  (5,716,328) (331,091)  (5,449,758)
(26,683) (439,202) (32,283) (531,378)
267,260 4,399,100 529,162 8,710,007
216,945 3,570,915 66,561 1,095,594
125,226 2,061,220 24,909 410,002
42,600 701,196 20,000 329,200
18,923 311,473 3,603 60,787
423,231 6,966,382 291,923 4,805,053
(22,811) (375,469) (19,750) (325,085)
400,420 6,590,913 272,173 4,479,968
(865,591)  (14,247,628) (787,928)  (12,969,295)
451,491 7,431,542 579,100 9,531,986
51,407 846,159 39,675 653,051
(9,079) (149,440) (8,125) (133,738)
167 2,749 1,297 21,349

2 33 2 33
(371,603)  (6,116,585) (175,979)  (2.,896,614)
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200 3,292 15,395 253,402

3,046 50,137 5,076 83,551
290,867 4,787,671 24,155 397,591
23,105 380,308 29,377 483,545

83 1,366 84 1,383
(143,500)  (2,362,010) (3,000) (49,380)
(28,812) (474,246) (31,790) (523,263)
(83) (1,366) (38) (625)
(16,925) (278,586) (15,656) (257,698)
(3,096) (50, 960) (1,724) (28,377)
124,885 2,055,607 21,879 360,128
153,702 2,529,935 118,073 1,943,482

— 471,471 7,760,413 349,949 5,760,161
10,670 175,628 3,449 56,771

—12 31 49(a) 635,843 10,465,976 471,471 7,760,413
189,783 3,123,828 188,752 3,106,858
99,409 1,636,272 112,124 1,845,561

171 302
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2015 2014

76,943 82,168

78,076 63,630

4,866 5,131

8,598 8,318

5,962 10,579

12,102 20,461

48,175 37,749

234,722 228,036

2015 12 31 1,137 2014
655 2014

2015 2014

60,448 64,102

1,056 142

26,549 41,032

2,790 1,637

7,150 3,921

97,993 110,834
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2015 2014
9,562 7,692
3,799 4,116
13,681 7,017
4,215 4,204
18,644 13,033
7,897 7,279
57,798 43,341
2015 2014

2,398 2,467
3,073 1,618

(118) (359)

611 (145)
4 21
534 476
4,519 4,238
498 475
188 539
311 341
12,018 9,671
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4,779 4,426
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31,394 29,179
11,929 10,425
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) 16,419 14,593
67,670 61,081
) 37(c)
( ) 2015 12 31 22 2014 17
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4,200 546 4,746
3,360 437 3,797
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275 275
300 300
300 300
300 300
275 275
3,360 437 3,797
375 375
400 400
300 300
1,989 258 2,247
1,685 219 1,904
1,680 218 1,898
358 47 405
2,825 16,632 2,162 21,619
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4,200 1,767 546 6,513
3,360 1,414 437 5,211
3,360 1,414 437 5,211
300 300
300 300
300 300
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1,313 516 170 1,999
225 225
60 60
401 52 453
75 75
2,100 825 273 3,198
150 150
150 150
2,138 278 2,416
1,304 169 1,473
1,860 18,176 5,936 2,362 28,334
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2015 2014
23,415 21,470

720 738

133 120

24,268 22,328
(7,207) (4,946)
17,061 17,382

2015 2014
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833 783
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539 (135) 404 1,051 (263) 788
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64 64 35 35
(64) 11 (53)
7,142 (1,537) 5,605 11,368 (2,703) 8,665
®
2015 2014
4,645 7,270
(421) 145
4,224 7,415
395 566
9 222
404 788
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30,387 36,659
935 422
31,322 37,081
32,570 18,971
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63,779 55,986
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74 53
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66,458 57,358
47,067 32,965
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72,219 33,808
(51) (46)
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®
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5 36
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128,803 205,082
215,321 139,873
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@
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1,507,770 1,467,585
89,815 75,007
1,226,701 971,327
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318,679 342,005
236,513 259,298
175,912 143,952
145,473 140,548
109,942 98,514
96,387 98,350
80,788 49,343
52,178 61,179
33,431 30,328
28,076 20,092
76,477 65,045
1,353,856 1,308,654
89,815 75,007
491,290 321,424
312,985 219,621
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46,585 29,410
37,168 36,031
14,860 42,097

13,876 7,925

13,468 18,265
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2,025 2,221

22,305 22,551
153,914 158,931
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259 267

1,804 1,889
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12,194 11,603 35,689 59,486
(813) @ (1,165) (1,979)
(9,154) (29,229) (38,383)
(1,137) (1,137)
625 839 1,464
176 50 226
62,412 7,806 14,624 84,842
2014
38,534 3,228 7,002 48,764
12,287 5,732 14,876 32,895
22) @ (1,618) (1,641)
(4,456) (10, 461) (14,917)
@ (654) (655)
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85,741 11 85,752 0.01 7
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2,413,844 7,408 20,483 2,441,735 1.14 5,743

2,486,027 7,408 20,484 2,513,919 1.11 5,743

@n @ (88)
(50,768) (4,733) (9,576) (65,077)
(50, 855) (4,733) (9,577) (65,165)

72,096 72,096
2,363,076 2,675 10,907 2,376,658
2,435,172 2,675 10,907 2,448,754
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2015 2014
38,512 (4,126) 34,386 35,411 (4,678) 30,733
65,430 (6,177) 59,253 63,895 (6,773) 57,122
13,044 (1,048) 11,996 10,461 (716) 9,745
116,986 (11,351) 105,635 109,767  (12,167) 97,600
(169) (92)
(1,692) (1,626)
103,774 95,882
2015 12 31 « ) 2014
20
2015 2014
13,075 11,668
8,765 7,691
3,094 4,201
24,934 23,560
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2015 2014
59,081 40,190
10,176 9,315
299,559 278,526
353,137 259,434
716,064 408,752
1,438,017 996,217

2015 2014
50,809 33,022
8,272 7,168
59,081 40,190
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(

)

2015 2014

17,543 5,351
9,622 6,165
4,513 5,358
13,472 12,744

4

1
1,347 1,100
2,535 1,580
740 712
49,777 33,010

5

5
1,027 12
50,809 33,022
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(

)

2015 2014
304 299
3,874 3,970
66 63
420 735
2,536 1,257
7,200 6,324
235 31
837 813
1,072 844
8,272 7,168

2015 2014
17,847 5,651
21,784 18,018
19,450 16,521
59,081 40,190
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2015 2014
94,381 77,265
PBOC 99
66,726 90,921
37,742 20,454
49,238 61,294
311
20 243
48
5,912 3,468
8,246 3,945
1,273 1,258
62 20
263,959 258,967
(239) (169)
263,720 258,798
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2015 2014

PBOC 94

302

12,602 3,393

1,214 2,376

1,091 835

723 29
2,096

9,979 6,875

8,030 6,213

231 122

207 25

36,267 20,170

(428) (442)

35,839 19,728

299,559 278,526
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2015 2014
102,761 83,346
135,896 125,911
60,902 69,269
299,559 278,526
2015 2014
611 574
35 43
®
@ a4
23 11
12 31 667 611
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©

2015 2014
170,540 109,428
165,890 133,197

12,656 8,822
865 2,816
488 491
1,542 588
729 803
352,710 256,145
(95) Gy
352,615 256,074
376
16
130 3,360
522 3,360
522 3,360
353,137 259,434
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2015 2014
171,115 113,350
180,402 142,583
1,620 3,501
353,137 259,434
372,158 261,326

2015 2014
71 78

20

©
4 2
95 71
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2015 2014

747 594

11,089 21,167
20,389 21,335
48,198 56,330
78,067 112,038
245,053 111,393
313,473 85,901

65 62

717,081 408,820
(1,017) (68)
716,064 408,752

747 594

694,928 386,823
20,389 21,335
716,064 408,752

2015 2014

68 63

947 4

2 1

12 31 1,017 68
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2015 2014
) 3,348 1,007
() 16,879 12,362
20,227 13,369
2015 2014
18 30
3,330 977
3,348 1,007
2015 2014
2,087 2,029
2,352 2,214
3,985 3,020
8,455 5,099
16,879 12,362

2015 2014 12 31
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2015
6,028 43,004 49,032
1,027 1,027
744 744
1 5 6
6,773 44,036 50,809
3,469 4,803 8,272
10,172 4 10,176
33,538 262,205 295,743
1,638 80 1,104 2,822
66 790 138 994
35,242 263,075 1,242 299,559
45,484 322,086 1,246 368,816
3,330 3,330
18 18
18 3,330 3,348
2,087 2,087
1,683 2,302 3,985
8,455 8,455
2,352 2,352
14,577 2,302 16,879
7,575 7,575
18 25,482 2,302 27,802
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2014

3,988 28,310 32,298
712 712
12 12
4,700 28,322 33,022
1,454 5,589 125 7,168
9,300 15 9,315
26,737 249,357 276,094
1,316 71 728 2,115
263 29 25 317
28,316 249,457 753 278,526
34,470 292,668 893 328,031
977 977
30 30
30 977 1,007
2,029 2,029
410 2,610 3,020
5,099 5,099
2,214 2,214
9,752 2,610 12,362
10,246 10,246
30 20,975 2,610 23,615
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346
758

138

2,302
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15 125 753 893
®) 20 17
21 21

570 570
®) (125) (122) (255)
4 1,242 1,246
®) 20 17
2,610

122

(430)

2,302

121
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31

(16)

125 702 858

(36) (36)
* *)
91 91

(16)

15

125 753 893
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5,296
45
1,056

(3,787)

2,610

39
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2015
( )
111 (111)
13 (13)
230 (230)
2014
( )
13 13)
1 @
73 (73)
2 )
261 (261)
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2015 12 31

)
2015 12 31
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22
@
) 1,000 100
() 6,000 100
) 1,161 100
() 210 55
) CMBICHC
PBOC 1998 405 2014 CMBICHC 750
CMBICHC 1,000
2015 28 CMBICHC
CMBICHC 400 2015 12 31 2016
20
() CMBFLC CBRC 2008 110
2008 2014 CMBFLC 2,000
CMBFLC 6,000
() WLB 2008
2009 15 WLB 2009 16
( ) 2012 CMFM 21.6 ING
B.V. 63,567,567.57 2013 CMFM
33.4 55.0 CMFM CMFM 2013 11 28
23
2015 2014
2,727 1,458
5 7
2,732 1,465
134 156
64 35
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)

)

50.00
WLB
WLB
20.00
WLB
MUCFC
WLB CUNC MUCFC 50.00

1,450,000

150,000

10,024
420,000
200,000

6,000
10,000

484,160

40,000

2,000,000

100,000

14.29

167/406

50.00

13.33

16.67

21.00

50.00

51.00

50.00

50.00

49.00

CBRC

oOoOooodn
50.00
INA
13.33
WLB
CUNC
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2015
100 18,164 15,408 2,756 8,062 297 54 351 370 23 85
9,082 7,704 1,378 4,031 149 27 176 185 11 42
2014
100 14,448 12,039 2,409 5,194 219 69 288 456 20 68
7,224 6,020 1,204 2,597 110 34 144 228 10 34
2015
100 2,105 190 1,915 131 (84) (84) 80 2
1,053 95 958 66 42) 42) 40 1
2015
100 199 209 408
28 37 65
2014
100 206 6 212
30 1 31

168/406
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24
2015 2014
52 17
2 2
54 19
2 2
2015 12 31
3,000 27.00
30,000 25 00
2 86,500 49,00
2015
100 5 5
1 1
2014
100 7 7
2 2
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2015 12 31

2015

2015 12 31

2015 12 31

2015
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17,166 6,806 7,238 4,914 1,872 5,985 43,981
68 1,772 1,270 761 3,765 733 8,369
4,201 (4,444) 1 30 8 (114)
(38) (259) (108) (452) (857)
137 4 1 115 5 272
21,624 4,134 8,254 5,608 5,752 6,279 51,651
4,947 4,947 2,316 227 4,099 16,536
1,102 1,081 720 220 836 3,959
(40) 1 () 1 (39)
(15) (130) (83) (448) (676)
(16) ) 4 50 3 36
5,978 5,894 2,956 497 4,491 19,816
15,646 4,134 2,360 2,652 5,255 1,788 31,835
12,219 6,806 2,201 2,508 1,645 1,886 27,445
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16,879 4,241 5,989 6,185 1,408 5,533 40,235
343 2,598 2,692 819 1,021 7,473
18) @ 18 29 464 (54) 438

112) (33) (1,490) (2,125) (548) (4,308)
74 1 29 6 33 143
17,166 6,806 7,238 4,914 1,872 5,985 43,981
4,106 4,317 3,670 153 3,790 16,036
836 1,016 716 74 774 3,416

5 (12) 29 (23) @

(33) (402) (2,108) (468) (3,011)
33 28 9 26 96
4,947 4,947 2,316 227 4,099 16,536
12,219 6,806 2,291 2,598 1,645 1,886 27,445
12,773 4,241 1,672 2,515 1,255 1,743 24,199
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2015 2014
G0 ) 335 374
(10-50 ) 13,439 9,832
13,774 10,206
G0 ) 999 1,069
(10-50 ) 855 925
1,854 1,994
18 19
15,646 12,219
(b) 2015 12 31 2014
© 2015 12 31 270 2014 560

(d) 2015 12 31 2014
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2015 2014
2,477 2,379
140 68
77 30
2,694 2,477
793 678
127 119
41 19)
25 10
986 793
1,708 1,684
1,684 1,701
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(10-50 )

Go )

(10-50 )

4,784
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2015 2014
550 596
550 596

99
1,059 1,088
1,158 1,088
1,708 1,684
WLB
2015 12 31
2014 4,216

2015 2014
192 193
206 257
14 21
412 471
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27
2015 1,532 2,424 1,059 5,015
6 709 715

24) @4)

3 2 43 48
2015 12 31 1,517 3,135 1,102 5,754
2015 207 1,271 245 1,723
35 360 32 427
1 1
2 6 8
2015 12 31 243 1,633 283 2,159
2015 12 31 1,274 1,502 819 3,595
2015 1,325 1,153 814 3,292
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2014 1,297 1,991 1,034 4,322
220 432 652

6 6

9 1 25 35

2014 12 31 1,532 2,424 1,059 5,015
2014 171 956 199 1,326
35 314 41 390

1 1

1 5 6

2014 12 31 207 1,271 245 1,723
2014 12 31 1,325 1,153 814 3,292
2014 1,126 1,035 835 2,996
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WB ()
CMRM ()

CMBICHC ()

2008 30
12,898
10,177

2013 11 28
752

2015

CcGU

CGU

94
F6

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

OooooOodd
12 31 12 31
10,177 10,177 (579) 9,598
355 355 355
1 1 1
10,532 1 10,533 (579) 9,954
WLB 53.12 WLB
6,851
WLB 22
CMFM  55.00 CMFM
414 355
CMFM 22
CMBICHC i i 100
2.60
0A
CGU 2008 30 WLB 2013 11 28 CMFM
CGU
WLB CMFM
12 15 2014 12
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2015 2014
16,020 10,291
(867) @771)
15,153 9,520
2015 2014
/C ) C )

63,217 15,783 36,647 9,150
(7,614) (1,905) (2,203) (550)
9,669 2,417 5,290 1,322

(1,087) (276) 1,512 369
64,185 16,020 41,246 10,291

249 42 212 34
(252) (61) (13) (€)
(5,304) (848) (5,022) (802)
(5,307) (867) (4,823) (771)

178/406
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2014
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9,184 (553) 1,322 (433) 9,520
6,638 1,096 (527) 7,270
(1,413) (124) (1,537)
3 (40) (€D
15,825 (1,966) 2,418 (1,124) 15,153
4,009 1,887 1,621 (223) 7,294
5,174 (299) 71 4,946
(2,440) (263) (2,703)
1 (18) an
9,184 (553) 1,322 (433) 9,520
2015 2014

4,919 3,883

1,091 913

@ 691 455
463 926

229 225

158 325

129 135

37(b) 27 70
5,141 7,159

12,848 14,091

179/406
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2015 2014

1,044 746

628 652

1,672 1,398

(981) (943)

691 455

73 (2014 444 )
2015 2014

176,934 203,283
527,101 386,030
704,035 589,313
7,526 108,135
711,561 697,448

180/406
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2015 2014

165,471 77,917
1,100
166,571 77,917
12,200 16,686
178,771 94,603
®@

2015 2014
173,439 56,279
9,060 5,426
182,499 61,705
3,153 5,283
185,652 66,988
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2015 2014
12,833 13,328
67,336 16,428
1,994 3,823
1,159 1,588
83,322 35,167
102,330 30,908
913
185,652 66,988

2015 2014
1,167,467 973,646
1,194,064 1,237,765
2,361,531 2,211,411
835,062 644,836
375,105 448,191
1,210,167 1,093,027
3,571,698 3,304,438

182/406
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2015 2014
191,988 167,437
49,188 48,199
56,499 54,705
60,172 42,739
57,867 51,006
415,714 364,086
2015 2014
1,398 1,352
37,675 43,997
39,073 45,349
2015 2014
36(a) 32,519 32,396
36(b) 27,995 27,636
176,245 24,832
14,748 21,291
251,507 106,155

183/406
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180 2008 5.90 10 7,000 6,994 1 6,995
)
8.90 11
() 180 1220;§ 5.20 11,700 11,686 2 11,688
) 120 2013 6.40 11,300 11,286 1 11,287
29,966 4 29,970
( ) CBRC PBOC 30,000 2008 12 2008 304
2008 25
2008 26,000
4,000
2013 23,000
19,000 4,000
( ) CBRC PBOC 11,700 2012 11 29 2012 703
2012 12 20 2012 91
2012 12 28 11,700
( ) CBRC PBOC 11,300 Tier 2013 10 29 2013
557 2014 15 2014 22
2014 18 11,300
Tier
WLB
144 2009 5.70 1,500
12 28 1,199 59 1,258
/ 120 2012 3.50 200
11
T*+2.80
1,231 60 1,291
2,430 119 2,549
T
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12 cue 01 60 201[21 4.15 6,500 6,495 2 6,497
12 cue 02 60 2012 R*+0.95 13,500 13,491 4 13,495
14 CuB 03 36 2013 4.10 1,000 996 2 998

20,982 8 20,990
*

R PBOC 2012 14 3.50
( ) CBRC PBOC 20,000 2011 12 12 2011 557
2012 16 2012
2012 14 6,500
13,500
( ) PBOC 1,000 2014 13 2014
35 2014 11 2014 412
2014 10
1,000

185/406
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CMBFLC
36 2013 4.99 1,000 1,000 1,000
) 26
60 2013 5.08 1,000 1,000 1,000
) 26
36 2013 4.87 1,000 1,000 1,000
) 24
2013 4.98 1,000 1,000 1,000
) 60 24
2015 3.75 200 200 200
) 36 12
4,000 200 4,200
() 2012 758 CMBFLC CBRC 2013
33 PBOC CMBFLC 2013 26 2,000 2013
2013 24 2,000 2013
2015 12 31 CMBFLC 440
() 2015 551 CMBFLC CBRC 2015
276 PBOC CMBFLC 2015 12 200 2015
CMBICC CMBIL
60 2014
) 1 3.25 500 3,004 151 3,245
( ) 2014 11 CMBIL 2019 3.25 500

186/406
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(
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)
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2015
5,865 24,004 (23,615) 6,254
175 3,080 (3,023) 232
28 10 38
6,068 27,004 (26,638) 6,524
2014

5,057 19,093 (18,285) 5,865
49 2,889 (2,763) 175

13 15 28
5,119 21,997 (21,048) 6,068

187/406
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2015
4,215 17,248 (16,887) 4,576
37 2,400 (2.398) 39
14 1,611 (1,545) 80
1 35 (33) 3
3 53 (52) 4
242 1,546 (1,640) 148
1,353 1,111 (1,060) 1,404
5,865 24,004 (23,615) 6,254
2014
3,576 15,069 (14,430) 4,215
36 82 (81) 37
169 1,464 (1,619) 14
1 29 (29) 1
2 44 (43) 3
108 1,548 (1,414) 242
1,165 857 (669) 1,353
5,057 19,093 (18,285) 5,865

188/406
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2015
47 1,385 (1,353) 79
122 1,601 (1,582) 141
6 94 (88) 12
175 3,080 (3,023) 232

2014
32 1,218 (1,203) 47
13 1,580 (1,471) 122
4 91 (89) 6
49 2,889 (2,763) 175

2015
12 35 2014 10 35
2015

8.33 2014 8.33
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()
2015
28 10 38
28 10 38
2014
13 15 28
13 15 28
2015 12 31
()
2015 12 31
2007 10 30 0.922 10
2008 11 0.954 10
2009 11 16 1.110 10
2011 18 1.228 10
2012 1.259 10
2013 22 1.259 10
2014 2.070 10
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2015 2014
15.43 9.70 16.40 9.11
14.84 2.28
14.61 (0.90) 15.64 (1.69)
14.58 8.80 15.43 9.70
15.23 3.91 16.29 3.49
14.58 2014  15.43
5.67 2014  6.76
2015
1.82 10.26 4.25 4.61 5.09 4.81 4.63
18.30 18.30 18.30 18.30 18.30 18.30 18.30
24..00 5.46 16.69 15.56 13.36 13.93 13.99
43 43 43 43 43 43 43
1.83 2.85 3.85 5.14 6.35 7.39 8.52
6.25 6.25 6.25 6.25 6.25 6.25 6.25
1.41 1.41 1.41 1.41 1.41 1.41 1.41
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2014
1.16 10.22 3.25 3.60 4.22 3.90 3.74
19.46 19.46 19.46 19.46 19.46 19.46 19.46
24.85 6.31 17.54 16.40 14.21 14.78 14.84
26 26 26 26 26 26 26
2.83 3.83 4.83 6.17 7.33 8.42 9.58
5.27 5.27 5.27 5.27 5.27 5.27 5.27
2.58 2.58 2.58 2.58 2.58 2.58 2.58

192/406
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2015

318 318 326 307 307 307 1,883
159 159 163 200 200 200 240 1,321
159 159 163 200 200 200 240 1,321
159 159 163 184 184 184 210 1,243
127 159 163 184 184 184 210 1,211
131 153 184 184 210 862

300 300

210 210

150 150

150 150

150 150

922 954 1,109 1,228 1,259 1,259 2,070 8,801

2014

318 318 326 307 307 307 1,883
159 159 163 200 200 200 240 1,321
159 159 163 200 200 200 240 1,321
159 159 163 184 184 184 210 1,243
127 159 163 184 184 184 210 1,211
163 153 184 184 210 894

131 153 184 184 210 862

300 300

210 210

150 150

150 150

150 150

922 954 1,272 1,381 1,443 1,443 2,280 9,695

1 2015 2014

193/406
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OooooOodd
WLB
WwLB
1ASB IAS 19 2015 12 31
108 2014
122
2015 12 31
2015 2014
367 386
(340) (316)
27 70
12
2016
2015 2014 12 31
2015 2014
(12) (11)
1 2
(11) ®

2015 12 31 2014
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2015 2014
316 294

12 11

5 6

(29) (22)

29 18

7 9

12 31 340 316

2015 2014

386 400

6 8

© (10)

29 22)

13 10

12 31 367 386

2014

236 64.3 249 64.5

63 17.2 63 16.3

68 18.5 74 19.2

367 100 386 100
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oOoOooodn
2014
2015 2014
1.4 1.7
0.6 0.9
5.0 5.0
3.0 3.0
©
2015 2014
9,840 8,383
2,633 2,745
347 528
12,820 11,656

196/406
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197/406

2015 2014
12,294 7,001
8,000 3,700
1,866 1,709
1,295 1,369
15 116
40,875 25,783
64,345 39,678
2015 2014

20,629 20,629
4,591 4,591
25,220 25,220

oOoOooodn



2015

41

2015

42

43

2015 12 31

2015 12 31

M)

EDINETOOOO

DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

25,220 25,220
2015 2014
67,523 67,523
2015 2014
1,902 (5,547)
64 35
(421) 145
4,643 7,269
6,188 1,902

198/406
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12 31

45

12 31

46
@

MOF

2014

2013

1.5

2012

10

10

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)
oOoOooodn

MOF
10
2015 2014
28,690 23,502
5,319 5,188
34,009 28,690
2015 12 31
2015 2014
53,979 46,347
10,700 7,632
64,679 53,979
2015 2014
6.70 16,897
6.20 15,636

199/406
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2015
2015

47

10

6.90

2016

2015

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)
oOoOooodn

2014

5,319

10,700

2014 10 6.70 17,402

5,188

7,446

16,897

33,421

29,531

30

200/406
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ooooodd
48
IAS 27
2014 12 31
2015
( )
2015 60 25,220 76,681 1,673 (163) 28,690 53,208 109,043 16,897 2 311,251
2015 - - 4,096 404 5,319 10,720 19,748 505 @ 40,790
- - - - - - 53,189 - - 53,189
- - 4,096 404 - - - - [©) 4,498
- - 4,096 404 - - 53,189 - @ 57,687
- - - - 5,319 - (5,319) - - -
- - - - - 10,720 (10,720) - - -
2014 - - - - - - - (16,897) - (16,897)
2015 - - - - - - (17,402) 17,402 - -
2015 12 31 60 25,220 76,681 5,769 241 34,009 63,928 128,791 17,402 - 352,041
( )
2014 60 25,220 76,681 (5,649) (951) 23,502 45,762 86,697 15,636 ) 266,894
2014 - - 7,322 788 5,188 7,446 22,346 1,261 6 44,357
- - - - - - 51,877 - - 51,877
- - 7,322 788 - - - - 6 8,116
- - 7,322 788 - - 51,877 - 6 59,993
_ _ - - 5,188 - (5,188) - - -
- - - - - 7,446 (7,446) - - -
2013 - - - - - - - (15,636) - (15,636)
2014 - - - - - - (16,897) 16,897 - -
014 12 3 60 25,220 76,681 1,673 (163) 28,690 53,208 109,043 16,897 2 311,251

201/406
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2015 2014
118,184 149,938
56,014 47,336
147,714 68,983
296,458 190,039
17,473 15,175
635,843 471,471
2015
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Ooooooog
@
2014 2014
2015 2014 2015 ( 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 (
) )
41,675 42,793 67,527 51,279 8,513 7,144 19,014 15,986 136,729 117,202
( ) 16,581 18,063 (5,121) (453) 2,953 2,084 (14,413)  (19,694)
58,256 60,856 62,406 50,826 11,466 9,228 4,601 (3,708) 136,729 117,202
13,613 12,942 25,860 16,765 8,972 5,672 4,974 4,115 53,419 39,494
2,622 3,623 920 993 6,010 3,953 2,466 1,102 12,018 9,671
74,491 77,421 89,186 68,584 26,448 18,853 12,041 1,509 202,166 166,367
(1,222) (1,265)  (2,104) (1,719) (182) 142) (578) (409)  (4,086) (3,535)
(20,890)  (22,192)  (35,954)  (30,149)  (3,121)  (2,487)  (3,619) (2,718)  (63,584)  (57,546)
(287) (332) (287) (332)

(22,112)  (23,457)  (38,058)  (31,868)  (3,303)  (2.629)  (4,484) (3,459)  (67,957)  (61,413)

52,379 53,964 51,128 36,716 23,145 16,224 7,557 (1,950) 134,209 104,954
(39,871)  (23,166)  (16,336) (7,611) (162) 25)  (2,897) (879)  (59,266)  (31,681)
136 158 136 158
12,508 30,798 34,792 29,105 22,983 16,199 4,796 (2,671) 75,079 73,431
) 1,601 2,908 2,011 3,951 252 326 4,230 940 9,084 8,125

1,398,748 1,380,976 1,265,735 1,022,060 1,246,526 886,272 1,527,731 1,411,906 5,438,740 4,701,214

2,244,895 2,169,013 1,147,024 1,028,265 989,926 702,617 678,269 483,362 5,060,114 4,383,257

2,786 1,484 2,786 1,484

204/406
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2015 2014
202,166 166,367
202,166 166,367

75,079 73,431
75,079 73,431
2015 2014
5,438,740 4,701,214
9,954 9,953
819 1,059
15,538 9,880
9,927 9,723
5,474,978 4,731,829
5,060,114 4,383,257
11,874 10,854
41,232 22,658
5,113,220 4,416,769
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2015 2014 2015 2014

2,105,486 1,863,145 1,808,257 1,629,954
762,902 590,741 761,795 586,447
511,402 425,612 503,469 414,438
607,634 527,907 597,665 515,926
201,537 173,827 199,294 170,945
385,401 333,656 382,889 328,146
421,469 378,606 422,455 370,196
142,219 126,892 140,900 121,176
336,928 311,443 296,496 279,541
5,474,978 4,731,829 5,113,220 4,416,769

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
24,225 23,340 31,968 1,998 58,343 25,146
2,914 2,657 3,572 10,514 31,057 30,436
2,529 2,522 11,163 14,922 25,823 25,521
1,819 1,862 13,218 15,988 30,122 28,664
1,420 1,473 2,990 3,865 7,910 8,078
2,736 2,798 3,683 7,510 16,788 16,917
2,832 2,827 431 11,212 19,487 20,205
91 68 1,791 2,077 2,230 2,517
11,312 6,311 6,263 5,345 10,406 8,883
49,878 43,858 75,079 73,431 202,166 166,367

207/406
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2015 2014
185,652 66,988
13,367 3,022
67,980 29,050
2,752 3,853
102,330 31,821
186,429 67,746
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2014

1,725,348

209/406
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DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

2015 2014

235,692 249,322

188,469 279,857

363,035 399,489

5,979 4,062

33,029 23,694

338,012 266,094

5,884 2,610

1,170,100 1,225,128

2015 12 31 1,496,021

oOoOooodn
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©

CBRC

2015
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2014

346,816

398,937

2014 CBRC

2015

2014

4,380

251

1,965

572

4,631

2,537

2015

2014

2,613
8,117

2,293

2,293
7,991

2,674

13,023

12,958

210/406
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2015 12 31
1,100
©
@

2014

595
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2015 2014
26,729 23,497
2015 2014
320,110 243,797
(320,110) (243,797)
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2015 2014
1,820,694 831,473
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19

)

52(a)
2015 12 31

8,043,986 2014 7,597,633

214/406
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2014

996
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OooooOodd
2015 2014
34,326 20,484
(14,624) (9,577)
19,702 10,907
13,070 7,408
(7,806) (4,733)
5,264 2,675
31,689 25,105
2,217 752
254
282 6
34,442 25,863
(3,600) (2,640)
30,842 23,223
2,742,448 2,460,164
(58,812) (48,215)
2,683,636 2,411,949
2,739,444 2,448,754
2015 12 31 4,531
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2015 2014
668 662
(601) (619)
67 43
7,005 8,667
540,986 441,823
14,671 5,543
15,763 7,574
578,515 463,607
159,815 154,334
738,397 617,984

532,353 2014 428,082

2015 2014

115,400 88,929
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2015 12
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2015

)

2015
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VaR



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

Ogoooood
2015
509,747 44,537 28,345 1,713 584,342 6,852 33,796
465,757 109,509 7,011 11,119 593,396 16,848 8,359
2,473,949 158,776 87,923 18,796 2,739,444 24,428 104,832
1,582,388  (135,718) 5,666  (11,533) 1,440,803  (20,880) 6,756
102,365 7,728 6,446 454 116,993 1,189 7,686
5,134,206 184,832 135,391 20,549 5,474,978 28,437 161,429
1,051,084 78,385 4,640 4,475 1,138,584 12,060 5,532
3,135,623 254,346 114,031 67,698 3,571,698 39,131 135,962
215,920  (168,451) (5,163)  (14,504) 27,802 (25,916) (6,156)
235,039 10,425 6,043 251,507 1,604 7,205
119,943 864 3,131 421 123,459 133 3,733
4,756,709 175,569 122,682 58,090 5,113,050 27,012 146,276
377,497 9,263 12,709  (3,541) 361,928 1,425 15,153
725,713 76,905 24,916 24,088 851,622 11,832 29,708
347,450 495,820 61,572 93,045 997,887 76,282 73,414

(417,201)  (482,020) (52,239) (56,359) (1,007,819) (74,159)  (62,286)

(15,074) 8 (194) (15,260)  (2,319) 10

(69,751)  (1,274) 9,341 36,492 (25,192) (196) 11,138

219/406



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

oOoOooodn
2014

621,938 18,874 13,327 646 654,785 3,044 16,669
458,014 52,091 4,886 10,060 525,051 8,402 6,111
2,139,783 214,718 77,640 16,613 2,448,754 34,632 97,111
940,676 34,184 17,652 3,705 996,217 5,514 22,079
95,413 3,487 7,538 572 107,010 562 9,428
4,255,824 323,354 121,043 31,596 4,731,817 52,154 151,398
799,722 74,400 3,064 1,853 879,039 12,000 3,832
2,892,528 210,658 174,441 26,811 3,304,438 33,977 218,188
5,352 3,823 14,356 84 23,615 617 17,956
83,601 15,962 6,592 106,155 2,575 8,245
94,687 3,892 4,532 411 103,522 628 5,669
3,875,890 308,735 202,985 29,159 4,416,769 49,797 253,890
379,934 14,619 (81,942) 2,437 315,048 2,357 (102,492)
829,782 110,738 (39,226) 7,947 909,241 17,861 (49,063)
283,065 429,980 178,230 50,907 942,182 69,352 222,927

(384,466) (439,124) (79,240)  (49,483)  (952,313) (70,826)  (99,112)

151 7 (674) (516) 24 9

(101,401)  (8,993) 98,997 750 (10,647)  (1,450) 123,824

220/406
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
2015 2014
(100) 100 (100) 100
94 (94) 37 @37
100
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2015

2015

)

2015
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VaR
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EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

ooooOoog
2015  PBOC 125
125 PBOC
FTP
2015
(
1
)

584,342 544,820 - - - 39,522
593,396 535,143 45,374 10,168 702 2,009

) 2,739,444 1,647,629 905,992 176,721 9,102 —
1,438,017 493,957 252,123 380,022 296,912 15,003
119,779 - - - - 119,779
5,474,978 3,221,549 1,203,489 566,911 306,716 176,313
1,138,584 871,075 254,003 9,202 - 4,304
3,571,698 2,596,345 603,585 357,570 6,088 8,110
27,802 6,620 6,228 6,551 388 8,015

251,507 97,439 108,411 21,425 24,232 -
123,629 102 22 68 26 123,411
5,113,220 3,571,581 972,249 394,816 30,734 143,840
361,758 (350,032) 231,240 172,095 275,982 32,473

223/406



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

OooooOodd
2014
(
1
)

654,785 632,518 — — — 22,267
525,051 394,447 86,569 41,218 — 2,817

) 2,448,754 1,294,461 962,393 150,223 41,677 —
996,217 147,862 244,913 378,652 212,029 12,761
107,022 — - — — 107,022
4,731,829 2,469,288 1,293,875 570,093 253,706 144,867
879,039 663,147 193,298 20,526 — 2,068
3,304,438 2,278,910 681,858 335,500 1,444 6,726
23,615 6,035 927 6,213 165 10,275

106,155 20,793 38,380 15,817 31,165 —
103,522 23 61 917 94 102,427
4,416,769 2,968,908 914,524 378,973 32,868 121,496
315,060 (499,620) 379,351 191,120 220,838 23,371

12015 12 31 2014 12 31
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
2015 2014
25 25 25 25
(1,042) 1,042 (995) 995

224/406
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2015

RRR

23,020

15,820

PBOC

226/406

PBOC
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@
®

*
2015
7,200

®



EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)
oOoOooodn

2015

1 1
C () 118,184 466,158 584,342
12,173 463,243 61,785 45,004 10,480 711 593,396
(GE@D)) 19,954 124,077 421,499 972,196 609,807 553,893 38,018 2,739,444

cCy»

7,975 5,992 12,926 27,836 3,791 10,737 69,257
12,234 11,847 49,199 163,821 59,912 2,546 299,559
1,327 2,364 15,016 106,212 228,206 12 353,137
383,659 49,024 145,463 121,629 16,286 3 716,064
11,988 4,641 5,435 10,980 2,052 1,065 83,618 119,779
162,299 997,156 557,946 1,250,784 1,041,837 863,153 601,803 5,474,978
378,326 339,324 146,406 247,988 22,805 3,735 1,138,584
) 2,009,673 306,603 294,047 603,543 357,544 288 3,571,698
3,330 1,637 1,135 3,857 9,781 388 7,674 27,802
31,016 65,659 95,056 27,257 32,519 251,507
63,634 22,662 7,666 13,531 11,503 2,518 2,115 123,629
2,454,963 701,242 514,913 963,975 428,890 39,448 9,789 5,113,220
/ (2,292,664) 295,914 43,033 286,809 612,947 823,705 592,014 361,758

227/406
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DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)

oOoOooodn
2014
1 1
C () 149,938 504,847 654,785
8,481 327,078 75,539 69,849 43,562 542 525,051
([GE@D)) 1,532 118,394 388,499 970,897 518,480 427,737 23,215 2,448,754
(GEQD))
3,815 11,041 7,540 15,872 1,476 9,761 49,505
7,542 10,711 38,749 183,495 35,863 2,166 278,526
792 3,163 15,147 78,302 162,019 11 259,434
33,693 41,529 152,693 152,995 27,837 5 408,752
11,916 5,735 5,868 9,142 901 324 73,136 107,022
171,867 497,049 536,350 1,264,017 993,607 655,256 613,683 4,731,829
4,569 419,093 234,423 193,695 26,765 494 879,039
) 1,618,482 196,234 447,982 681,507 357,289 2,944 3,304,438
977 2,380 1,622 670 7,332 359 10,275 23,615
5,859 31,757 9,145 28,610 30,784 106,155
40,836 25,641 12,450 13,100 8,005 1,193 2,297 103,522
1,664,864 649,207 728,234 898,117 428,001 35,774 12,572 4,416,769
/ (1,492,997) (152,158) (191,884) 365,900 565,606 619,482 601,111 315,060
PBOC

~

(

N

)

228/406
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2015

584,342 584,342 118,184 466,158
593,396 597,368 11,544 465,863 62,507 45,870 10,856 728

2,739,444 3,311,031 21,943 131,985 439,169 1,034,042 788,968 855,004 39,920

59,081 65,591 8,262 6,289 13,543 31,642 5,094 761
299,559 362,387 12,823 12,878 52,637 199,827 81,673 2,549
353,137 502,642 2,255 3,869 18,881 131,033 346,591 13
716,064 727,709 383,829 49,586 146,600 126,064 21,586 44

16,914 16,485 9,390 1,163 797 1,715 371 33 3,016

5,361,937 6,167,555 161,061 1,006,180 575,095 1,313,288 1,288,761 1,309,981 513,189

1,138,584 1,152,224 379,034 341,555 148,542 254,747 24,491 3,855

3,571,698 3,690,568 2,018,276 312,800 305,339 637,988 415,583 582
20,227 20,227 3,330 1,657 1,188 3,865 9,781 388 18

251,507 271,745 31,286 66,230 97,416 43,477 33,336
85,202 86,797 54,350 19,267 1,537 3,919 4,648 1,010 2,066
5,067,218 5,221,561 2,454,990 706,565 522,836 997,935 497,980 39,171 2,084

377,020 377,020

229/406
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oOoOooodn
2014
1 1

654,785 654,785 149,938 504,847
525,051 532,092 9,660 329,040 77,311 71,531 44,008 542
2,448,754 2,915,660 1,532 128,084 408,216 1,031,943 659,299 662,767 23,819
40,190 44,355 4,018 11,312 7,920 18,306 2,077 722
278,526 346,918 8,066 11,784 42,673 227,113 55,094 2,188
259,434 378,053 1,553 4,393 17,684 98,688 255,724 11
408,752 421,755 33,909 42,134 154,585 157,185 33,937 5
17,313 17,313 8,741 1,650 350 490 276 70 5,736

4,632,805 5,310,931 169,871 506,320 555,500 1,326,826 1,204,875 1,009,669 537,870

879,039 903,677 5,787 422,184 242,362 203,853 28,945 546
3,304,438 3,413,620 1,633,583 202,376 463,474 712,440 398,580 3,167
13,369 13,425 977 2,393 1,659 676 7,332 388
106,155 110,672 5,942 31,895 10,896 30,880 31,059
58,174 58,174 23,741 21,529 1,218 3,338 5,410 1,072 1,866
4,361,175 4,499,568 1,664,088 654,424 740,608 931,203 471,147 36,232 1,866

293,850 293,850

230/406
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2013
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CBRC
2014

18
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2015

256,054 817,880 75,345 409 1,150,588 465 (492)
35,908 35,908 30 @an
249,564 460,622 19,885 730,071 5,536 (4,400)
133,169 133,294 2,687 269,150 3,123 (1,682)

27,528 18,238 716 46,482 634
33,865 20,185 588 54,638 (876)
480,034 632,339 23,876 1,136,249 9,323 (6,975)
97 97 @

64 64 5
56 56 @
120 97 217 5 0)
1,700 9,800 18,010 29,510 336 (14)
1,037 867 13,226 395 15,525 38 (32)
1,325 1,409 2,863 5,597 9 (60)
2,362 2,276 16,089 395 21,122 47 (92)

10,176 (7,575)
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2014

161,828 107,663 29,995 752 300,238 204 (240)
20,019 20,019 874 (793)
285,302 395,102 46,906 727,310 5,362 (4,142)
138,277 77,173 3,332 218,782 1,393 (1,270)

16,626 5,883 22,509 1,233
21,331 6,921 28,252 (3,365)
481,555 485,079 50,238 1,016,872 8,862 (9,570)
775 93 868 1 0

53 29 24 36 142 15

29 29

82 804 117 36 1,039 16 0}
6,300 13,540 29,510 49,350 143 (360)
124 515 9,941 377 10,957 73 (29)
343 3,286 3,629 17 (45)
124 858 13,227 377 14,586 90 74)

9,315 (10, 246)
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2014

442

4,205

10,518

214

3,003

5,830

15,168

9,049

CBRC

19

21(c)
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2015 2014
353,137 372,697 1,332 371,353 12 259,434 264,612
)
2015 2014
32,519 34,680 - 34,680 - 32,396 32,898
27,995 28,146 - 28,146 - 27,636 27,248
60,514 62,826 - 62,826 - 60,032 60,146

55
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56
@
13,750 29.97 -
(CMG C ()
(@)
5,900 13.04 _
(CMSNCL) C ()
1,000 - 100
CMBICHC
6,000 - 100
CMBFLC
1,161 - 100
WLB
210 - 55
CMFM
( ) cme 29.97 2014  20.00
( )2015 12 31 CMG CMSNCL 13.04 2014  12.54
( ) 2015 12 28 SASAC
MG 2016 24 SASAC
CNG
MG
30.00 CMG MG
30.06 30
@
) CBRC
(©) CMG
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2015 2014
CMG 13,750,000,000 11,550,000,000
CMSNCL 5,900,000,000 4,300,000,000
CMBICHC 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
CMBFLC 6,000,000,000 6,000,000,000
WLB 1,160,950,575 1,160,950,575
CMFM 210,000,000 210,000,000
CMSNCL CMBICHC CMBFLC WLB CMFM

2015 11 3,162,424,323 12.54 1,000,000,000 100.00 6,000,000,000 100.00 1,160,950,575 100.00 115,500,000 55.00
127,046,014 0.50

2015 12 31
3,289,470,337 13.04 1,000,000,000 100.00 6,000,000,000 100.00 1,160,950,575 100.00 115,500,000 55.00

PBOC
2015 2014
« )
4.35 5.60
4.75 4.90 6.00 6.15
0.35 0.35
1.10 2.75 2.35 4.00
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©
2015 12 31 CMSNCL 29.97 (2014
20.00 ) ( CMSNCL 13.04 (2014  12.54 )) CMSNCL

2015 2014

- 5,124 4,395
i 12,346 5,282
i 119,679 40,038
i} 1,849 1,237
- 93 1,186
- 58 47
496 318

1,151 487

580 175

37 6
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2015 2014
6,110 8,390
1,425 2,149

30,929 10,454
1,076 1,320
220 200
737 546
204 144

1

2015 2014

5 7
442 102
36 4
454 349




®

244/406

EDINETOOOO
DO0O0O0oDOo0Ooooo(eos9se)
oOoOooodn

2015 2014
1,700 200
10,287 3,520
6,000 6,000
9 6
20 13
915 71
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2015 2014

- 5,588 2,439
- 28,102 29,826
- 325 310
- 440 440
i} 13,497 18,688
- 93 164
- 1,657 1,374
- 3,269 117
i 112
31 661
426 354
1,494 868

(O] @)
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2014
2015
( )
( )
46,236 42,534
14,751
9,556 15,169
5,475 5,427
61,267 77,881
37(a)
()
2015 2014 12 31
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2015 12 31
47,565 898
194
59
@
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
— 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
2015
- — - 300 300 300
11,381 - - 606,424 617,805 617,805
10,693 - - 78,067 88,760 88,760
- 2,773 2,672 118 5,563 5,563
- 992 - - 992 992

22,074 3,765 2,672 684,909 713,420 713,420
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2014
- - — 6,140 6,140 6,140
45,492 - - 247,484 292,976 292,976
63,484 - - 112,038 175,522 175,522
- 2,135 1,367 - 3,502 3,502
- 317 - — 317 317
108,976 2,452 1,367 365,662 478,457 478,457
®)
2015 12 31
1,820,694 2014 831,473
2015 12 31
208,150 2014 117,333
5,723 2014 11,470
2015
7,728 2014 5,373
2015 2015 12 31

2,622,189 2014 2,420,525
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2015 ( 2014 N
13,783 14,290
16,099 15,176

543,228 630,661
55,927 47,015
202,534 137,848
342,928 343,955
2,506,618 2,222,388
23,648 22,411
54,960 37,218
9,607 8,346
276,846 262,942
351,704 254,708
715,864 408,504
40,664 39,664
1,391 1,223
24,001 23,510
535 581

2,596 2,279
15,626 9,962
9,388 8,434
5,208,037 4,491,115
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2015 ( 2014 N
62,600 20,000
702,862 700,042
112,659 40,059
185,285 66,075
3,421,403 3,158,746
37,559 43,873
19,786 12,929
7,084 9,266
235,854 84,559
5,363 5,367
12,100 11,105
53,441 27,843
4,855,996 4,179,864

48(a)

25,220 25,220
76,681 76,681
5,769 1,673
241 (163)
34,009 28,690
63,928 53,208
128,791 109,043
17,402 16,897
— 2
352,041 311,251
5,208,037 4,491,115
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61 2015 12 31
IASB 2015 12 31
IFRS 2018
IFRS 15 2017
IFRS
IFRS
62
22 46(b) 56(a)
63
2015  CBRC
21
60 1AS 27

(b)
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China Morchants Sank Xl Financial Statements
Annual Report 2015

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

[Lapresed i mdlions of Aenminbi unless atherese statec)

Note 2015 1014
1Fflutldl

Interest income k| 234,722 128,036
interest expene . (97,993) (110.8349)
et Interest income 136,729 e
Fer ard commission incomse 5 51758 43,301
Fee and commission exponsas 14,375) {3,847}
Het fer and commission income 53.418 ¥ 494
Qther net incoma L3 12,018 8,671
Qperating Income 202,166 o 36T
Operating supense; 7 {67,.670) 161 081}
Charge for inswrance daims (287) B
Qperating profit before impairment losses 134,109 104,854
Impairment lossed 3 {59,366} (31.681)
Shara of profis of associates . 2
Share ol pofis of joint ventures 134 156
Prafit befare taxation 15,079 7341
Ineame ta 12 (17.061) (12,388
#rafit for the year 58.018 5 03
Attributable to:
Enquity shareholders of the Bank 57,696 55.911
Mon-contralhng inleredts 322 138
Earnings per share
Basic ard deduled [REE] I 229 1322

The noted on pages 171 1o 302 fodm part of thete fnancial stalemdnts
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Chima Maerchants Bank Xil Financial Statements
Armuial Report 2015
Consolicated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Lhapressrd m miliom of Bervrenki welers ofherwee daied]
R Hote Ll _ 291
Profit tor the year 58,018 56,049
Dther comprehersive income for the year
after tax and reclassification adjustments
Iresrs thiat wall be reclassifiod 1o profit o loss
Exchange difference on tansistion of financial
stazements af overea subsediaries GG a7
Auailable-for-sale linancial ausets
net movement in fae walue reserve 4,224 1415
Casn flow hedge: nat movement in hedging reserve 404 T8
Equity-accounted investess = shame of
i u:he'. Lﬂl‘h!_,‘ll!helt.ylhg 1:1|_;_|!|!g-. .E-.l_ ?f:
5.658 B 665
ftems that will net be reclassified subsequently
1o prafit o low
Remeasurement of defined benefit Lability 53] -
Other comprahensive income for the year, net of tax 13 5,605 B.665
Attributable to:
Equity sharrholder of the Bank 5,603 B 564
Not-contiodhihg thtedeiti 2 1
Total comprehensive Income for the year 63,623 64,714
Attributable to:
Equity sharehodders of the Bank B3.299 64,575
Mon-controdling intorests 124 139

The nates eh pages 171 to 302 form part of thete financial statements
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China Morchants Sank Xl Financial Statements
Annual Report 2075

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2015

(Espresuad i endlians of Aenminbi unhes siberaise stated!

Note 2015 1014
Assety
Cash 14,381 14,763
Frecious metals 16,059 15,232
Balances with central band 15 565,961 6398452
Balances with banks and other financial institubions 16 63,779 55,8980
Placements with banks ard other financal institutions i’ 185,693 124,085
arrounts held under resale agreements 18 343,924 344,980
Loans and advances (o customess 1% 1,738,444 1,448 754
Interest receivalibe 0 24,934 23,560
Fenancig assets at fair value throvgh proft o loss Hial 59,081 40,190
Dervate financial assess haif) 10,176 3,315
Available-forsale financial assets 2il) 299,559 278526
Held-to-matunty invesimants 2ch 353,137 255 434
Debt secwrities claswfied as recehvablos 2 Mi,064 AGB. 752
Interest in joint veniures FE | 2,732 1,465
Interest in aswciates 24 Ed 10
Froperty and squipmsnt 5 31,835 T 445
Invastment properties 16 1.708 1684
Intangible amets Fi 3.5595 ez
Goodwll 2B 8.954 9,953
Deferred 1oy asseis i | 16,020 To2an
Oher asiis n 12848 (AL
Total aisets 5474978 4,731 823
Liakilities
Basrawng from central bank 62,600 20,000
Deposits fram banks and other financial institutions n 1,561 657 448
Placemenis from banks and other financial institutians 32 178,71 4,603
Arrounts sold under epurchase agreements EE} 185,652 &6, 0ER
Deposits from customaerns # 3,571,658 3304438
Irterest payable E 9,073 A5 345
Fanancial fabifities at fair walue through profit or loss Faliz] 20,227 13,369
Derivatiwe financial liabilities AT 1.575 10746
Debt securities msued 36 251,507 106,155
Sataries and welfare payable Iial 6.524 6068
Tax payable E-. | 12,820 11,656
Deferred tax liabilities 9 Ba7 m
Other labilites » 64,345 1B.678
Tatal Habilities 5,113,220 4 416, TED

The notes on pages 171 to 302 foem part of these financial statements
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China Marchants Bank Xil Financial Statements 167
Annual Report 2015
Mote 2015 2014
Equity
Share capital 40 25,220 25,420
Capltal reserve 4 67,523 67,523
Irvestment revaluation resene a2 B,188 1.902
Hadging reserve 43 241 {163}
Surplus reserve i 34,009 16,650
Hagulatory general resene e B4.679 53,949
Retained profits 145,887 121,665
Proposed profit appropriations A6 17,402 16,897
Exchange rewve a7 1343) 11.309)
Tatal equity attnbutabée to equity shareholders of the Bank 360,806 4404
Mon-controlling interedts 57 952 ﬁ5§
Total equity 361,758 315,060
Total equity and liabilities 5,474,978 4. 731,829
Appioyed and sunthorred for nuee by the Board of Directods an 30 March 2016
Li Jianhang Tian Hukyu Campany Chop
Direciow Director

The not=s on pages 171 10302 form part of these financial staterrents
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China Maorchants Bank Xl Financial Statements

Annual Report 2015

Conso

For the year ended 31 December 2015

[Eapreweid oy rmllans o Benminbd iileis witerase stabed)

b

idated Statement of Changes in Equity

Tutad eaty arribetabsn 1 ety kirshosen ol e ek

It
Sur Opitl molution edgeg el
LI TR T

gt

Froposal
peunal Betarwd poi sy roiredeg
i welh ggrpnags wae il onhess ml

Hony-

2| laeary 1014 hin e [E L R E L AR 168 (LA e I
Chureye, gy fer o = - 43 M un e M L] W o wE
gkt by o st - . . ] - WM i W
&l (e comprierran ecoee T e i 1 - L & L ] P
ol o e e e AR A : T % am N um
b T by o i gy
i oo, b b, coerbutin
e ekl T e i g o
l Durmaa i wp-remyleg meny - - - Bom
£ ot mppemanom
o gt % 2 wRla R u - - - - fan S 1L - - -
o Ypprgratee sty pemd a3 - - - - m {lomn . - . - »
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o P e Fp o e 11 - - - - < (migd 17480 - . - .
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Tetal my vttty e o e et
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The notes on pages 171 ta 302 laem part of thede finencial statements.
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China Merchants Bank Xl Financial Statements
Annual Bepart 2015

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2015

[Raprevard i maliom of Beasenii wrler othereow daied]

S B o 205 204
Cash flows from operating activities
Mrafit before tax 15,079 1341
Adjustmants for:

- Imparment kosies on loans and advancey 57,507 ¥1,254

= Impairment losees on investments and other assels 1,759 427

= Unwind of discount [1.137) {655)

= Daprecation of properties and equipments and

Imvestment properties 4,086 3,535

= Amaortiation of othes assets 436 411

=Kot gam on debt seconties and equity msestments. 19008} @ATT

= Interest Ncome on investmants [48,175) EFRFELT]

= Interest expense on issued debl securties 1,150 3.8

= Share of profits of associates Fil 1]

= Share of profits of jaint ventures {134) {156)

= Mot gams on disposal of propertes and eguigment (4 (e}
Changes in:
Balances with central hank 38,085 55,267
Loans and advances 1o ustomers {347, 286) (331,091
Other axsets (26,683) (32,283
Doposts from customers 267, 260 529,162
Dopots and placements from banks and

other financial institutions 216,945 Gis, 561
Balanced and placements with banio and

other financeal institutions with origamal

mastuinty cwer 3 monthe 125,236 4 5049
Borrowng fram central bank 42,600 0,000
Cither labiktey 18,923 3693
Cath gnmat:d {roim n-pnrn'ﬂng activities 423,231 Fo1923
Income tax paid {22.811) (1§D, 750)
Net cash generated from operating activities 400,420 272,173
Investing activities
Payment for the pechase of investments (BRS5.591) [rar.a28)
Proceeds from the disposal of investments 451,491 579,100
Gans recaived from ipvesiments 51407 39,675
PFayment for the purchase of properties and eguipments.

and other assets [9.073) 8,125)
Proceeds from the disposal of properties and equipments

and other assets 167 1,297
Loans repaid by joint ventures 2 2
Net cash wsed in investing activities (371.603)

[Y75,879)

The not=s on pages 171 1o 302 form pan of thesa financial statements
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China Morchants Sank Xl Financial Statements
Annual Report 2015

Nate 2015 ?l_jlvt

Finanding activities
Froceeds from the sue of debt securimes 100 15,395
Proceeds from the issue of medium term nales 3.048 5.076
Proceeds from the sue of negotable interbank

certificates of depouts 190,867 24155
Proceeds from the ssue of certificates of depodits 23.105 1377
Proceeds from nan-cantralling shareholders B3 Bk
Hepayment of negotiable mierbank certificates of deposits {143,500} 3,000
Hapayment of certilicates of deposit {28,612) (317130
Repayment of redemption of non-controling equity (B3} (38}
Dividends paid {16,525) 15656}
Interest paid on issued debt securities {3,00G) 11,724}
Mot cash generated from financing activities 124,885 41873
Met ncresde n cash and cash eguivalents 153,702 118073
Cash and cash equivalents a5 at 1 January 471,47 349,949
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 10,670 349
Cash and cash equivalents a at 31 December ASHah 635,643 am.Aan
Cash flows fram operating activities [nelude:
Imterest recemid 189,783 1E8.752
Intereat puiel 95 409 12124

The notes on pages 171 ta 302 foim part of these financial statements
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China Marchants Bank Xil Financial Statements i
Arnnual Bepart 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Eagnerattd it milfeera O Berreanks wodess ocheiwias 1aied]

1 Organisation and principal activities
{a) Organisation

China Merchants Rank Co , Ltd. (*the Bank") i a commercial hank incorporated in Shenzhen, the Peaple’s Republe
ot China (the “PRE ). Whith the approvid of the Crena Secontes Regulatory Commission (the “C5RC*) of the PRC,
the A-Shares of the Bank were nted on Shangha Stack Exchange on 8 Apnl 20032

On 22 September 2006, the Bank's H-Sharos wore hsted on the Main Board of the S1ock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited {the “HKEx")

As a1 31 December 2015, apan from the Head OHice, the Bank had 47 branches i the Mainland China, Hong Kong,
New Yodk, Singapone s Lusemboury. 0 sddsbion, he Banik hay four repiesentatse olfices in Banjing, Loidon, M
Tork and Taipe,

(b) Principal activities

The prncipal aciwities of tw Bank and ity subsidiares (*the Group®) are the promion of corporate and personal
lanking seraoes, conducting teesvsy Rninms, the provision of aset managemsent and othes financial services

2 Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

These financal statements have bean prepared in accordance with Internatignal Financial Reparting Standands
(“IFR%s"] ang ita interoretations promulgated by the International Actounting Stancfards Bosrd [(TUASE™), and the
disglosure requirements af the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These fimangal statements alsa comply with the
Applicable divclolum proviion: of the Rulet Governing the Listimg of Securitiot an the HEEx

259/406
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China Maorchants Sank Xl Financial Statements
Annual Report 215

Significant accounting policies womma
Changes in accounting policies

Excepl lor the changes below, the Group has cotsstently applied the accounting polcies av 48t cut in Mote 2 1o
bath perinds presentad In these conso'idated firancal satements,

The Group hat adopted the following Annual (mprovemaents ta IFRS: with an indial effectve date of 1 Janwary 2015
. Defined Benelit Plans: Employes Contributions (Amendments to 1AS 19)

L] Annual Improverments to IFRS: 2010-2012

. Astrual Impdovements to IFRSs 200 1-2013

Amendments to (A5 19, Employee benefits: Defined benefit plans: Employee contribetions

The amerdments introduce & relief 1o reduce the complexity of accounting for certan contributions from emplopees
o third parties under defined beaefit plant, When the contributions are eligible for the praciical expedient provided
by the amendments, a compspy s allowed to recognise the contributions a5 a reduction o the service cosl I
the perind in which tha refated service is endered, instead of indudirg them in calculating the defined benefit
caligation, The amendments do not have an impact on these fmancial statements as the delined benefil plans
operated by the Groun are wholly funded by conlributions from the Group and do not involve contritiom from
employees oo thind paitiea

Amendments fo 145 27, Separate Finantial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

The Group has early adopited the Amendments 1o IAS 27 “Separate Fpancial Statements - Egwity Method in
Segarate Financial Satements” as at 1 lanuary 2015 with an effectve date of 1 fanuasy 2006 The amandments
allow an entity. 1o apply the squity method to aciount for s imvestments in subsidiaries, joint ventues and
associates in it teparate financial statements. The amendments shall be adopled retrotpectively. The adoption of
the amersiments can ediminate the differences in the subwequent measurement o joint ventures and associates of
the Groug in it separate financial statements prepared in accordance with the IFRS and the China Accounting
Standards isiued by the Ministry o Rrance of the PRC. and the adoption does not haye material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financal stalements

Basis of measurement

Unless stated atherwise, the financal stalements ane peideited in Ronmsnde (“RME" ] which = the Graup's functional
and phewentation cutrency, rounded 1o the nearedl million, unless othenwie stated

The financial siatements are prepared wing the histonical cost basis oxcept that financial assets and labilities at fair
value through profit or loss including dervatves, and avalable-lor-sale financial assets are stated at ther fair value.

The pieparation ol the financal statements in conformdy wwih IFRS) requoies manbgement fo make jutgomanti,
extrnatles and assumplsoms that affect the applcation of policies and reporied amounts af assets and Rabilties,
in¢ome and expenses The estimates and associated assumpliens are bosed on histonical enperience ard vanious
other faciors that are believed 1o be reasanable under the crcurmtances, the waults of which {enm the basws of
riaking 1he pudgements aboul carryring walues of aisets and liabikities thal are not wadily apparant from ather
wouroed. Actusl rmults may diffar from thew estmates

The estimates and underlying assumgptiens ane reviewed on an angoing basis. Revisions to accouniing estimates ane
recopgnised in the penod in which the estimate i revised i the revison atlects only that penod, or in the period of
the revision and future peripds  the revision affects both current and future periods

luggements made by management in the apakcation af IFRSs that have sanificant effect on the financial statements
and astimates with a significant risk of matesal sdpustment in the fulure pedod are discussed o Note 55.
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Significant accounting policies wommes
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subudianes ae entities cantralled by the Groug. The Group contrals 30 enlity when it i esposed, or has rghts, 12
wathable retuwins from (s mvioberment swith s edtily atd has the ability to alfect these retuting throdgh its pawes
over the enlity, When maeaing whelher the Group has powes, oy substantive tghits (held by the Group énd obber
parties) dre condidened.

An investmant in @ subsidiary & consalidated inta the comolidated financial statements fram the date that control
commences until 1he date that control ceases. Intii-aroup balinces. tramactions and cash flows and any unreallsed
prodits arising from intra-grous tansactions are elimindted in full in ereparing the consolidated financial statements,
Ursisalivetd baiss misudting Drom inira-growp aractions ate eliominabed o thie sarma way as incealned gains buld orly
to the extent that thene is no svdence of impasment

Mon-controlkng interests represent the eguily in a subsidiary not attnbutable deeclly or indrectly 1o the Bank, and
m respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms woth the helders of those interests which would
iesuflt in the group as a whale having a contractual abligation in respect ol those interests that meets the definitian
of a financial Nabity. For eacn business caombination, the Group can elect to measure any non-contrefling interests
elther at fain value of &t (el proporenate shate of the subsadiary’s identiliable nel asseti. Non-controlling intemssts
are presented in the consolidated statement of financual ponition and consolidated statement of changes in equity
weithin aguity, separately from equity atiributable to the shareholders of the Bank. Mon-controllng interests in the
mesults of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit ©f loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprebensive income a3 an allocation of the net profit of bess and total
comprehensye income Tor the year between non-contrelling mterests and the equity sharcholders of the Bank:

Changes in the Gioups mieresty in a subzidiary that do not retull in a loss of control are accoumted Tor o equity
transactons, whereby adjuitments are made to the smounts of controling and nor-contralling slerests within
cansolidated eguity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made 1o goadwill and no gain
o bods o recoganed

When the Group loses control of a subsdiary, it is sacoounted for 83 3 disposal of the entire interest i that subskdary,
with a resulting gain or loss-being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at
Ui dhatee whien control is Jost s recognied st faie value and this amount iy regarded a5 e fal yalise oo bndial
recogriion of a fenancial asser (see Mote 2l or, when appropriate, the cost on initla recognithon of an investment
in @ joint wenture (see hote 2iel} o, an assocate {see Note 2(T])

In the dank's watemont of financwl postion (e Note 600, its imvestmants 0 subudanes are s1ated &1 con less
allowarsces for impasment losses
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Significant accounting policies e
Joint ventures

A |oint wenture (s an grrangement (o which the Group has foint contrel, where by the Group bas flohts 1o fhe net
assels of the amangement, rather than rights to ity assers and obligatien for is liabilities.

loint control i the comtractualty agreed shanng of contral of an arrangement, which sants anly when decisans
About th refevant activities reguine thie unamimaut c3asnt af the parties shating eontrol

When judge whether theve o a joant control, the Group wisally considers the falewing cases:
- svhether any party within the joent arrangement cannot contral the rebevant activiters of the point veniures;

- wihether the decsyons abour the penl ventures' relevant aciwted requere the unanimous consent of the
parties sharimg contral,

The corolidated statement of proft or foss mcdudes the Group's share of the reulty of jom1 ventures for the
yoar and the consodidated statement of fmancial position includes the Group's shame of the net assets af the ininl.
Tl e

Imtorests in the joint vertures ae accaunted for wming the equity methed . They are initially recognised #t coit,
which inchudes transaction costy. Subsequent to imitial recogaibion, (he comsalidated fmancial statements include the
Group's share of the profit e lows and other comprehenssve income of the joint wventures, until the date on which
sigrificant mfluence of pont conhiol ceases

Irvestment in joint wenfures o asccounted for in the consclidated financial statements under the equity method
Under the equity methad, the ivettmend is initially recorded at cost, adjusted far any excess of the Group's share
of the acquisition-date faar value of the investee's ientifishle net amsets over the coy ol the investment ( any}
Thereafier, the investment i adiusied for the post acquisition change in the Group's thare of the joint vontures’ not
assely. Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the consolidated statement of prafit or ks includes the Group's share
of the past-acquizition, post-Lax reiults of the jont ventures far tha year, including any impairment 'o3d an goodwill
relating to the imvestment @ the joint ventures recognised foe the year (lee Notes 2(gh and 2{niik

\When the Group's share of losses euceeds it interess in the joint ventuies, the Group's interest is reduced 1o nidl and
recognition of furthed lones is discontimued except 1o the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behatl of the joint vertures. For thess purposes, the Group's interest in the joint
yentured is the tarrging amount of the investment under equity method together with the Group's interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net snvestment in tha joint ventuses.

Unrealised profis and bosses resulting Trom tremactions between the Group and ity oont ventures sre eliminasted
1o the extenl al the Group's inferest i the jomt veniures, encepl where uniealisid laiies provide evideade ol an
impairment ol the swset transferred, in which case they are recognized bmmediately n profit o boss

When the Group ceates 1o have joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for a5 4 disposal ol the entire
Interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or losi belng recogrined i the comolidated statement o profit or
loss. Any interest reteensed i thal former mester ot the date when joint conbol B fost is recognied al Taie value
and this smount 15 reganded a5 the fair value on intiel recognitron of a financial asmet Gee Note 20i0) o, when
appropriaste, the cost on initial recognition of an Investment in an asociate (see Mote 2.

In the Bank's statement of finarcial position (see MNote B0, nvestrments in joint ventures are #lated at <ost fess
Impaliment lowser
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Significant accounting policies cominwes

Associates

Aszooiale s anh entily in which the Group has slgnificant influence, bul not cantral, or joint contrel, over ks
managermnent, ingluding particpation in the financial and aperating policy decivans.

Significant influence i the power 1o participate in the financial and operating polcy decnlons of the mvester but s
not contial o joint control 'of these policies.

When judge whether there & a agniicant mtluence, the Group ussally consders the following cases
- repréissantatron on the Board of Disectors ar equivalent gownming body ol the investenr;

- pafucipati in polcy-making podesses;

- matenial transactiom bebtween the entity mnd ity investen

Intesests in the asscoates are accounted lor using the equay method. They are inmally recogrised at cost, which
includes tramsaction costs. Sdabsequent to initial recognition, the comsolidated fmancial statements incude the
Group's share of the profit or fods and other comgrehensive income of the assocates unlil the date on which
signifecant influence or joint cantrol ceases

Investment in asscciates b accounted dor in the consolidated finandial staterments under the equity method, Under
thar wquity method, thr investment o initially recosded st cost, adwsted for any excews of the Group's shame of the
acquisition-date far value of the imvestee's identifisble et asiety aves the coit of the investment (ol any), Theteafie,
the investrent (3 sdjusted for the post scouisdtion change In the Groups thate ol the asociates’ pet assets. Any
acquisition-date exceds over cosl, the corsoldated statement of prafit or lost includes the Groug's shaie of the
on-acguinton, posi-tax resulls of the associaioy Tor the year, including any impakrment lots on gooadwill relating 1o
the investment in the associaie reccgniied Tor the year (ee Notes 2(gh and 2{nHil)

‘When the Group's shate of losses edceads A3 infierest i the associates, the Groups interest s seduced fo nil and
recognition of further losses iy discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal o constructive
obligatons or made payments on behalf of the mscoiates. For these pusposes. the Groug’s interest i the associates
15 the carnging amodsnt of the invertment under equity method together with the Group’s interests that in substance
torm part of the Group's net investrrant In the asociaes.

Lirreafiisd prafits and losses reduiling from (ransactions between the Group and ifi associated are sliminated to the
entent of the Graup’s interest in the sosociates, except where unrealsed lodses provide evidence of an imparment of
thie atsel tramifemad, inowhich ek they ane recognised immediately in prafit o loss

When the Group ceases 1o have significant influence over an assocate entity, 1 is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire intesest in that investes, with a resulting gain o less being recegnised m the conselidated statament of profs
of loss. Any intenest retained m that former investee a1 the date when significant influence i3 les & recagrined a1
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(1)
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Significant accounting policies commea

Goodwill

Goodval iepresenty the saces of

(i thir agoregate of the fair value of the condideration translerred, the amount of any non-contoding menest in
thie aoguinee and the fair value of the Group's previously held eguity imterest in the scquines; over

{in the net falr value of the aogueree’s identifiable assets and habilines meadured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i, then this excoss Boecognised immediately In piofit o los & 4 gain on & Basgain
purchase

Gopdwil s stated at cost less accumulsted impairment. Goodwill arsing on 4 business combination 5 allocated
1o each CGL, or groups ol CGUS, that is expected to penelit from the syneigies of the combination and |s tested
anmually for impatement (see Note 2niil)

O disposal ol a CGU during the year any atbnbutable amount of purchated goodsall i included in the ealcuilation
of the profit o lons on disposal

Intangible assets {other than goodwill)

Irtangible amets are sigted st cost less accumarated amormisation lonly intangible assets with tancte useful lives) and
mpalernent losses (see Note Z2(r)(li)). Amodination of intengible assets with finkte usetul fves |s changed 1o profh or
lz4s an a siraight-line basis ever the amets” estimated uselul lives

Land wwe rights are stabed af coot, amontised on a straight-line ban over the iopective lease periods

Intangible assels are not amamsed while their useful lives are assessed to be Indsfinite. The Growp does not have
imtangibile assets with uselul lives ssessed 1o be nadelinite as 4t 31 Decemnbes 2005,

Bath the penod and method of amartraton are iediewed annual
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Financial instruments

Initial recognition and classification

Al fingncial assets and financial Eabilites ame recognided in the consalidated slatement of financlal peddion whon
and anly when, the Group becomes @ party 1o the contractual provesions of the instruments. Financial assets are
deretognised an the date when the contraciual rights 1o substacitially all the nsks and rewards of cenenhip o the
wash Tlowes eopre are transferred

Except for loans and non-standard debl investments that are recognised wing settlement date acccanting, purchass
af sale of other fmanoal assets is recognised uaing trade date accounting. From these date, any gams and losses
armlng Trom changes in fair value of ihe linancal assets of linancial habiltes measured at fai value are reconded.

Financial habiles are derscogrined on the dite when the obligations specshed i the contracts se discharged,
cancelled or expired

At initial recognitson, all finsnclal assets and labilives are meatwed a1 fai value. in the case of fmapcial assets
ot fimancial labikties ot st fair value thraugh profit o lods, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or e of the financal asset or fnancial lability unless the 1air value of that satrument is evadenced by
coimpanson with othes abservable cusrent market transactons in the same instrument {Le. without modification o
repacgaging) of based on a valuaiion technigue whose wanables include observable market data. Transaction costs o
limancial assets and Habilities at lair value through profit or lows ae sapensed inmadiately.

The Group clavides s Bnsncal matruments imto different categones al wcepbion, dopendng on The purpose for
which the sa30ts were acquired o the lisbilities were mewred, The categories aie:

- Financial assats and financial fasbilies at fasr value theough profit or less, include these financial assats and
financial lakifities held principally for the purpose of short term profit takieg and thow fmancial aoets and
liabifities that are designated by the Grous upon recognitbon o at fair value through profit o koss

All detrvatives not qualified lo hedging prrpoies are included in this category and are carried a5 avsets when
thesr {air value it positive and o lisbdities when thear Tair value i@ negathe

Financial instruments are designated as financal asets and financial liabilities at lair value through profit o
loss upon initial recognition when

- the assets of labilites aie managed, svalusted ad reported nternally on & laic value basiy

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would otheraise
ar e

- the awset of liability contans an embeddeéd dervative that sigmilicantly modifies the cash flows that
would atherwrie be eguired under the contract; ar

- tha separation of the embedded darivatres from the financial imstrument is not prohibited
- Held-tor matuny strestmenty

Hedd-to-matunty investments are non-dervative fimancial assets with fwed matarity and foeg or determinable
payments that the Group has the positive intent and ability 1o hald to maturity,
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Significant accounting policies e

Financial instruments joonnnued)

Initial recognition and classification [cannnusd)
Loans and recenabli

Loans and recewvables are non-deswatve finanoal assets with laed o determinable payments that are not
quoted in an aclive market, other than thote that the Group miends 1o sell immediately of in the neas term,
and those that ane designated as avmlable-for-sale linancial assets upon mitial recagnition,

- Awailable-{oe-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale linanca assets are financal assets that are dessgnates a5 available-fos-sale or are not
classilied a5 financial assets at faer value theough profa or loss, loans and recelvables or held-to-maturity
AneLTMENTE

- Db francial Habikties

Other finanoal Rabilies, other then that ot Tair value threugh profit o loss, are maasured ab amorised oost
wsing the ffective interest method

Subsequant to indial recognition, linancial aswets and financial habilitiey are moawned at fair value, without
any deduction Tor tramection gosts that may ooow on sale of ofber disposal eacept for loans and regeivabiles,
held-to-maturity iveestments and financial Nabibties not at fair walue theough pralit or los, which are measured &t
amarised cost wing the effectoe interesd method

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and changes thesain, including any
Interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit of loss

Subsaguont 1o sufial fecognition, they o meaturod at Tals value and changei thenpin, ather Than imuarrmat |Eied
and foseign cusrenty differences on debt instruments, are meognised = 001 and accumudlated i the falr value
feabrve. When Dhess asiett are derecogiised, the gain ar lesd aceumulated i eauity it reclassibiod 1o pralil at lois

For financial assets and Nabidtes measured at amortiied cost, @ gain or o35 15 recognied in the consolidated
staternent of peofit o loss when the financal asset or llability is derecognised. impained and amortised.

Fair value measurement principles

Fair value is the price that would be recefved 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer & lability in an crderly transaction
batwean mivket participants at the measurament date in the principal o, in 113 amence, the most advartageosus
mmarket to which the Group has access at that date. The Fawr value of a hability reflects its non-performance risk.

When avaifable, the Groap measeres the fae value of an instrumen) wung the queated prce inan active marker for
that anstument & market o regarded 80 active i ranssctions of the gssets o labiltes take place with sutfeent
treguency and volume 1o prowde pricing anlormation an an orgoing baus. I thete & no gquated price in an acive
marked, then the Group wses valuation technigues to manmise the use of elevant obdendable inputy and minkmise
the use ol unobservable inputs. The cholen valuation technspee incorporates all of tne Tactors that markes
participarts would account in pricing a tranzaction.
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Financial instruments ‘continued)

Hedge accourting

The Group desgnates ceran dorvatived ad hedges of lighly probable Tutuie cash flows aftsibutable te a recogningd
asset o Hability, or a forecast transaction (“cash {iew hedge™) Hedge accounting is applind to derivativves designated
13 hdglng instriimerts i cach flew hiedgo pruudnd cortaim cirberia are fmak

it the Gioup's policy o doeoement, at the inception of a hedgng relatomhip, the relabomhip between the
hedging imstrements and hedged (terra, an well as its sk management objecive and strategy for undersking the
vedge. Such pohoes also require documentation of the asseisment, bath a1 hedge mception and an an ongaeng
basts, ol whether the dervatives that are wed in hedging trantactions ace highly éflective in olfsetting dhanges in
cash flows of Pedged ems attnbitable to the bedged mbs

Cazh flow hedge

The efiective portions of changes in the fair value of dervatres thar are dessgnated and qualified as cash fhow
hadge are recogrised i other comprehinsve income and sccumulsted separately o egquity, Amy gain or lots relating
o an inefiective portion 1s recognised immediately in the consolidated staterment of profit ar lods within = trading
profits® of “other nat income”

Tor cash thow hedge of 4 recogrised auset or Kability, the sisociated cumulatsee gam or loss i reclnssified from egquity
1o the consolidated statermernt of prold of Iass m the same penods during wiich the hdquﬂ cavh flow alfect pm||.1
and los. When a hedgeng mstrument expires of 1% sold, or when a hedge no loager meets the citeria for hedge
accounting, ary curmuelative gain or loss at that time memaims in equity untll the forecast tramsaction fs witimately
mcognised in the comolidated staterments of grofit or loss. When a forecast trandactson o no longer expocted 1o
oocur, the cumulotee gaan or lods that was ecognised in sther comprehonsive income 4 immediately reclassifiod 1o
thir cansofidated satarment of profit or ks

Hedge effectiveness testing

i cedor to quaiily Tor hedge accounting, the Group carmies oul prespective effectiveness testing to domanstrate that
it expects the hedge 1o be highly effective at the inception ol the hedge and theoughout its Nle. Actual elfectiveness
iretrospective effectiveness) is alv demonstrated on sn ongeoing basis

The documantabion ol sach hedging relationship sats out how the efleciiveness of the hedge & anesed The
melhod the Group adopts for amesung hedge effectveness will depend on its itk managament rategy

Tor prospectios ellectiveness, the hedging instrument m expected to be highly effective n achieving olfsetting
changes i cazh Tlews attributable 1o the hedged ik during the pedod for wihich the hedge s designated. Fos
actual plectiveness, the change m cash llows must offset each other m the tange of 80 per cent ta 125 per cent foe
thi hedge ta be deemed haghly sflectiee

Berivatives that do not gualify for hedge accounting

All gaing and lasses from changes in the fair value of dervatives that are managed in conjunction with financlal
mstnuments designated at fair valoe and do not qualdy for hedge accounting are recognised Immediately m the
contoldated stalement of peolit o0 loss Thase gains and losses are recognised in “tradmg prafits® of “other net
mrome”

267/406

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooood

178



180

(i)

fiv)

v}

i)

China Maorchants Sank Xl Financial Statements
&nnual Report 215

Significant accounting policies o
Financial instruments joonninued)

Specific [tems
Cash equivalents

Cash eguivalents compise balances wih banks amd the central bank, and shor-term, highly liguid sreestments
that are readily convertible into known amounts ol cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of dhanges in
value, having been within three months ef matunty at acquitiben

Placements with bankt and other financlal Institutions

Banks represen: other banks approved by the Feople's Bank of China ("PBOCT) and other authorites. Other
fimancial institutions represent finance companies, nmvestmen! trust companies and leasing companias which
are regateied with and under the supervision of the China Banking Regulatory Commission (the *CBRC®) and
Insurance compandes, secunbies firms, and inyestmant fund comparmias, ste which are registered with and undes the
superytion of other regulatory authontes. Flacements with banks and other financial institutions ae accounied for
&% loans and recevables,

Investments

Equity vwestments are accounted for as fmancial assets al fair value through prafit of loas or avadable-forsabe
finapcial aszets. Dent invesiments are classifled &5 financial assats at fair value through profit or Toss, held-to-maturity
irvestmeniy, debd securitien classified as recsivables, and available-forsale bnancial aisets in acoorgance with the
Groop's holding intention at acquisibion

Loans and advances fo customers

Lears and advances directly granted by the Group to customers, participation in syndicated loans and finance leases
recesables are accounted fof & loars and advances Lo cusiomers

Derivative financial inatruments

The Group’s derivathe financial instraments mainly inchade spot. forward, forelgn currency swaps, mierest Tate
swaps and option contracts underiaken in response to custorners’ needs or for the Group’s own asset and liabdity
management purposes To hedge against mks arising from dernatve transactions endertaken for customers, the
Grouwp enters into similar denvalve contracls with other banks.

Dervitr frnancial instruments ane tated at fad vaboe, wath gans and loses arong recognised i the consolidated
staternent of prohit or loss other than cash llow hedge, for cath flow hedge, the gami and losses arling from the
effecivg hedgng part recogniied in other comprebensive ngom

Embadded derivatives

Dervatmes may be embedded m ancther contractual arangement (a host contracth The Group sccownts far an
embedded dervative separately from the host conbract when:

. the host contract is nat itself carmed at far value theough prafit or loss;

- the termi of the embedded dermative would meet the definition of 4 denvative I they were cortalned in &
separate contrect; and

= thee etonomic charsctenstics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic
characteristics and risks of the host contract,

Separated embedded dervates are messured at lalf value, with all changes in falt value recognised in prafin or
loss unless they form part af a quaifying cash flow ar ret nvestment hedging relationship, Separated embedded
derivrives are presented (n the statement of financla! podithan logether with the hest contract
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Significant accounting policies e
Financial instruments feantinued)

Securitiiations

The Group securitnes vamous chedil smsts, winch genecally meults m the sale of these saets 1o special puipose
ertidies, which, m tun ssue securidies to investors Interests m the securitned financial assets may be retened in the
lorm o dendar ar i tranches, o ather retidusl intereits {retained intereits), Retained mioreits ade italed at lair
walue an the statement of fmancial position of the Growp. Gains or losscs on secuntisation depend on the carmpng
armount of the taniferred findancial disets, dlocated betwoen the finanoal aiiels duretognized and the relaned
miterests based an ther relateve fair value at the date of the transter, Gaens or losses on securitication at recorded
"ather Gl indomn "

When applyng the polces on securtised fmancial assets, the Group has considered both the degee of transfer
of risks dnd rewlards on the Lansterred financlal assety and the degree of contrel exercised by the Group over the
transfemed financial assets:

when the Group tramtfors wh:.lanli:"y all the ntky and reward: of ownerthip of the financial amets, the
Group shall dewcogrise the financial assets;

- wehien (e Group retain substantially all the dsks and rewards of ownership of the hnancial asiets, the Grous
shall continue 1o recegmise the financial assets; and

- when the Group nieitber translers nor netars subslantially all the mks and rewards of owriership ol the
financial awets, the Group would deterrmine whether it has retained contnal of the finapcal assets. If the
Groug has not refained contral, it shall derecogne the financial asiets and recognise separately a3y assets
or Habiies any tights and obligations cranted or retained i the transfer If the Group kas retained contmal,
it sha'l continue to recoghine the financial asiels 1o the extent of s corlEiEng invaliemant i the financlal
et

Equity instrument

The comidevation receéived ltom the msuwance ol eguity instruments nel o ronsecton costs is recognised in
shareholdens” equity. Consideration and tramaciion omts paid by the Group lor repurchasing self-naved equity
ingtruments are deducted from shareholders’ squity

Perpetwal bonds

Al bl fecognition, the Group elmadlies the peipofusl bonds dudd of their camponenti as finandal aduets,
linencual liabilises or equily inattuments bmed an fheir contractual Yerms and iheir economic ebilance aller
canildering the delirition af Tinancial asders, financial labilities and equity Insrements,

Perpeiual bonds issued that should e classified as equity instruments am recognied In equity bawed on the actual
ameund recenved. Any distribulion of drvidends or interests dunng the instiumenis' durateon s treated a5 profit
appropriation, When the pernpetual bonds are redeemed according to the confractual terms, the redemption price s
charged to eguity
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Significant accounting policies o
Property, equipment, investment property and depreciation

Property, eguipmien and imeelinenl properly, dre slated af cosl of desmed cost less sccumulaled depreciations and
impaliment lossed. These alia include land held under operatng leases and buildings therean, where the fair valie
af the leasehald fntesest n the land and bulldings cannot be messured separitely 81 the inception of the leaie and
the building i not clearly held under an opetaling laade

Deprectation is calculated to write off the cost of property, equipment and ivestment progerty aver ther following
eilinated velul lves, albei Laking imo accowil an etimated nesldual value o a draight-ling basn

Huddsngs 20 ypears
Imastmsnt propertim 20 yoars
COrmEniler equpment 3 years
Muatar vehicles and athers 3 -5 years
Leasehald improvamants (leassng property) 3 years
Leasehold mprovements (self-owned property) the estimated wselul lives

Construction in progress represents proparty under construction and iy stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost
cearpptives e direg and indiredl oot of consbrection: Construction in progres o ramlered o an Jppropriaie clas
of property and ather assel when the asset i ready for s intended use. No depreciation is pravided for construction
In peogress

The carrylng amount af propedy, equipment apd Investmant propeity |8 revewed petiedically i ofdar £ adueis
whethet the recoverable amount has dedined below the catrying amount. When such & decline has occurred,
the canrying amiufil 5 teduced 16 the ecoveiable ameunl. The amaunt al smpisment loss ls recognied ih U
comolidated statement of profit of bpys, The mweoverable amoand al an aset n the greater of Hs feir velos lms
disposal expenise and prevent value of futuie expected ash flow. In assesiing value in wie, the estmated future caiky
{iows are duscounted 1o their presend values

Subsequent expenditure relating 10 & property, equipment and investrment properly Is capilalised anly when it is
probatbde that future economic benefits associated with the property and equipment will flow 1o the Group, All ather
expendilure n recognised in the comolidated statement of profit or loss a5 e expense as incurred

Prafits or losses on disposal of property, egupment and imvestment property ae determned as the difference
betwesn the net duposal proceeds ane the carrying amount af the prooerty, equipment, Investment property and
are accounted for in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as ey arse.
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Significant accounting policies e

Repossessed assets

I il receovery af impared loans and recevables, the Group may Take posseision of assets held as collateral thraugh
ol procesdings of voluntary delivery of possession by the borowers When it L intended ta achieve an arderly
realiation of the smpased avsets and the Group B no eager deaking repayment fram 1he borrowers, reposusssed
asuets arg repodted in “olher asier”

Repossessed asaets are measured at fair value af the dote of exchange, They ane nat deprecsated o amortised.

Impairment lodses on imtal classfication and on subseguent rermeasurement are recognised In the condolidated
satement of profit or loss

Finance and operating lease

Classification

Lease ls dassified into finance ond opersting leate. & finance beaase is & lease that tramsiers substantially 8l the ks
and rewards ancidental to ownerahip of an asset. Title may or may not eventually be vansferred An operating lease
s o bease other than a finance lease.

Finance leases

‘Where the Group 14 38 lessar under Inance leases, an amount repeesenting the net investment in the lease s indluded
in the staterment of fimanclal position as “loans and sdvances 1o custemens” Unrecognaed finance income undes
fimance lpases are amorised using an effective Inteien rate methad over the lease term. Finance income implicia
in the |pate payment is recognized a3 “interest incorme” over the period of the leases in preportion to the funds
invested Impairment lesses are scoounted for in accosdance with the aocounting pelicy as set aut in Nate 2inH)

Operating leaios
- Operating lease

Rintal payments under opefating lemes sie fecognived & Coili of sipunies of a dralght-line badls over
the lease term. Contingend rentals are charged to profit o loss in the accounting penicd i which they are
incurred

- Asgeti leared out under operating leases

Property, squiprment and imeesbmen propirly based oul under opedating lpdisaes ain depreciated i saccordance
with the depreciation policies described in Mot 201 and A ympaired, impairment loises are provided for in
sccoedance with the sccounting pnhqr descrrbed in Mate Finli), Income derved from oparating |leases s
recognined in the staterment of profl or low wsng the sfraghit-line method ower the Ipase form., It mitial
ditest conts incurred in mapect of the ntsets leased out are maderial, the coits are mitinily capitalised
and subzequenily amortised in profitl or lows over the lease term on the same basis a3 the ease income,
Dtherwise, the cous are charged to prafit or loss immediately. Contingent lease income is charged to profi
or less in the sccounting period in which they are incurmed.

Resale and repurchase agreements

Amounts for purchase of finonoal assets under resale agreements are accounted for under “amounts held undes
resale agreements®. Amounts from sale of finandal assets. under repurchase agreements are scoounted for unders
“amounts sald under repurchinze agreements”,

The dilference betweon the purchase and resale consideration or salé and repurchase consderation i amortised aver
thit peviod of the transaction wiing the elffective intonest method and i included in intenedl Come of expente, a5
appropriate.
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Significant accounting policies comma
Impairment

Fimancal assety

Fenancial aisets ane aiieitod a1 the end ol each roparting peniod o detosming whether there |4 any objective
evidonce that a fmancial assed of a group of financial assets i impaired. & fnanclal assed or a group of financial
aksali K -T'Ipﬂ.l'.d aivd imparment [Gited ard incurmed W, and unh' W, thara i ahjectwi aildence ol imparment &
resilt of ane ar mome events that occurred alter the initial recognition af the ased and that svent or evenisd has
an impact on the estmated fitues eath flows af the fmancial asist or ghoug al hnancal asviets that can b roliably
eibmated. Ohjecine evidenced include

- signifecant financal difficulty ol the ssuer or barrewer;
o @ brwach of contract, such w a defaull or delavguancy in intevest o prnopal pepmanis,
- it becoeming proballe that the botrewer wall snter hankruptoy or other financal reoganivation,

. ugnifecant changes m the technological, market, econemic or legal ervironment that have an adverie cficct
o the borroswer,

. diappearance of an active masket for linancial assets because of Ninanceal difficules; o
- A significant of pralanged decline in the fair value of an investmient in an eguity insoement below i1s cost

Impairment losses ane written ofl againct the comesponding assets dwectly, excep? for impairment losses moognized
b respect f loans and receivables and held-to:maturity investments, which are maasured at amortsed oo, whose
recovary i considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairmant leises are recarded wsing an allowance
account, When the Group is satsfied that secovery s remaote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against loams and recervables or held-to-maturity investments derectly and any amounts held in the allowance
accoint relating 1o that bomowerinweiiment are reversed. Subsequent movenes of amounts previously chamed
fo the allowance account are revarsed against the aflowance account Other changes in 1he allowance account and
subsequent recovenes of amounts prewausly written off directly are recognised m conslidated statement af profit
o foss

Impairment loises on loans and recevables, held-to-maturity investments

The Grous uses two methods of asessing impaitment losses on boans and receivables, hedd-to-maturity investmants:
those assessed ndividually and those assessed on a collective basa

- Individually assessed

Loany and recavables, hald-to-maturity invesiments whach are considerad individually sgnidficant are assessed
indieidually for impaliment.

impairment allowances are made on mdradually impaired sgrificant loans and recevables, held-to-maruriny
imvestments when there s objecte evidence of (mpalrment that will impact the estimated future cash floves
ol the loans and recevables, held-lo-maotunty. investments. indaidually impaired lbams and advances are
graded a5 substandard ar below,

Impairment allowance of an indivdually impaired sgnificant foans and receivables, held-to-maturity
invistmenly is mesured as the dillerence bebessn the loan and eceivablm, beldste-matuny investments”
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows dicounted al the lnans and
mecesvanles, helddo-matwty investments” applicable effective intevest rate. The carrying amount of the loans
and recevables, held-to-maturity investments s reduced through the allowance Tor impairment lovses

The calculation al the prezent value of the estimared future cash flow: of a colisteralised loans and
recenvankes, held-io-matunty Investments reflects the cash flows that may result from foreciosure less costs
Tor ebtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosse |4 arobable.
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2 Significant accounting policies e

{n) Impairment jontinued)

i Financial assets (contiued)
Impairment lasses an loans and receivables, held-lo-matusity investments fcantinued)
- Collertrvaly assaised
Impairment alioesances are calculated on a collective basis for the following:

- no objectve esidence of Impairment exits for g intividually assessed loans and receivables, held-1o-
maturily imestments; and

- far hurr.l:rgnnlum. groups of boans and meceivables, hn'd-mnm.llurlhr myveslmanty that are not
mdvesttally lngnlrir_'ﬂ wath simitar eredit nsk charactenshics

Incufred bul not yel identifred impanment

Il no chjpctive evidence of impalrment exlsts for an eedicually stwesied loans and receivables, hald-1o-
maturity irveikmants an oan individual Basis, whether tignitccant or not, the lsany and moceivabley, haold-1o-
matutity Investments ane grouped 04 poal ol loans with similar credit risk charactenistaes foe the purpaw of
clculiting & callsctive impairmant aliowance. Thiv allovance eovert [oams and weenvablong, hold-loamaturity
imestrments that awe impaired at the end af the seporting pedod but will not be indiuidually idenbified a3
wehy umdd some time i the future. A1 wan as nformation i1 availsble that spacifically ifa il ohjsctve
maidence ol empastment on incdredfual lnans snd secesvahles, held-to-matursy [nsestments in the poal of nans
and receivables, hold-do-mitunity invedmenty, thow oany and recoivables, heid to-mahority mamctments are
remoeed lrom the pool Loans and recernables, mpdd-tp-maturity investments that are ndiidoally assessed foe
impairrmant and far which an impairmant lotis o continusd 1o be recognited are nod ingluedsd in a collsctive
asvessrnent for impadtment, The collective assessment aBowance e determined alter taking snin account

the structure and risk characteristics of the Group's laan portfalio {indicating the bomower's ability to
repay all loans) and the eapected loss of the mdividual companents of the lpans and recevables, bald:
T maturity investments portfolio based primarily on the historical losa operience;

- the emergmnce period between a loss ofcurring and that loss being identified and evidented by the
eutablishirent of an allowince against the les 6n o individual laans and feceivables, beld-1o-matudty
mveiimenis, and

- management's judgement as fo whether the current atonomic and oredit conditons am wuch that
the actual level of inherent losses is likely to be greater or less than that supgested by histonical
EEpEnance.

Homagensous groups of loans and recesvables, held-to-matunty Fivesiments

Portiotios of hemogenesus loans and receivables, held-to-matunty investments are collectrely assessad uung
rall rate or hstoncal boss rate methodologies. Overdue perod represents the magor obsenvable objectve
evidence far impairment

Impairment fesies are recogneed i the comolelated stnement of prodin or loss

if, in a subssgLent period, the amount of the impasrment lois decreases and the decrease can be related objectwely
o an event cecwurring afler the impalmment was recoghoed, the previoudly recognised impairment loss b reversed,
The reversal shall not result In & carrying amount of the loans and receivables, held-to-maturity imsstments that
eacegds the amortised cost &t the date the impairment s roversed had Lhe impairment not been ecognised. The
amaant of the reversal iy recognined in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
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Significant accounting policies e
Impairment foontined

Fimandial assets ‘conpinued)
Imp.llmulnt lories on loant and receivahlod, Hdv!u-m.llurfb' inwestmenti (Eanbinuged)

When the Group detesmines that loons and recevables, beld-to-maturiy irvestments has no reasonable prespect of
recorery after the Group has completed all the necessary legal or other procesdings, the loans and recetvables, held-
to-malurity imestments is wiitten ofl againgt s allowance for wmparment losses. Amourt recowered Tram loans and
recessables, held-to-maturity im‘estments thal has been written off will be réversed throegh the impalrment losses
acoount in The consobdated statemant of profit of loss

Loam and advances with ronegotaled termay are loans that hawve been reitruciuied due o detenioration in the
borawer’s financal poution anc where fhe Group hos mode concesuons that it would not otherwise conuder.
Aenmogotiated loan: and advances are subject 1o ongoing manitoring te determire whether they remained as
impairad or owerdup

Impairment fosses on available-for-sale Tnanclal assets

Whan a deckne m the far walue of an avalable-or-sale linanoal asse has bean recognmed 1n other comprehonine
inezme and there is objetiive evidence that an available-forsale finenclal asiet b dnpaired, the cumulative loss
that had bewn recogived direclly in other compishenive incame is removed from other comprehensive income
and 13 recogrided in the contolidated staterment of profit or loss even though the financial asset has not been
derecognised

The amount of the cumulative Bess that is recognised in the consolidated siatement ol pmfit of |oss o the
diflérence between the acquisition cost (net of amy principal repayment and amortisation] and current fair value,
lesy any impaiemient loss on that asset previomly ecognised i corsolidated statement of profit o loss Far an
available-for-sabe asset that is not cored at fair value ad s fair value cannot be reiably measured, such as an
unguoied equity nstrument, the amount of any mpaisment loss 5 measured as tha difference between the carmying
amount of the firanoial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows givcounted at the cuwrrent market
rate of retumn for a umilas fenancial asyet,

I, it & subtequent petiod, the tair value of & doht mtrument davilied av svnilable-torwale inotmaset and Thee
inCreasey can be obgectively related 1o an event otcurning alper the rmpairmen ] losh was fecogrsend in the
consolidatled statement af prnfll of lois, the mpairment Bt is overed, with the amount of the reversal boing
recoghiied in the consalidated statement of prolit e b

Impairment losses recognised i the consolidatod statemant of profit or loss for an investment in an equity
instrument clasified A available-forsale are not reversed throwgh the conalidated statemant of pofit or fow Ang
subsaguent incraase in the dair valie of these st i recognised diesctiy in pquity

Other assets

Irlernal and eddernal souncis ol information ere reviesed ol the ed of the reporling period to dentily indications
that other assets may be ympatved or, except i the cawe of goodwill, an mpairment loss previowsly recognized no
longer axists or may have decreased.

It any such indication essts, the assets recoverable amount 15 estimated . In addition, for goodwill, iIntangible asseis
that are nat yel avalable lor use and intangible assets that have Indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estmated by the Group at the end of the reparting period whether or not there s any indication of impaiment
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Significant accounting policies e

Impairment jcontinued)

Other aisets fcantinued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverab'e amount of an asset 1s the greater of its far value net denosal expense and the present value
of fulure cash Tlow. In assessing vilue in wse, the estimated {uluwee cash flows are discounted to their present
vl uning & pre-tax disoount rate that reflects current market assessments of tere value al meney and the
risks speeific 1o the assel. Where an assst does not genesate cash inflows largely independent of thase fram
othes assets, the tecoverable amownt 5 determmed for the smallest group of assets that generated cash
inflows independently (e, & cah-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment loaes

An impasrment loss 15 recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss whenewer the carmpng
amount of #n asset, o e cash-gensiatng unl to which it belongs exceeds s recoverable amounl
Impairment [osses recognaed in respect of cash-gensrsting units are allocated frst 10 reduce the carmying
amount of any goodwill allocated 19 the casn-generating unit [of gioup of unitd and then, to reduce the
carging amount of the other sisets in the undt (of group of units) on a pro rats basis, except that the
caimying value of an asser will not be reduced below s Individual faer value less cosis to sell, or value in use,
if determenable.

Reversal of impairment loisex

Cnge mcognised, the impairment lomses wall never be peyered

Convertible bonds issued

At initial recognition the llability compoment of the comertdile bonds swed s calculated as the present value of
the futune interest and principal payments, discouwniod at the marcet tats ol intereit applcable oy the time of ndtial
recognition to umilar debt tecurities that do not have @ fonversion aption The Labdity companent s subsequently
carned at amorised cost until i1 15 converted or redesmed Any edcms of proceeds over the amount inially
mecognized as the liabiFity component |5 mn substance an option and (5 recognised a3 the equity comparent in the
capital resonde,

if the sond & conwerted into shasmes, the carrpng value of the kability compenent and army imlerest payable al
the time of conversion, are transierred fo “share capital® based on the numbears of shares issued a1 par and the
differences are recognined as share premium in capital reserve
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Significant accounting policies wommea
Financial guarantee issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

Finandal guarantess lsued

Faancial guataniees are contracti that ieguire the |aswer (Le. the guarsntor) 12 make spectied payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarartee (the holder) for a foss the holder incurs because a specificd debtar fails
to maks payrmont when due b accordance with the lermy ol a debd matrument

Where the Group sswwes a finenosl guarantee to customers, the fmr value of the guarantee (baing the guaantee
fees recerved) is inhially recognned o deferred income within *other Labilities®.

The deferred mccme n-amodned in the consolidated statement of orofit or lows over the torm of the guarantee as
incame from financial guarantees nsend. In addition, previnions are recogniied in accordance with Note 2nlin} and
wiheen (a) it becomes probable that the halder of the guarantee wall call upan the Group uncer the guaraniee, and
(b} the smount aof that claim on the Growp 1 sxpected 1o encood the amount curiontly carned n other Rabilities i
respect ol thal guarantes 1o the arnount enetilly :nmgrumd. s accurnulated amorfatson

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Proemacns. are recognned Tor Gabilites ol uncertam TG o amount when the Group has & legal or comitrucime
calgation aniang as a rewult of & past event, it 13 probable that an outflow of economic benelits will be reguered o
setile the chligatian and a reliable ewymate can be mace. Whens the tme value of maney i matenal, provition ane
stated ot the prewent value of the expanditures npn-t't,ud 1o sottle the |:||:||i|;a'|.|-|:|r'|.

Whare it s nol probable that an outflow of economic benafitn will e egueed, or the amount canrol be astimated
reliably, the obligation & disclosed s a contingent labifty, unless the probabsdity of outflow of economic bencfits i
remote. Possible obligations, whese existence will only be confirmed by the ecourance of non-gooumence of one or
e {uture svents are bl disdoied ax contingent liabilities anless the probabilty of outflow of economic benefis
in remnte
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Significant accounting policies e

Income recognition

Interest incame

Intevest mcome i recognised in the conicldated statemient of profit of loss on an accruals basis, taking into sccount
the offectere interest rate of the Mstrument or an appllnhln floatmg rate. Interest income ncludes tho amortizatian
of any ditcaunt or prormium ar othes differoncet Between the indlial carrying  amaunt af sy dntereil beanag
mistrument and 15 amewnt 4t maturity cabulated on an effective intenest rate basis

When a financial asset or o group of financial assets are impalred, inferest incoame 13 recognised on the impaired
financal assets using the rate of interest used to discount future cash flows Tor the pupose of measuring the retated
impadrment bess

Intercst mgome and expenscs from all financeal assefy and abilities that am classfed as fmanoad awsets at far valug
threugh profn or lous are consdered 1o be incidental and are therofare prosented together with all ather changes in
fair value arming {roem the portlalo. Net income from linancal mitrumaents desgnated a3 Tasr yalue through p-ofn
of low and nel trading income comprnet all gaing and louses from changés in Lasr valies (net & sccrued coupon) of
wuch financial assety and firancial hatattes, together with interest income and experse, foresgn exchange diffeences
and dividend incodme sittibutable 1o thase financial ingruments

Fee and commission incame

Foo apd commissisn income (4 recognied n the comaolidated statement of prolit or iois when the coresponding
iervice i provided

Pividend income

- Ciwidend imcame from listed investments j1 recognited when the undedlying investment i declared
ex-dwidend.

- Whiere the investments are uniated, interim dividend mcome s recognived when declared by the Board of
Directors of the investess. Final dividend income & recognised only when the amount propased by the Board
of Directors of the mestees is appecved by shaseholders at genaral meatings

Premium Income

Premium income represents gross insuance premium written less reinsurance cedad. as adjusted for unearned
premiem, Gross premiums written are recognised at date of risk inception
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Significant accounting policies i
Taxation

Currgnt income tax and movements in deferred tar balances are recognised in the conelhidated statersen of prafit
or legi encepl 10 the exienl that it relates 1o ilems recognied giectly i equily, in which case i 4 mcoagnized n

#quity

Currmiit tan s the eapectid tax payabibe on the facable incormé (o6 U pear, wikig Lok rales enacted of substantially
enacied al the end of the reporting penod, s any adiustnent 1o lax payeble in repect of prenows years

Deferred tax i provided using the statement of financlal position kabdity method, for temporary différences between
the campng amounts of aseets and habiltss for financal reperiing purpases and the amounts wsed for tacation
putpases. Deferred tax asseti also adse from unused tax losses and unused tax credits. The amount of defered
tan provided & based on the espected manner of realiation or settlement of the carying amount of aswets and
[sabilitses, uting tax rales enacted or substantially enacted at the and af the reporting penod . Defered tas assety and
fsabilitees are not oisoounted

A deferred tax assst B tecognived anly to the extent thot it i probable that future taxable profity will be available
aganat which the aset can be utiliied. Delerred tax auets are reduced by the cxient that # n no longer probable
that the related 1ax benefil will be realked

Current tax balances and deferred rax balances, and movements therain, are presented separaiely lnom each other
and are not offset. Curent tax assets are offset against current tax labibities, and defened tan assets against
deferred tax liabilities if the Group has the legally enforceable rght to set olf current tas assels against current Tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions are met

- in the case of current tax assets and lisbdities, the Group intends evber 10 wentle on & nel bain, o to realive
{he siiet and setile the |u|:||ll1.j' :II‘I'u.lh.lnm.qu: %]

B m the case of cefered tax assets and linbelities, f they relate to income tanes levied by the same taxabion
authorny on pither

- the waimn tawable entity, ar

diffwrent taxable entities, which, in each fulure period in which significart amounts of deferred tax
liabifities or assots are expected 19 be sett'ed or recowered, infend to realine the current tax assets and
satile the current tas Makilities on a nirt basts or readise and Settle simuftancosisly

Foreign currencies translations

Manetary assets and |iabilities denomanatec in foreign currencies at the end of the repoerting peviod are translated
o AME a1 the fs;-mlg'n eochange rated iuling a1 that date. Ner-monelary aasety apd liabdstios, and shae H[n'l,.ul
which are measured at histoncal cost in & lorelgn cumrency are translated inio FME &8 the foreign exchange rates
muilung At the date ol the transactson, whidil thowe dated at fair value afe tronslsled nte AME o the Fn-"uh;rr
exchange tate ruling at the date of valuation. Income and experaes denommated in foreign currencles are tranalsted
at the exchange ralet ruing al the dates ol the transactions. When the gain af las an a non-monelary e,
inclinding available-for-sale equity mdtrument, |s recognised dinscthy in equity, ary exchange component of that cain
of |64z 6 fecognised directly in equity, all ather lomeign exchange differeaces ariung on selilernent and tramlation of
menetary and non-monelary aisets and labdities are recognised in the consoadated ststement af prelit of lois.

Thie assats and liabilities of operations outside Mainland China are transiated into AME at the soot eichange rates
mlng at the end of the reporting period. The equity items, exdiuding *Retained profits”™, are franslated to AME at
the spot exchangé rates or the rates that approximate the spot éxchange rates on the trantaction dates. The income
and expenses of fereign cperation ae thanlated to RMB at the spot exchange rates or the rates that approsimate
the spol exchange rates on the transaction dates. Fasoign exchange differences arising from tramlation are
recognised a3 “exchange resorve” in othel comprehensive income,
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Significant accounting policies wonrines
Foreign currencies translations jeontinued)

O disposal of a foveign opetatien, the cumalative amount of the edchange differences relating 1o that faresgn
aperalion i reclasulied from eguity to the consolidated statement of prafit er lods when the pralil of low an
disposal Is recognised

Offsetting

Hinanoal assets and llahilities are offset and the net amount & reported m the consobdated statement of fimancial
rosifson when the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the tramactions are
mtended 10 be settied on a net basis

Employee benefits

Salaries and staff welfare

Galaries, bonuses and other benefits are accrued in the period in which the ausociated senices are rendered by
emphoyees.

Past employment benefits

Ihe Group partiopates in a oumber of defined contnbution relitement benefit schemes managed by different
provingial governments o ndependent insurance companies. Obligation for contrismtons to thess schemes are
jaintly bome by the Group énd the s1aff, and contnibubons pald by the Group e recogriced a6 an expense in the
enmsolekated statement of profit ar loss as incurred

The Group’s net abbgation in respect of defined bensfit plans io calculsted separately for each plan by estimaling
thit amount af future benefit that employeed have earned in the cument and prios petiods, decounting that amoun
and deductng the faif value af any plan assels

The cabculaticn of defined benefit chiigations |5 pedformed annually by & qualilied sctuary using the projected una
crmdit mathod. When the calculation results in a potential st for the Group, the recognaed aset is imited to the
prezent walue of economic benefits available i the form af any futwe refunds form the plan o reductions in future
coninbutions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, comsiderations in future cantributions
{0 the plan, To calculate the present value of etonomic benelits comsideraton 14 grven 1o any apphcable menimum
funding requirements,

Reméasurementy of the net deflined berefit |labdity, which compeise acteanal gaing and fodses, the retum on plas
asséts (excluding interest) and e elfec of the assel ceillng (1 sy, escluding intessst), ae recognised inimediately
i ather comprehienaive incomie The Group determines the net inlerest eapenie kroome) on the net delined bensii
lakility {asser) fer the period by applying the discownt rate used to measure the defined berefl obligation at the
beginning of the swiusl period to the then-net defmed benefit Lability (asset), taking into account ary changes
in the net defined benefst lability (3360 duning the perlod a3 & result of contributions snd Besefit paymerts Net
interedt experme and olher sspemnes related 1o defined benefil plarm are recognised in penonnel expenes n the
consalidated statement af profit ar lGia

When the benefits af & plan are changed o when a plan s curtaled, the resuling change in benstil that relates 1o
sl service oF the gain of lods on cuttalliment s mecognived Immediately i prafit of loss. The Group fecognives gair
and loviey an the settlement of a delined benefit plan whien the settlement oocur
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Significant accounting policies o
Employee benefits fontinued

Share-based payment

The Group olfers equily mcentivid 1o 15 employee, namey H shase Appreciation Rights Scheme for the Senior
Management (“the Scheme”d The Scheme s accounted for as cash settled plan, The far value of the equity
inekntives i meassed &t grant date uing Blick-Schales madel, taking mio adceunt the tesm and condition upan
which the equity incenfnan wene granted. Where the employess hase 1o meet yeuting conditions belore becoming
unconditeanally entitled to the equety incentives, the total extimated Fais value of the eguily incentves o spread owor
the veiting perod, takdng into account the probabiity that the eguity incentives wall vest

During the vesting penod, the eguity incentives thal i expeded to vedt v revewed. Any adpsstment to the
cumidative lar value fecognised in pesor years is charged or credited 1o the consalidated statement of profil o loss
low the year of the review. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an eapense b adjusted to reflect the aciual
amount of equity mcentives that vl

Related parties

For the purposss ol thewe financal watements, partses are contdored 1o be wlated 10 the Group il the Group
hay the ability, directly or indirectly, to eantral the party or sxercive tgnificant influerce over the party In making
financial and operating deciions, of wico versa or where the Group and the parly e subject to common control
o eommon vignificant influence. Related partion may be individuah (being members af key management personnel,
ugnificant shawholdern sndior ther clow hn'ulgr mambuers) or Gther eatities and mglode eabities which ane undor
the sigruficant mfluence of rdated parties of the Group whe those parties are individuals, and pait-employment
benefil plans which ane for the benefit of employess af the Group of of any enlity that 14 a related party of the
Gloup

Segmental reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of sach ségment Nem reported in the Gnancial statements, are identded
framn the financial information provided regularly (o the Growp’s mast senior executive mahagemen! for the pudposes
of sllocating resources to, and sssessing the parfaimance of, the Group's various [nes of budiness and geographical
locations

fedividually ematenial opsratmg segrrents are nel agyregated for lirancial eporting purposes. unles the segmenis
haver similar economic characienstics and are smilar in respect of the nature of products and serices, the nature
of precluction procewvss, the type or class of oontomers, the methods wsed to distribute the products or provide the
senices, and the nature of the seguliory emvironment, Qperating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they meot most of thewe oriteria

Fiduciary activities
Thee Greup acty in a4 liducary capeaty In entrusted |oan and entrusted inventment butiness. Avsets held by the Group

and the relared undertakings to return wch 3ssets 1o customers ae excluded fram the cenmnlidated statement of
finaroal potiton & the ks and reaards af the ety reside with the aatomers

Dividends ar profit distributions

DOividends or profit distributions are recognined a5 a liability in the year in which they are approved and declared
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Interest income

2015 2014
[Restated)
Loan: ard advarces 19 caitomers

- Coipaiane laan 76,943 B2, 168
- Retail |odni 78,075 63,630
= Dncownied Iy 4 855 5131
Ralances wilh central bank B,594 8318
Dial&ices and p|m‘.run1-|.-r|b. with banks and other financial imdtitutioni 5.962 10,579
Amourts held under resale agreements 12,102 20,4461
Iivestmenls 48,175 37,749

Inteces! income an hinancial assety 1hat arg
nol &t Tale vslue through prefit or loss 234,722 228,036

(] P he yemr proded 11 Gpcembes 3015, nachisded o the abawe B imicrewt ewors ol AR T3 millen scoced n mmpeeed insn (3004
RMBESS mallon snd il bor sopdiled Sebi st deribinents Q014 el

Interest expense

2015 2014
Dreposits from customers &0,448 64,102
Borowing from certral bank 1,056 142
[eposits and placements from banks and other financial institutions 26,549 41,032
Ampurts sold under repurchase agreements 2,790 1,837
Fhuht securitien issued T1.150 3.9
Intprest smpenw on financual liskslite that are
ned at fair value through pratit or loss 97,993 110834
Fee and commission income
2015 2014
{Restated]
tank cards fees 9,562 ! B2
Remittance and settlement fees 3,799 4,114
Agency services fees 13,681 rmy
Commssions from credit commitment and lending Business 4,215 4,204
Commissiony on triat and iducary aclsvities 18,644 13,033
Othens T.897 1279
57,798 43341
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Other net income
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05 Jovd
Resated]
Tridling perofits From
— Fentign exchangs 2,398 2,467
- Bands, dervatives and ot trading ackivilies 3,073 1.618
Met loises foi (inancial insirurissits dﬂ.lgnliﬂl
at fair valoe through profit of kas (V1E) i L
Met gainwtios) Ve avsilable-la-ia's financial et B11 (145)
Dhatribuitions from meestment o fands + Fa
Aental incarne 534 476
Gan on dispotal of il 4,519 4,238
IfgLranee income 208 A7S
Met trading gains fram precious metaly 188 533
Othar m aqn
12,018 .67
Operating expenses
2015 o
Staft costs
= Gatarien and baruses (Nate (i) 21,548 19,5068
= Social msurance and corporate suppfemental insurance 4,778 4,426
- Others 5.067 4.785
3,304 29,179
Business tax and surharges 11,520 10,425
Properly, eguipment and omvestment progestGes depregiation 4,086 3.535
Rental expenyes 3,842 3,348
Orther general and administrative expenaes (Nade ()] 16,419 14,503
67,670 B1.081
Martea
i Pesfarmance Berus i inclsied i (ke shaes saia®ien 3o boruse O detsin ol wheoh v dsidoped in Nobe 3700
Wi Ayshdnry’ remunersion graunied o BUEIT millor o ibe peai ended 37 Decendas 1015 (0 E, AT mellanl, mdided nooiher geressd

el EETTARY A R

282/406



Chana Maorchants Bank Xil Financial Statements
Armual Repart 2015

Directors' and Supervisors’ emoluments

The emaluments of the Directan and Superdsars during the year aie as Tollows
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2015
Salaries,
allowances Ratiremant
and benefits  Disoretionary stheme
Directomn’ fees in kind bonuses  conftributions Total
ANE 00 RMB0ODD RAMB'ODD RMB'Q0Q RME' 000
o - i}
Executive director
Tian Hisyu - 4,200 - Sd46 a4, 745
Li Hao - i 360 - a7 3,797
HNor-emecutive ditectors
Li Jianhang - - - - -
Ia Telwua = = = - =
Li Miaopeng = - -
Li Winguan = - - - -
Sun Yuying - - - - -
S Miry - - - - =
Fu Gangleng - - - - -
Heng Kiadyuan - - - - -
|ﬂdEp!ﬂﬂ!l'Il non-exXeculive
directors and !|IJPEH'|‘H!|I'!.
Wondg Kwal Lam 300 - = = 300
Liang Jlinsong 275 - = - 275
Pats (CHeivgoi ELL - - - 304
Fan Yingll 30 = = - 300
Gun Xuemeng (v} gL - - - 304
Zhao fun 75 = = = 275
Liu Yuan - 3,360 - |37 3,797
Zhu Genlin - - - - -
i Fendaan s & vl - - - - -
Liui Eheﬂg-.- - - = = =
P b v ErL - - - ars
Deng Xaande (i) A0 - - - ana
bin Qinglun L] - - - ]
Xiong Kai - 1,969 - 258 2,247
Huang Dan - 1,683 - 218 1,904
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Directors’ and Supervisors' emoluments e

The emaluments af the Directors and Supenmors during the year are 2 follaws (cantinued)

2015
Salaries,
allowances Retirament
and benefits  Dhcretionary scheme
Directars” fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
RMEB'TO0 RMB'TNED R B0 RAME" OO RMBOD0
(i}
Former Executive,
nen-executive directon
and supervitors
2hang Guanghua [k - 1,680 - 218 1,898
Xu Shanda (i) - - - - -
Hlaw Yubuad (ivh - - - - -
Yu Y (ivi - 358 - a7 405
An Luming liv) - - - - -
2,825 16,632 = 2,162 21,619
Mol

(4]

ik

The tiil iwrsnerston before 1aa for the hil-ime dywcon. yupsvison sl sescutiee e of the Geup o ret et fmaned. Getss of dus
P sy Cormessimiiae well be Uncloustl separatvly whin ther b mmuserEion o condomed

As at ) Cocernber TO1%. the Group has-oflemed T phases of H thaee speciaton rghis scheme o e sner minsgenend | “the Schems) in
1%, norw gl T praried shaw sppivcation nghiy way scesed Detsli of the Schems s i cut m Wols THaih

O M Raplember B30VE, the Barks Vit MUY eebenrdisary gereidl oeelog of b dsivd il approved e Hessleton on
wlernen ol fu huspuss o1 5 harehoiders wpreas

Ehiling the seporting g ibe, An Lumming reigned i (e Banks sharshalden wperior dus 1 I8 chanie of b msigemenl
DUnng T spocing peic, Fu Ivuan felgesd in e Bank L e RrUTE SHROLB BUE LI T Cange-of joll isgnatent

DRI W TR [, FNanG Gusngius el W Me B w08 ChERman AN snksalve ST U I e ungs of job
e e ]

Buiing the seporting et Yu e sesgned s the ek rperus oo o fhe change of joh stagement

Buynng e eprtng prod, Gun Keereng eagned ae Be Basky ndependent mmeasnubey doece sk tn S charge of g g nmen
T wamisly e spquiement Tl iIndeperdent non-ecihe desrioe shoold cominas e thind (ncouve) cf B boarl of SR, 8 e
indlipavatee s srmtier deartir wall b aleciad it the theeshaklory’ resfing k= 0 e veisnep cosnd by P ivsgnation of Gus Xisheeg,
the wkection bsconen e i the Haing soietvnlon smiihdion of Ching approvs the gualilicesen of The new isdepsndent non-
sty Srector 6 B mesvirer, Gun sty conbisosl her duty s mdeperdent noncsssoutie direcior i complunce sttt eleive
LT ilats g LT ConstTuTions

During the ippartg petiod. f 1 (e @ e Banl s sdwing wperesos due 10 S (e ol job ssignment B3 ity e nege e
that axberrad ugeresmn v conalitute e e haid Geckiie) o the e ol mpsriiort, b ivigration sl be wiledie aher B
wlechon of & ew evienal woerwser by Be sharsholdery meeing 1o b B vetecy 0 O meentice, #an §Coontinees e duty s erisenal
dowiint

Bunng the repsting peoad, Donyg Sands eagred e the Back’y sdomal wpermer due 13 the change of mh sagnmend. To wisly T
PR [ dilenad asperstian tould comaaule owe one Tl inckass ) of the boanl of wupsndcses, by reigrason will be eltsctie
B i wlection ol & i edicnal miperess Sy B daistelibe’ et 1o U1 e ssaansy i She pheenbrs Serg Hiands santiue b
by @t Buternal ihierms

M4 Kx Sheda cesigned o the Barks rdesescdeni nomsieniie dvecter tue = Pe change of o mugrenary, e Eagrabion sl
wikecivw s JE1%

i 2004, Niss Yubasai reugieed e e Bani's slipereien. rerresendioe drecker S o the chinge of job ssgteer, hia neigration wae
whectve o 2015
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ emoluments e

The emaluments of the Directan and Superdisasds during the year are as Tollows: fcontinuad]
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Sabaries,
afowantie Rtirormani
ang benefits Discretipmany scherme
Duectors' lees in wind DO coninbaglmmg
REAB DD RMB°000 RMB-000 RME'000
i1

ToLal
RRAB' 00

Executive directorn
Tian Hisyu - 4200 1767 546
Zhang Guranghua = 3,360 (A 437
Li Hag = 3,360 1ana 437
Non-exsculive directors
Li Mianhang (u) - - - -
Ia Zelbua = = - —
Li Miaopeng ()
Li ¥inguan - - - -
Sun Yurying - - - -
S Min () - - - -
P Junjuwan = - - -
Fu Gangleng - - - -
Heng Musoyuan - - - -
Independent non-executive

directors and supervisors
Wong Kwal Lam BT - - -
Liang Jinsog L) = = - =
Pity Chefvgiioii ca - - -
Fan Yingll I - - -
Gun KuErmeng ELei) - - -
Zhao fun {0) -
LiL ¥iuan (i) = 1,313 516 170
Thu Genlin = = - =
A Lurming - - - -
Liti Fhiagu =
Fan i 235 - - -
Lreng Xeande (i) = = - =
Bin Qinglur (n) (] - - -
Xiong Kai - 401 - 52
Huang Dan (i) = - = -
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Directors’' and Supervisors’ emoluments commes

The emaluments af the Dwector and Supendior duning the year ase as follaws (cantmued)

2014
Salaties,
alleny ancied Retrerment
and benefits  Discotionasy schame
Diretlon” hees in lindd banuses  contributions Tatal
RRAR OO0 RRAR OO0 RKB" D00 RKBDO0 RNE" OO0
{1
Former Executive,
non-executive directors

and supervior
Fu Yuning fild - - - - -
Wang Daxiang ) - - - - -
Miong Manhang (i} - - - - -
i Xigqur Wi 75 - - - %
Hu Shanda L) - - - - -
Xiao Yuhua (in) - - - - -
Han Mingzhi (il - 2,100 B35 373 3,108
Pang Thajlan i) 150 - - - 150
Shi Mangyan (il 150 - - - 1500
i Wi (i) - 2,138 - 2TR 2416
Guan Qe (il - 1,304 - 160 1473
1,860 18,176 50956 2362 28,334

Hote

1]

G 29 Sepivmbay J01 5. the fosrd of Teocien spgmeond e dnovisnary bonuer el the Bk denctory. wpenasen sl et S ofboem
foe 20148 Dilomrss o JOTE thise 8,0 & SRR has bean sfjinted comnsdegly

Oy 90 e PIL, the Bardy 2T E geveel meeting of sharstadides eonnened el appioeed The Rasiiuson on slecoon o L Ranheeg a5 @
FOn-Ras e Gl

Oy 30 Cctohini JO0A, e RicakL Jik 101 A durtidcnthnary guriil faeling bl shaiwlisloesi ormidand s sgoesoed (i Resdhibon oh fedien
o LI MisEpaiiy i1 & enoasetufive Hewiser,

e 3l durss MOB4, B Rasks DT geserad MWMW ranudired al apereved The Beselulinn on slerlinn ol S e W 8
AR GG

Ori JO Corimboer JOEA, thar flirnky D JOOLA kg gareril g vf shavwheldey pomidaned o { the Kescliton nn pevton
of Lng Wmong it s ndeperdert non-sraistey deecion

O J0 Doiodssr 2004, the Barsks Joad J061 4 enbaordiiary gersial ung ol shateloldes ! il mrnd Uie Besohibish o5 & eqms
o T buny o3 e fnclapendent mon-serrutio Srepio:

faem I Augst 1014 = T Augalt JO0E, the Rind 3 141 mesiahg of e Uik luperaioly Comeiies Siwvadeind afid spprvved B Reteiyton
o alectinn af Uit Wum a6 charman ol S Soperasors of e Bank, and slocted L Tuan as the caeman ol the 3t Supsrdacty ©omm e
o the fardk

Oy 10 by PO, T Ramkcy 300D o s e g o chavpbadtlyry corediened and approsed Be Rimoson on slestion of Deng Mnds o am
e TR

O 20 Dotoier 2004, the Hanky Jowl IO 8 weiracdtbngry gerend a il 1 k- d the Resolbon oA Fecdan
ol fin [hrgpon s s walemhal penmor

O I Bsopel PR, Pu Bark ke’ comges oresidered s slecteil Ui Yuan shd Nimg Ku s srmgiapes sigmndanr ol the St
Superymary Comaetiee of e Bank

O 10 Reech 2011, e Rank s worken” congevan conudensd s efeoed Meeng Dar m emplopes Iupsress of The 57 Tupsresey s
o (he Rank
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Directors' and Supervisors’ emoluments o

Rl ek
il it e i gasibenii) pirasd
[rirmy the irgmitng persd

Fharing the peting) et

Dharang. e dgaitong perd,

Dgiuiy tha d pgaaisiigh joutiail,

Lrarmg the isgemtng perud
Disring the Hipeiting petesd
Chgraniy) ha drgaitathy) s
Darwity thr rogtasy i

Dharmi) the degesring e

Fil PaFiing EEEd B P Rank ReR-Riiitive RieCha die 10 he (hisige of b macgimenl

Wiireg Diunmitsrey prtsred an the Rad s ron-exerutior shiested dur 2 the thehge ol ol sssgheeem

iy Washiang sered an 158 Rark s non-saen sve Arsrier S in ke changs sl peh ssignment

i Kegarh i a5 10 Bard § ifdehehden] Fon-Eebiul i Sieclon Lpen ajirty ol it Vv oF EtfelE

WL Ut iwrtrod i T Marih s ssilogaerbessl ibis-damdine o dus W fir Uarge ul ol il g
Hise ¥fun retivetl ad the Banks ihdeoenident cen-ssstutioe dhimciur e 1a the dhutige el joh ssgnitent
an idirgshl erired i e Bank s suparmnd dus 15 the @hangs el b iasgnemnl

e ENGLIN 1D 6 e A Mg viOr (e 18 T EnEnge of pi SR

i Rivedytan Felifeil el e Rankd dljiirmid dis 1 e changs o jok dakoghvesnl

Giian Chréy rised an the Bark s wspeniir dus i e thangs of 26 auigrment

On § arch 20015, Wi ¥oeg peteed m the Banes spanasss dus 18 the chasge ol jm anigsers
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Directors’ and Supervisors' emoluments o

The numbes of the Diretlon and Supernvisen whose prmoluments are within the fallowing bands 4 set out belaw:

015 2004

AMB
il = 500,000 20 3
500,001 - 1,060,000 - -
1,000,007 - 1,500,004 : =
1,500,001 - 2,000,004 1 1
2,000,007 = 2,500,000 1 -
3,000,000 — 3,500,004 - -
3,500,001 — 4,000,000 2 -
4,000,001 — 4,500,000 - -
4,500,001 — 5,000,000 1 -
5,000,001 — 5,500,004 - z
6,500,000 — 7,000,000 - 1
25 7

Durmyg the year ended 31 December 2015, no emoluments were pod by the Group to any of the persons who ame
directors or suparvisors as an ingducement 1o gn o upon joining the Group o & compensation for loss of offce

During the year ended 31 Decernber 2015, there was no arrangement under which a derecior or @ supervisor wakeed
o agreed 1o wave any remuneration

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five irdividuals with the highest emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2015, 3 {2074 3} are Direclors
o Supendsors whose emoluments are included in Note 8 above, The aggregate of the emofnents in respect of the
Trwe individuats during the year i as Tollows

2015 Jon4

RME DD RNE" 000

INote 3)

Salaries and ather emoluments 17.B4d 16, BOD
Dizcretonary bonuwes (Mote BOR - 706
Contrbutions to dofined contrbution mtirement schemes 1,785 2,184
19.629 26,053

The Aumbier of the five highest paid individual whose emoluments fell within the following bards is set oul below:

2015 FORE
{Mote 3%

AMB
1,000,001 - 3,500,000 1 -
1,500,001 - 4,000,000 3 2
4,500,001 - 5,000,000 1 F
5,000,001 - 5,500,000 - 2

5,500,001 — 6,000,000 -
6,500,001 — 7,000,004 =

-
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Loans to directors, supervisors and executive officers

Loams 1o directors, superdiian and scecutive afficen of the Group ate as Tolleas

2015 2014
Aggregate amount of redevart Inans made by
the Group autanding a1 year end 64 42
tanmum aggregate amount of relevant loam made
by the Group outstanding duning the pear - 43
Impairment losses
2015 2014
Loans and advarces 1o customars (Note 18{c)) 57,507 31,254
Amounts due from banks and other
financial imstitutions (Mote 16(a, Note 17(c), Mote 1Bid)) 57 57
Imvastmants
- Bxailable-forsale financisl aswats (Note 210h) a5 40
= Hld-to-maturity mvestments (Mate 2 Hcih 2 (1]
= Dobd wecuntio classified at teceivables (Naote 2 1idi) 947 4
Others S00 :U'f_‘
50,266 31 681
Income tax

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:

W5 2014

Current Income tax spense
= Iainlapd China 23.41% 21,470
= Homy Kong 120 733
_=ihensen 133 o
fubtotal 24,368 2,328
Beternred tavation {7.207) (4.946)
Totad 17,061 17,382

289/406

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooood

Fiil|



202

12
{b)

China Marchants Sank Xl Financial Statements
Annual Roport 2014

Income tax cominven

A reconciliation of income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and that calculated at the applicable tax rate is as follows:

2015 Pl

Prafit bedose taxation 75,074 7343
Tax at the PAC statulory mcome tan rate of 25% (2014 25%) 18,770 18,358
Tax effects of the following itesrs

= Effects of non-deductible expenses B33 Ta3

= Effects of non-taxable income {2,365) i1.623

= Effects of different applicatle rates of tax prevailing in other ameas (T 1364
Ingome tax axpense 17.061 17.382
i
ik Fhe apalicsbls wooene ids tote $o e Bank % cpor st o Wanlered ©Reng 5 0% duneeg 200 5 §R0E4, JHSS

] The applicalils o Une sats i Mo Kong 5 16 5%ty PESY P14 16 S

i Ranalny| | Greirids SEeialat A Eaed al e pphiatde e of L [Lhal 2Rl ¥ Erlevan| O
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Xil Financial Statements

Other comprehensive income

Tax effects relating to each component of ather comprehensive income

_H"E ;‘EH
Tax
Before-tax benefits  MWet-of-tan  Before-ton  Tao berefitd  Meteof-taa
amount  {expense] ameunt amownt  {empeniet amaum
Auailabli-far-sale firancal sty
= Mt movernent on fai value reerye 5,637 (1,413 4,224 9.B55 (2 440) TA15
Cash {low hedge.
= Mot movernent on hedging reseom 539 {135) and 1,051 1263) B8
Exchange diferences Qe - (=121 a7 - 427
Eguity-accourited investeot-shane of
other compreherise incoms B4 - B 35 - 35
Remmasiremant of defineg bome
wcheme redessgned through nrorve 4] 11 [53) - -
Othas campishenuse income 142 (1,537 5,608 11,358 (2.703) B.GES

Maovement In the fair value reserve relating to components of other

comprehensive income

2015 2014
Awallable-Tosdnle Fnanclal assets
Chargs in Tar vafue recognined dunng the penod 4,645 7270
feclamuficnison adjustments for amounts transfeéired to profi o boss:
On desposal {421) 145
Net mevement (n the fald value reserve during the peflod recognived
di el comprefiemosge Mcbme 4,224 T4a15
Cash llow hadge
Eftectine portion of changes in fair value of hedgrg indtruments 195 1=
Reclasificalion adjustment for amounts frarsfered (o prolit or loss
- Hoaksed boises 9 did
Hay movement ir the hedging reteswe doring the penod recognised
m athar compreheme income 404 TE4
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Earnings per share

The caleulation of basie earnings per share for the year 2015 and 2014 K based on the net profit attributable 1o
equity sharehaolders of the Bank and the welghted average numbe of shares in [sue, There & no d Herence betwesn
basic ard diluted saimingy per shate as there are na potentially dilutve shares outstanding duning the year 2015 and
104

2015 004
Mt mralit anrbnable 1o sguity shareholders of the Bank 57,696 55.911
Weighted sverage number ol shames n s
(i il inode 25,210 25 330
Basie ard deluted earnings per thare attributalde o
ety thareholden: af the Bani (m AME) 2.29 222
i Wy vl P vhare capiisl s nckafed i o A0 ol the comslstoed s waerenn
-
Balances with central bank
2015 2014
Statutoey depel] psrve [Nete () 464,686 506,089
Surplus depedn fetsres ati il 103,803 135,145
Fecal deposis 1,472 1,758
560,951 535,502
Notez
1] Yestutery deponit ieser fundi e depooted with ihe PEOC sul other Centril tanis outude Be Wamnland Chana e edqured sad ahe ot
vl b e Groupy delp aperalion The stitusssy depesd ieseiee Nands ol tee Besk s caboulaled a0 15 0% aad 5.0% fo el gebls S8
wepoity and lorvign currency depouty repechiely o gt 31 Becember JM0% (004 17.5% snd $ 0% dpr glighis B depovin sed lamegn
sustorny depzats Frigeetlively), [cplés deboiils moluse Srpoiitd liom geeinieen] ithsnbies dnl sthet Soasatalan, g degset B
than huggeriil, ieisl depmib, inporate depmits, sof ned credkt balanoes ol sringied busrem
i funpha depond frsere rumtsred with e FHOC nd central banki outisse the Miried Cene s mamky bor de s pomoes
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16 Balances with banks and other financial institutions

2015 014
Balances s bainland
- Banks 30,387 36,659
- 0thed Terancial imitdalsbm 935 422
31,322 37,081
Balances oundide Mainland
- Banks 32,570 188N
- Other frvancial imsInutsons 13 a
32,583 18,974
53,905 56,060
Less Imparment allowances
- Banks (123) ER ]
Oiher linancaal Institutions () £ ]]
{136] (743
63,7799 55,988
{a) Movements of allowances for impairment losses
2015 2014
A% 3t 1 lanuary ia 53
Charge for tha year 52 Fi |
A5 a1 31 Decarmbier 126 T4

293/406



206

17

(a)

{b)

{c)

China Morchants Sank Xl Financial Statements
Annual Report 2015

Placements with banks and other financial

institutions

Analysed by nature of counterparties
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2015 FORE
Placemenls in Masiland
= Hanks 66,458 57358
- Githat financial instifudions 47,067 32.965
113,515 w323
Placements outwde Mamiand
= Banks 72,219 33,808
Lisa! Impaisment alwances
- fanki 51} 73]
185,693 124,085
Analysed by residual maturity
2015 JUl_ﬂ.
Matuting
= Within ore manth (inclusve] 133,415 B7.020
= lletwesn one manth and one wear (inclusive) 44,449 I 2256
- Over one peas 3,829 6,839
185,653 124,085
Movements of allowances for impairment losses
2015 J014
.ﬂ;'::‘-1 lanuary 46 IE
Charge far thi yeud 5 36
Aot 11 Decembisg 51 A6
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Amounts held under resale agreements

Analysed by nature of counterparties

2015 04
Ampurits held under resale agreementy in Mainland
= Banks 128,803 205,082
= Oher financial insfitytions 215,321 130,873
244,124 344,955
Amaounts hold undor resale agreemonts outside Masnland
= fanks - I5
L v i
Less Impairment allowances
- Banks {200) -
343,924 344, 581
Analysed by residual maturity
. 2015 _.?.l.fﬂ-l
Maturing
= Within ane month (induswe) 256,783 181,746
= Batween one month and one year inclusive) 43,575 117,135
Crver one yoar 3,560 36,0%
343,944 S
Analysed by assets types
2015 204
Biandy 20,481 137,189
Loans and advances 1o customers - 416
Bills 106,729 g7.218
Trust beneliciary mglhts 10,693 63 484
Aitel management ichemes 11,381 45 497
Debtar beneliciary nghts PR 1,180
343,924 344 Ddg
Movements of allowances for impairment losses
2015 204
AL 1 Lanwary - =
Charge fot the yes 200 -
A 31 Discermhne 200 -
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19 Loans and advances to customers

{a) Loans and advances to customers

2015 du4
Corporate loans and advances 1,507,770 1,467 585
Discounted bill #9815 75007
Aatail loans and advances 1,226,701 a2y
Gross fman: and adwances 19 customery 3,824,286 2,513,919
Less; Impairment alowances
= Indreidually assetsed {14,624} 18577
= Cofinctively asseised {70,218} |55 SREL
{84, 842) [65.16%)
Met loans and advances to customers 1,739,444 2,448 754
(b) Analysis of loans and advances to customers
1 Analysed by Industry sector and categany
Operation in Maintand China
2015 204
Manistactiiring 118,679 342,005
Whelesale and retall 136,513 255,298
Prapery develapment 175,912 143, 8952
Transpartation, storage and poastal seryices 145,473 140,548
Production and wipply of elecine powen, haating powe,
qas and water 108,842 GH.514
Construction 96,387 GR350
Eeasing and commercial senvices 80,788 49,343
Blining 52178 &1.179
Water, emvironment and publs utilibies maragement EERCER| 328
lelecommumcations, software and (1 seryvicas 28,078 A0 asr
Othery 16,477 N ES.IZIII_E
Corporate loans and advances 1,353.856 1,308,654
Dhscounted bills 89,815 is.oaf
Residential mertgage 491,290 EFARCFT
Credit cards 114,985 219 621
Micro-lnance lean 08,973 136,904
Oithers ) 96,818 FLREL
Aztail loans and advances 1,210,076 56,700
(sresid boand and advances ta custamers 2,653,747 2,340,361
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Loans and advances to customers o
Analysis of loans and advances to customers jcontinued

Analywed by industry sector and category: (continied)

Dperation outside Mainland Ehina

EDINETOOOO
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205 20714
Financial concerns 46,585 29410
Propeity developmint 37,168 36,011
Whalesale and retail 14,860 42,057
Trarspar and transpert equipment 13,875 1,925
Manmufacturing 13,464 18,265
Racreational activities 1,627 431
information technology 2,025 121
Others 22,305 22,551
Corporate laant and advantes 153,914 158,911
Residential momgage 8,165 1754
Credit cards 259 267
Icre-finance boans 1,804 I, 889
Others 367 4717
Netail loans and advances 16,625 14,627
Gross loans and advances to Custormers 170,534 173,558
lats Ay at Bt Darernher 300G peer 95% of the Groap 't keam e adisners 82 cugromary were cnnfecked m Ppapies Republic of Chins e i

pan e peoralisea an an 3 Dpcwsber 20745
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19 Loans and advances to customers o

(¢} Movements of allowances for impairment losses

2015
Impalrment Impairment allowances for
alfowances  impaired loans and advances
for loans and
advances
which are Which are Which are
coliectively collectivaly Individually
anesaed asessed assesed Total
&1 lwary 50,855 4,733 9577 65,165
Charge for the year (Note 17) 12,194 11.603 35,689 59.4E6
Aulpaswe for the year (Note 11} (813) {n {1.165) 1,979
Wiite-afis - (2.154) {29.229) (28, 383)
Umyinding of dncount - - {1,137 £1,137)
Recoveries of loam and advances
prevsously written off - 625 B39 1. 464
Exchange dillerence 176 - 50 226
&1 31 Decembier Bd.a12 7,806 14,624 B4, 842
2014
VAR Impanmant allowances for
allowances rnpaired loars and advancey
far loans and .
afvances
whuch are Which are Wiich are
collectively collectrealy indiwidually
iisesied assessed assessed Tertal
AT Jaeneary 36,534 32i8 1002 A8, 764
Charge for the yaar (Mote 11) 12,287 5732 14,876 32,895
Aelease for the year (Note 11) [Fr ] n {1,618 £1,641)
Winte-ofts - (4. 456) (10,467} (14917
Urnwinding af discount - n (54} (55}
ARecoveries of loams and advances
presicsly written off - 231 410 651
Exchange dffuenie 56 = LF4 -]
At 31 Decembes 50,855 4,733 2577 &5 165
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19 Loans and advances to customers e
{d) Loans and advances to customers and allowances for impairment losses
2 L]
Impaired loans and advances Fair value of
Loans and Gross collateraly
adwances Impaired  held against
for which for which for which loars and  individually
impalement  impairment  impalrment advances as ansemed
losses are lossey are lossed are a % of grema impaired
collectively  collectwely  individually lgards and loans and
augssed assriped assested Total adyancet adwances
(note {i1) [note {ii}) {nagte (il imote (iiil)
Gros boans and sdvances 1o
= Financial mysitutionrs BS, T - 11 B5,752 LT} 7
Man-ficanoal sdituticn
cEtomen 2,691,149 130 1,315 1,738,534 1.73 EATY
1,776,850 13,070 34,306 LBI4. 186 1.68 B.486
L
Impairmant alloveances for
mans and advances fo
- Finareial inssitutiors 130} - [ap 214
= Man-finascsl motution
cimlpmen 162,102 17,808) 114,620) (84,528
{62,412} {7, 606) (14,624) (B4,842)
Net loans and sdvances 10
= Finarscial anszituliors B5,431 - 7 B5, 438
— Man-firdncal institutien
CURIGMEn 2,629 04T 5,264 I!.E’i'fj 2,654,006
414478 5 164 18,702 1,739,444
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Loans and advances to customers ionmoes

Loans and advances to customers and allowances for impairment losses jcantinued

2014
Impired logns and advanoes Fair vahie of
Loans and Gon codlaterals
advantes Impaired held against
for which for which far which loant and  indiaduady
imgiarmant impairmart impairmant Advances A% sy sed
lotzer are lossen am lasses are a % af gon impaired
ol pctmmly moller el i 1say lnans and knams aned
avsenspd assenng anpner] Tatal advances advances
Inote (i)} {reaitie (i} Enate (i) ncibe (mi}
Grods loans and advances ko
- Fimancial rrtnstians T e 1 T84 0,00 -
= Non<fmancial istriution
customEr 2453804 7.408 L] 1,401,735 1.14 5 743
2,486,027 1408 2484 1513918 1.1 5,743
Legac
Imparrsent abowances For losm
antl sdvarces 1o
~ Fimancial instrutiang &7l - [11] |88)
= Non-fmancial imstihatian
Cushomers 150, 7681 (4,333} %, 538} (65,077
iEI:_I,BE-SJ M,!]:‘_:I 9,577 (85, 185)
Mel loans and adwarces to
- Financial imtautians 71,095 - - 71,096
- Non-linanclal mstitution
CUSEOTIRS 2,363,076 1ETS o, 907 1,376,658
2435172 2,675 e, 907 1408 754
Maten
i fher fnar arad adugnees melune Bere e vl nn - piyscine rederre il sopereme b heen wierifed oeonriedual lusn

1] mpaired Insny end mdisners imclude basni e adunoms for whith obistier madmce. of mmpsrmenl has bees idertifiod sl mcude
enpaanani s oe seeseesd o Lo waps

toleriiselp: thid is prrtioios ol homegenesas Inam ind sdwsder o
femaduadly

] The T vars afl collatersi wos eubwated by =anagement kesd on ®e bt sfebie snsmns saliiom sfuied by mking inlo scokn
i clarint sfaikaticn dipassiiie i wall o maibet €l
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Loans and advances to customers jommues
Finance leases receivables

The table below provides an analyss of finance lease recelvables for lesses of certan properly and equepmant b
wihich the Group i the lessoe

2015 2014
Present Present
Total value of Total walue of
minimum  Upearmed minimum minirem Unearned manimum
lease finance lease loass finance lann
receivables income  receivables  receivables ingome  recewables
Winhin 1 year Gnclushae) 3| 512 {®,126) 14,388 15411 (4, 678) 0,733
Over | year but within
5 years finchubye) 65,430 {6,177} 50,253 61,895 {6,773) 57,122
Dyer 5 years 13,044 {1,008) 11,996 10,461 T16) 9,745
116,986 (11,351} 105,635 109 TR 7 12,167 47 B
Less Impairment allowanoes
Indwithually assessed {168) L F4
= Collectively assossod (V.692) [1.626)
et irvesirment in finance S -
ease recevables 103,774 a5, 843

As &t 31 December 2015, the Group's net investmenis in finance leases, included in “loans and sdvances™ were nil
(2014 hdk

Interest receivable

2015 2014
ekt sacurition 13,075 171, &bl
Loars and advances 1o customens B 765 7,671
Others 3,094 4,201

&4, 0934 33 C&d
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Investments
Nate 2015 a4
Fenancial asiets at fair value through prodit o laid 21¢al 549,081 40190
Derivatieg linantial assens L 10,176 2.315
Available-for-sale linanclal ssimg 211k} 209,559 278 526
Hﬁhﬂrln-rndlurlt]- Iviesiments 2c) 53137 259 434
Debt securilies classified & recivalion 214d} 716,064 408 752
1,438,017 DO6 21T
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Mot 2015 2004
Fanancial assets held lor vading {1 50,800 33,022
Fenancial assels dquamd i1 fair value thiowgh prolil or o L] 8272 71,166
59,081 40,190
Financial assets held for trading
015
Listed
In Mainland
= PRC government bands 17,543 5351
- Bends ssucd by poelicy banks 9,622 6,165
= Bonds tsued by commercial banks ane othet fnancial sstitutions 4513 5 358
= (rther debit seuribies 13.472 12,7
= Equity investments 4 -
= ivastments in funds 1 -
Chutsiele Mainlard
= Bondy ssued by commercial banks and other financial instiutions 1.347 1,100
= {3thar debt seunities 2.53% 1580
= Equity Investments V4o Tz
a9, 777 33,00
Linksted
Outslde Mainland
_ bevestments in funds 5 -
5 —
Lestig pessition iy precious metal comiads 1027 12
50,809 13,072
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21 Investments ramney
{a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss jceninued)
{iih Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
2015 2014
iRestaled)
divwd
iy Mbainlanad
- PRC govermment bonds 304 FL
~ Bonds ived by palicy banks 3,874 3,574
- Other debf securities 85 63
Dutzide Main'nnd
- Bongds issued by commerial banks and odher financal institutions 420 FE
Other dobf wocuritios 2,536 1,257
1,200 6,324
Unbsted
DOutude Main‘and
= [ands nswed by commencal banks and other fimancal sstiotons 235 ER|
= Other dobt securities 837 813
1.072 844
8,372 7164
fill]  Analysed by issuing authority
2015 2014
[Raitated]
Tisund By,
- Sovetilgns 17,847 5,651
= Bunks and oAb linancial inslibetion 21,784 1E018
- Conpotales 10,450 16,521
50,081 40,1494
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Investments iomines

Available-for-sale financial assets

2015 2014
[Restated)
Lasted
for bdainlaid
= PRE gevermmant bond, 94,381 17,165
= Bonds maued by PROC - 83
= Ronds dsued by policy banks 66,716 .82
= Bands mwed by commarncial banks and other financial insttution 7,742 A0.4%4
= {ither debl securities 49,238 G294
= Eguity Imeestments m -
= vvestmants in funds 10 143
Quitsiche Mainland
= PRC gevermmaent bands 48 -
= Bonds issued by commercial banks and other financial imtutions 5912 3,468
= Qther debl secunities B.245 3.045
Equity investments 1.272 1,258
Frwestments in Tunds 62 20
263,959 258967
Less: Impairment allowances {239) 4121}
263,720 258,708
Linkisted
In Mardand
- Do A by PROC a4 -
- Bonds ssued by palicy banks - 30z
= Dodids AaLivd by comenaiicial Brariks dnd cithier linaniia o] 12,602 3.303
~ this debit secunbies 1.214 2.376
— Eguly imvistments 1.001 B35
- bestments in Tunds 723 23
Citude Mamland
- Bonds Asued by paolicy banks 2.096 -
— Daddi miied b;l cammercial banks and ather finaneia! natfulen 9979 6.875%
— thes debit secunbies 8,010 &,2131
— Couiky imvestments 21 122
- bvestments in Tunds 207 5
36,267 20,170
Less: impaisment allewances (A28} (a2}
35,839 19,728
199,559 ITR.526
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2015 2014
Iiyued by
= Sevensigny 102,761 B3,344
= Banks and other financial institutiong 135,896 125891
- Cofporales B0, 90 69,269
199,559 178,526
Movernents of allowances for Impairment losses
2015 2014
At 1 harisary &11 574
Chearge for the year 35 43
Heleases Tor the year - [£1]
Write-alfs (2 114
Exchange diff erence 23 1
AL ¥ Decomber B&T &1
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Investments iommes

Held-to-maturity investments

2015 FiLL]
(Restated)
Lated
| Bdainlane
= PREC goenarnmant bonds 170,540 109,428
= Bonds msued by policy banks 165,890 133,187
= Honds dsued by commercial banks and other financial mstitutions 12656 B.B2Z
= Othar debt securities 865 LEIG
CQutside Mainland
= PREC gorvernment band: £ EEL
= Ronds asued by comemaitial banks and other financial imstiuison 1.542 5g8
= Gther debil secusitio Eri] go3
152. 710 156 145
L imparmint allowances 95} 7
352,615 256,074
Unlsted
I blaiiland
= Oithwe debl secwiities 376 -
Ouluide klainland
- Bonds swued by commercial banks and other financial st futiom 16 -
= Othes debt secudities 130 3360
5212 3,360
Less: impaiiment allewances - -
522 3,360
353,137 259 434
2015 2014
lusued by
— SEvireign 171,115 113,350
— Barky and ather Gnanclsl matitutbons 180,402 142 583
- Cofpodates 1.620 1.501
353,137 259 434
Fair vabuer of laed debt wecuriies 172,158 261_376

Far the year ended 31 December 20145, the Group did not dispose debt secunties dlassified as held-to-maturity prior

fo their maturity 12014: W)

Movements of allowances far impairment losses

2015 Jong
At 1 Jamuary mn mm
Charge for the year 20 -
Azlease for the year - (51}
Exchange diflerence 4 4
A1 31 Degembes 85 T
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Investments o
Debt securities classified as receivables
201% 2014
Lirlisted
i Mainland
= PAC govermment bonds a7 S
= Bondy isued by commaercial banks and other financial institutions 11,089 21,67
- Oher debf securitien 20,389 41,335
= irsurance siset managemant schemes 48,198 EE,330
= Trus beneficiary nghts T8,067 12,038
= Broker awe! managemant whames 245,053 11,393
= Fund asst managernaent schemes and others 313,473 85,50
Outzide Mamiand
= Bondy ssued by commercal banks and other financial institutions 65 62
717,081 408 820
Leds Impanrment allowance 11017 {68)
716,064 ADE 752
205 2014
Timured By,
- Savereigna qar ]
- Banks and other Tinanoal institutions E54,928 386,823
- Conporates 20,389 21,335
716,064 408,752
Mosement: of allowances for impairment lossos
- 2015 2014
At 1 lanuary a8 &3
Charge for the year LR 4
Exchanps dl_lifelelce 2 1
At 31 December 1,017 58
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
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Note 2015 2014
Fanancial liahiftipy hald for trading 1H 3,348 1,007
Fenancial Uiabifnies designated at fair value
thraugh prafit of loss i 16,879 12,362
20,227 13,365
Financial liabilities held for trading
2mM5 oA
Lenbed
- Equity securities at Tair value 18 30
Precous metal releyvan] Tmancisl habilties 3,330 L
1,348 1,007
Financial liabilities designated at fair valwe through profit or los
2015 04
Iry BMsinland
— Precious metal contracts with other barks 2087 203
— Dtk 2,352 2.114
Oursiehe Wainlaed
- Certificates of depout ssued 3,985 i.0i0
- IJH:I: !-H_:uIlI:IP_-s tasued _3,155 E_DQB
16,879 12362

As il the end al mporting peiod, the diference between the fair value af the Group™s financial liabdities designated
at faer value through proln o o and the contractual payabiles at matunty 1§ not matenal. The amounts of changes
in the falr value af these firancia! llabilites thal are slributable to chamges in credit risk are comidered not
significant durmg the year presenied and cumulatively as a1 31 Decernber 2015 and 2014
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Financial instruments at fair value

A purber ol the Groups sccounting polioes and divdlesures require the measurement af faie vabues, far bath
limarcial asd non-finanoal assets and ligbilities

The Group has established a control framewark to govern the measurerment of lair values. This includes a valuation
toam that hai rriporiibdity {or droatipning all sgnificant Vair valug meaiiréments jr'ldudlnq thioe bevels af fair valuet,
and reports directly to the person in charge of sccounting affair

The wvaluation team regularly revews signilicant unoerdable inputs and valuation adjustrments If theed party
wmformation, such as broker guotes of prong sernoes, & used 1o measure fair values, then the valuaton leam
asiesies the evidence obtained from the thied paries fo support the concluson that such valuation meets the
mequirements of IFRSs, indudang the level in the fair value heeranchy mowhich such valuatnn shoidd b classified

Significant valuation issues ano reported fo the Audit Committes of the Board

When measunng the fair value of an asse1 or & Babilty, the Group uses ebservable marke: dats e far as possible.
Falr values are categorised into different levels in a falr value herdrchy based on the inputs wed in the valuathon
technigues at follows.

The 1|:|lh:|'\.|.||'¢rvg table presents the fair value mformatior and the fair value hierarchy, a1 the end of the current
mwparting pericd, of the Group's awets and liabilities which are mesmured a1 far value at sach balance sheel date
ot 4 rocurtng bais, The level 1o which Lair valus maasurornent i1 :.lllgun!.ld: i determined by the level of the fair
walue higrarchy of the lowest input thal /& tignificant to the entire Tai value measimement. The beveli s delined as
Terllonrs:

. Level 1 inputs: unadjusted quoted pnoes in active markets that are obsenvable at the measurement date fos
identical assets or liakilties,

] Lewel 2 inputi other than quoted prced included in level 1 inputs that are either directly or irdirectly
observable for underbying assets ar Halalithes inputs;

# Lewel 3 impute inputs that are unobtervable for assets o Habilities

The Group recognines tradlers between levels of the far value hierarchy @ ot the end of the repocting perlcd n
wiliseh they aoour,

The Growp's assets and liabilitles measured at fair value are measared on a mecumng basss The Group doees not have
assets nor liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurming basi,
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Financial instruments at fair value fcontisued

The table below analyies Tinancal instruments, messured at fae value &l the end al the reporting peried, by the

level in the fan value hierarchy

2015
Level 1 Level 2 Lewvel 2 Total
Asgels
Fimancial assels held {or rading
= Dbt securities 6,028 43, 004 - 49,032
= Long position m preciout metal contracts - 1,027 - 1.027
- Equity imvestrients Ta4 - - Tad
Ivwestments in funds 1 5 - [
R 5773 #0235 c ;803
Firancial aszets dnlgna.bd o tair valua
'.|‘1r|:|ug'|'| prafit & b
- Deht wecunitie 3459 4 B0 - B.272
Dervalzee financal siweis - 10,172 4 10,176
Ayailable-for-sale linancial ity
- Debt wecuritie 33,538 262,205 - 295,743
— Equity investments 1,628 BO 1,104 2,837
= bivspstments in Turd 1] 790 138 So4
35,242 263,073 1,242 2949 559
45,484 122,086 1,248 168 816
Liabilities
Financial labilities hald for trading
= Precious metal relevant fnancial habikties - 3.330 - 3.330
= Sl pusiion & wysly vmsiti H - = 18
18 __3.33'.! - 3,348
Fimancial liabilrtes designated at fair value
thraugh profit of ks
= Precious metal contracts with other banks - 2,087 - 2087
= Certificates of depasit nswed - 1.683 2.302 3,985
= Debt securities imued - 8455 - B.455
= Cithers - 2.252 - 2.252
- 14,577 2,302 16,879
Derivatva financal lLabilites - 2,578 - 1,575
18 25 482 2,302 27,802
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Investments cones

Financial instruments at fair value ‘wannued

04
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AszEts
Firancial aviets held for trading
= Dwbt wecuriios EX: ] JB310 - 2,294
= Equity imamtmnii T2 - - T2
= Lorg pasition in prociows metal contracts - 12 - 12
4,700 ® 3 = 3022
Firancial assets designated at fair value
theaugh profit or loss
- Dbt spcurities 1454 5,589 125 7,164
?‘ﬂrlll'll‘-i:l'l I_m.anc'ul assets - 9,300 15 9,315
Aveailabip-foecale financial astem
= Dot wecuritios 26,737 249 357 - 76,054
= [quity imsestmenia 1,316 Fa 728 2,115
= Iryestments in funds 263 29 5 e
28,316 240 457 753 37E 526
- M4 292,668 §93 328,031
Liabilities
Firancial habalities held for irading
= Precious matal relevant financial ligbslities - 9317 - 917
= Short position in equity securities EL - - EL
ag 277 - 1,007
Financial lisbalities designated at fair value
ihwaugh profit or loss.
= Precious metal coniracts widh other banks - 1,029 - 2,009
= Cortificates of depaosit issued - 410 2610 3,020
= Debi securities isneed - 5,054 = 5094
= {ithen - 2,214 - 2214
I S - 9,152 1610 12,362
Denvatve financial Labilies - 0,246 - 10,246
g 20,875 2E10 23615

[huranig the yoar there were no signuificant wanslers of fimancial instruments between Level 1 and Level 7 of the tar

wahue hoararchiy,
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Financial instruments at fair value icontinused

Basls of determining the market price for recurelng fair value measurements eategorbed within Level 1
Bleamberg's quotid phces are uied far finsacial Instruments with quotsd prices in an sctive market

Valuation technigues wied and the gqualitative and guantitative information af key parameters for
recurring fair value measurement categorised within Level 2

Fair valup of B8 donominated bonds whose vadue s available on China bond prcmg systom on the valuation date
It measured wing the lates! valuation meiulis publnhed by China band pricing syrtam

Far walue ol foresgn currency bonds withoul quoted prices in an actwe market is measured by viaing the
comprahensive valustiors heued by Dloombearg.

Fair vabue of fereign exchange forwards contracts it derwative firancial assets & measired by discounting the
dillerences bolwewn the contract prices amd markel prices of the foeign eachange fonvards conbracts, The dacount
rates used are the applicabile AMB denomnated swap yield curve as at the end of the reporting period

Fair vakie of foreign exchange options is measured using the Black-Scholes model, applying applicable foreign
exchange spot rates, foreign exchange yield curves and mechange rate volatilities. The sbove market data wsed are
guoted phce in ah scthie matket, piovided by Boombeg, Reuters @md otber markel information povibers,

Fair walue ol interost rate swaps in dorivative Hinoncial assels m mamured by discounting the expocted meenmable or
payable amounts under the assumplion 1hal thise swaps had been termmated at the end of reporting date The
dscount rafes used ahe the related RIMA denaminated vwap yold curve a3 at the ond of reponing period

Valuation technigues wsed and the qualitative and quantitative information of key parameters for
recurring fair valie measurements categorised within Level 3

Quanttatve informatson of Level 3 fair walue meaturement 1% a5 blow:

Falr value as at
31 December 2015 Valuation technigues Unobservahle input

Unkisted avaiable:for-sale Ml comparison

Bty irRsbments 346 approach Liguidity discount
Unfisted avaiable-for-sale

ity irsasbimens 758 Discounled cish How Rik-adjusted discownt rate
Unfisted avaiable-forsale

fund investments 138 Discoumed cish How Rigk-pdjusted discount rate
Unfisted derivatave financial

instruments. 4 Binomial lattce Modl ‘olatility

Fanancial labifies dasignated at
fair walua through profit or o
= Certificates of depasit iwsieer 4,202 Discourted cash How Rmi-adjusted dismount rate
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21 Investments comrea
{f) Financial instruments at fair value fonrinued

(i} valuation technigues used and the gualitative and quantitative information of key parameters for
recurring Tair value measurements categofised within Level 3 (centinued)

1) Valuation of financial instruments with significant unobservable Inputs

The following table shows a recondilisbon Tram the beginning balances 1a the ending balances fae fair valué
medsurements in Leve! 3 of the fair valee hierarchy,

Aszen
Fimancial
asgety
designatad
at fair value
thraugh Available-
Derivative prafit or for-sale
financial loss-debt fimancial
_dsRls  seouniies Bi3ers Total
At 1 January 2015 15 125 753 ani
Pradit or foss
= In profit or loss {3} - 0 17
= In athes comprehendive soome - - Fil 21
Purchases - - s5h 570
Dispasals and settlemert on matunty L] tias) 12z (255)
At 21 Decomber 2015 4 - 1,242 1,246
Total unrealised gasns and |osses
incluged in the consolidated
statement af profit or loss fof
assets hald at the and of the
reporting pericd {3} - 20 17
Liakilities
Financial labilities
designated at fair
value through profit
or loss - certificates
- of deposit Issued
&t 1 January 2015 4,610
In profit or loss 122
lssuies -
Disposaly and settbpmant on matunty {430)
At 31 Decasrber 2015 2,302
Total unrealisad gams and losses included in the consolsdated statemant
of profit or (o5 for labilities held at the end of the reposting period 121
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Financial instruments at fair value iconrinusd)

Valuatien technigues uwed and the gualitative and guantitative information ol key parameters for
recurring falr value measurements categoarised within Level 3 (con Knwed)

i Valuaticn of financial imtruments with significant unobservable inputs fcontinued)

Afsery

Fmancial asels

designated
at Tair yalue
{heough Avail b
Diarrvatige plnln or for-zaln
financial loris-debt limaneial
el sncurilies awvati Total
At 1 lanuary 2014 Ed| 125 oz B5H
Mradit or losi
= In profit o oss - - (1] (363
= In other comprehensve income - - 4y (4
Purchases - - 8% 9
Dhposals and settlement on maturily &) - - (1]
At 31 Decomber 2014 15 125 753 BO3

Total unmalised gains and losses

ircluded in the consolidated
satement of profit or foss for
anawls heid at the end of the
meporting poriod

Liabilities

Fendncial lainbities
desigrated ai lar
value through pralit
or loss — certificates

of depasit [swued
AtV lanuary 2014 5. 206
In profil o kns 5
havied 1.056
Dusposaly and serthement on maturty (3. 78N
Al 31 December 2014 2,610
Todal uawalved gains and losses included in the comolidated statemeni
of pralit ar [ow for liabilities held at the end ol the reporiing period a9
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Financial instruments at fair value fontinued)
Valuation tethnlgues used and the gualitative and guantitative information of key parameters for
recurring fair value messurements categorised within Level 3 (cantinued]
{21 The sensitivity of the falr value measurement on changes in unobservable inputs for Level 3 financial
inytrumnents measured at fair vislue on an an-going bads fcandimed)
2015
Effect on prefit or loss or ather
camprahemive incorme
Favourable (Unfavourabsla)
Agailahle-for-sale financal assets
= Bguwty swestments. 11 111}
= Investmants in funds 13 {13)
Financal [labilites dessgnated m tair value through profic o oss
— Cerificates of depﬂall [ELTIT | 230 {230}
e
Effect on profit o loss or ather
conpreheihve Income.
Favourahle. {Unfaoisable}
Financial assels desghated at fair value theough profit or loss
- Dbt securilies 13 {13)
Derrvative financial assets 1 11}
Auailable-for-sale financal asets
— Eguaty mcestments 73 72
= Imvestments in funds 2 {1
Finaticaal labilities deshgnated al lalr value through pofil o loss
= Certilicates of depedit imied 261 {261)
(N Transfers between levels for financial instriements which are measured &t falr value on an on-going
bagi, the reasom for these transfers and the policy for determining when tranifers between levels
are deemed
During the year enced 31 Dacesmber 2015, there ware no transfers betwaen levels for firancial instrumants
which we measured at fair value on an on-going basis, The group recogrises the tranafiers betweon levels o
the end of the reparting period during which the changes have aocurred
f4)  Changes in valuation technigque and the reatons for making the changes

Buring the year ended 31 Decemnber 2015, the Group has not changed the waluation technigue of the above
financial assets which are measured at fair value on an on-going bass

315/406

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooood

227



238

22

China Morchants Bank Xl Financial Statements
Annual Report #0175

Investments in subsidiaries

The following it containg anly particulats of subsidiaties which principally affected the results, asse1s or liabdities af
the Group. Unbess othersae stated, the clas of a'l shares held b ordinary, All af thess companies are subsidbaries as
defined undesr Mote 2(d) and have been indluded in the scope of the cantolidated financul statements of the Gradp

%ol
Plice of Parileulis af ureikip
Intorpaciian Ehig asued and held &y Principal Teanome Lol
Nashit & compasy ard apealion pasd i capital the Back  activites K ‘eitienlalne
(i millgey
Ml internatizval Capital Hang Koy HEDH D00 100% Finanpw Limeed Tran Hub
Haldaey Comperalion athtery Compay
Lomited (pate (5 [P 2
CME Feanie Leme Campany Shiseghual AN 000 10HF% Finanoe bewie  |imfed L Basln
Lirnted [nafe i) tempany
Wing Leng Bank Limisd Hang Keey WKL, TE 100% Banking Limeed Tin Huyu
[PectiE (]} oMy
Chins Meschasts Fund Ahemgtan AMEZID 5a% Asset Limfsd LlHa
Management Co, Lid (mere (i) MERMETEN (DM

LD

(1)

fish

L miernatona Copils Heldingy Lowpecalion Limeted [PLRBEENHL ") lorhady Lhown &t Sssgnin Pretd Cospasy Limijed asd LMB
wiemationsl Capdal Corporytos Lirveed, & The Rarw s whollp revid sotsidery spproved by the PROC fhvough il ¥in Fe | Y998 Mo 405
W Jaka, the Rank made s sdifienel ool costijaten of HEDTS0 sifies @ CWBCHC, Th Capid of CRIBCHT ineriaand 10 HED 1 006G
wilior, i the Bk s skl g DeroenlsR 1Fmann arthanged.

the Basrd of Dwectom bawe donsabersd snd pened =The REmiuton regeisy) the Cagetsl Biorsase sed Revrucnmng of CHEICHC™ on 18
Juily 30U webuch sgpied dhat Uhe Rark seade capral esmnbitioe o UI0400 mullee (or dy sguralant) 1o Jh prmarny eisdarg CUBICHT, The
wapital ponirhision dedn'l complets il 1) Decerasr D00, el compleied on 2 Ly 2006,

IR Financial Lessing Company Limdled ("CRBFLC ™) o 8 whollpsiwrel wiliiddiarny of P Beok mporoves] by e CEM fhewugh i Ve kan Fu
ICOR] bis 101} el bttt el (1 et o gl SR b SO0, B Bank snadle in ddebiterial fapetl coirtiilnfion ml RRALY, 100 silio
CHETLE. The capdsl of CWBNC incrested 1 KMBE.00C mikon end Fe Bk sharthokiing pecermage remasm wnchangeid

‘g Lungg Rark Livsied (TVWAE"D B & wholly emed sdndilany of ihe Bard sopesed i JO0R by sy of spermenl The supasibion mes
gl i 15 Larnaany 1000, WLE Do vwitindiasn b livieng: on e WEE ool T8 Jeouary 10010

n J01], e Bk ettadded 1A% ety waeren o Chise Rlerchany bl Managernest Cm | Ll ("OLITW" L AS Dorres dnstlde, linen WG
lmt Mipriagument BY @ @ oomederidan ol IMAD M0 361 07 Folowng flie ieillsmel of il ibows conidesion m dash, the Bahih

hickbhgs o CRIFUE F braeh 13.8% ke 55 0% in JITE A & imil, the Bank setenail e ionirel awiil UL whith hidars e
Basd s yub=sdsarg on 28 Wowersher J013
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Interest in joint ventures

2015 2014
Lihinted shaned, af ednl - -
Shane ol mel assely 217 1,458
Laans 1o jodni weniungs 5 T
2,732 1 465
Shate af profits for the year 134 156
Share af other compeshensive income for the year 2] in
[hetails of the Growp's interest in major joint veniues ae as follows
Faitm of Pace ol Farticulary &1 Gmap't
st ragad wcarporabon \sspd and eflective  Precipal
MName af joint verhees sty i petabion psid up capital ntewst  aclinty
fin thoasands)
CHGNA BCME Lite bnsurance Lemaed compamy Sherithen IHEY 450,000 S0.00%  Lde inusrance
Cerrpany Limited (notefil) businesn
Bank Coreailiim H-nl:hng: Limded company ang [:ng HKD1 50,000 13 3% Prommon of insies,
Lirsted [nate dill adminntraticn and
custodian senvices
{or retinermspnt
whames
ot Elwetronic Teller Seniced Lmtnd compary Hang Kong HEDT0,024 188%  Prowon af ATM
Lirsted (nate inl) nehiark sehaces.
Hang Keny Lile Inderance Lemted enmpaey Hang Keng HKCER0, 000 66T  Ldo inusance
Lirstnd Busines
B Resrmiaance Limted Limird compasy  Hang oo HKD 200,000 71.00%  Rmnsuesnce butmnes
FTech Solutsam Limed Lemed compasy Iwang Kong HEDE 00 S5000%  Electronk document
procing
Sheruchen Thabyin Smengelic Lemutedl compasy Sewerithen AW 10,000 51.00%  Fund management
Fund Mandgement Co_Liud
Shenzhen Spnergett Hesheng Pertnerhp Stenthen RME4B4, 160 516%  Imesstment
el Acqidation Fund enlemiise
iherizhen Lianzkaa information Lemied compary Sherizhin RiBa0 000 5000%  Corpuler network
Technology Co., L1g servicd
ierchanis Linoon Corsumer Lewried compary Shenithen RMBZ.00C.000 5000%  Corsump finande
Firaeae Crrmpany Limitesd
[rearbe e}
CMB Chanha) Financial Assen Lemied company Shanthen RME100,000 A500%  Francisd el
Eschange Co., Lid. warhange pletinrm
anul areoy
LT
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Mailed

il Tl Ceeng Feclity S0 00% buily iilsdieiti &1 COOMA & EMN Lilv Indiiahis Cuimpaty Lsited [SOGIA & LB LN6"L and Lile lauissd
Cinirgeityy wl Momih Aeseslm (TINATD el 500 00% wdmily didserts of CIGMA & A8 Lie TIGRA & CME Lile o the oy joim vivibas on Tw
Banty lewed The Rack and WA thaie the jant svtany proliln, sy snd e baed on the sbowe proportan of thee thaskokings, The
Sk % ryerstment in TEGHA & COAR Life shall Be sccountisd @5 #n ieestment i A e verdare

na Tl B’y sullsbdary, W Jepithy T4 29% o thee wriliCys coneicn hars sl is antilled m 11.33% of the paid el denili

(] The Bari's wilnaliery, WiE, & one ol e fee lounde il e snlily aned onily coninls the eniiy WUB folds 35 00% al #e eniigy comean

abars amrl m eraied tn 3 BB of the e ilders

T Th Hirk § abnediang WIB, and ©hra Unaded Benvod Commenicisans Limdted 1SCURE "L wheeh m & sidnichary ol Chine Uinscemm Lamtad,
ity el g M chanis Uishan Cenune Touiscy Company Limissd ("RGCFC ), CARC hae sppesrd the operatsn ol WUCIC on 3 Maich
Ot WAL e CLENC bl 50,00 sepuaty i eessi o WIACIC sad e the Fakc, prafili ood eeey haed an the abose prapection & S
abarphoiding,

Summarised financal miosmation of the ot vertures wheh are individuially matenal to the Groug is 43 balow:

(i CIGNA & CMB Life Insurance Company Limited:

Ot Tl Ceh  [epeidan
bt onembese  ompdeun e eh wrd
At Lot il B gl o rome mieh ookl nooeln
il
100 et vt i 1A 175 L] m o k1] m il 1
Gy tethe e Lo 1,704 111 L 1L n LF: ] 1] n a
foic]
1980 pee et WAl LB L 5H s (] . o5 | ]
Gy e rowees b I 1 13 Lt £ . | (] H
(i MUCFC
Dtk Bl Coh  Depsiiden
tli  opehews  opeess ind tah ind
e bl gy Reme ol coms Fone el imrbadon ool
M5
150 o el ] L5 1,518 m [LH] - 1] 1] 1 -
't et e 153 -] 5 B L4} - [LH] L] 1 -

Summarised financal infofmaton of the @in1 vertures that ane not indridualy material 10 the Group (others);

Cithar Tatal
comprehensive comprahenive
Profit ar Inss Incoms incorne
2015
100 per cent 199 209 ADE
Group's effectioe inenest 28 iz ES
2014
100 per cont 206 f nz
Giraip's effecive interest 30 1 n
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Interest in associates
015 2014
Shate af ret sdsets 52 17
Goodwil 2 2z
54 19
Share of profits Tor the yea F 2

The following lst contairs the information ds of 31 December 2015 of amociated, whch are unlisted carporate
entities and principally affected the results or assets of the Group

Mace gl Farfioulsrs ol Cnngr's
Farm of buiren rEcrporation naed and e lective
N i E3s0cute stnacture snd opetaton piid up capital e Pracucipiel actiity
fin thegrandi)
Frobruonal Liabifity Underaditrng Lirsted compary Iang Koog HED3, 000 i7.00%  Insgrance
Soriced Lrncted unteraeilng
Beping Zhorgguancan Garele Limssted compary Beping RNE30,000 1500%  Fund Management
Investmant Fund Management
Lirmted
Shirghai Rosedineh Juves Limwited pastnpihup Shasgha) HEDBE 500 AL 00% Invstmamd

Invesamart Conter

Surnmuarsed (mancial infermation of the asiocates that e nol individually material te the Group:

Crthar Tetal

comgrehensve comprehensive

- Peafit or loss income Income
2015

100 per cent 5 - 5

Group's effective merest 1 = 1
20014

100 per cent ? - 7

Group's effective mierest 2 - ]
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Property and equipment

Mitor

landand  Congruction  Compurter Lessehald hircafts yebices

buildinge in progress eouipment  improvemerfte and wesuels and othets Tatal
Ceat:
At ey 701 11,166 B80G 1133 a28 LER 5585 LER- 1]
Addibaas (1] 1. 1.1 TEt 1785 m B0
Reclmaficaton snd tramisn 291 4 44k 1 i - B (T1&)
Deipealifrils-ofhi (38} - (159) {108) - f4s2) (857
Ercuange diferince 17 = ] L1 115 L In
At 31 Detendber 3015 1,53 &134 BI54 5,508 578 5179 S1ES
Becumylated depreciation
A1) hasudey 1015 87 - 547 2376 m a0 16536
Deptecadon 1.102 - 1081 T 220 B3f 1558
Reclsiaficutan and (raniders (a1} - 1 m - 1 139
Desperaluwrite-otis (15} - Lk ] LET] - (44E| (&76]
Eucuirrge chifmmoe (161 - q 50 3 i6
A1 11 Deeeber 1015 55T - 589 1556 o a4 198lG
Pet book walue:
A1 X1 Detmeer 2015 15,548 4134 LIE) 1A% 515 1188 11835
At fangary JOIS 111 L1 LI L5 1A% 1.4 11445

Mot

L and  Comitructon Compuie Luausheld hiroradt wahicles

tunidings 7 progie Fqpmant i provernents e sess and cthry Tt
Ceat:
Al sy 1018 LE 1] 4714t L5 185 1408 L RLI] 40715
Ieddibong 43 2598 TE52 sl - 144 147
Reclandficaton and tramten { LE1 L] n a8 Ak 154 418
Deporiadubarttecth (L] H] am 11,400 @135 - [E48) L4108
Exzungo ditemep T ] n B - B 147
At 11 Dectmber 2014 17,166 i B0 1.8 134 ¥ 1] 5385 PR
Accumilated deprecatinn:
AL | Jamary 1014 £108 - L LED 153 ERL VB3E
(eepirciataon Eif - 1 bl§ TiE L T4 1418
Reclmulication and (raniden § - [ 1% - 231 in
Dbl e=plly LL[] - (] 2108 - (458] asm
Encuange differmmes B - .| 5 - 16 3
A1 31 Deppmbe ¥014 sy - L8y 1.516 nt LR 16,556
Net boak valur:
&1 11 Degpeber 2014 1,13 BN LW 1,558 &5 1,586 s
At | ey 1014 1m a1 161 255 L5 1,43 FIRL.
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25 Property and equipment e

{a) Analysed by remaining terms of leases

Ihe nel book value af land and buildings at the end of the repesting pesiod (s 2nalysed by the remaming term ol
Ihe ipases an follews

2015 2014
Held in Mainlapd China
= | ordg-torm laaget (owar 50 yoars) 335 374
= Medium-tarm feaves (10 - 50 yearsl 13,429 9832
13,774 10,206
Hald in Hong Kaong
= Long-term beases (ower 50 years] EEEY 1,060
= Medium=tarm oasey (10 = S0 yoars) 855 [k
1,854 1,994
Hald awrrisas
= Fraehold 148 19
15,646 12,219

(b} & at 31 Decamber 2015, the Board of Déreciors comsidered that there & no bmpaiment loss on properly and
equipmant (2014 nil)

{C} Ay a1 31 December 2015, the proceds ol obdaining the registration kceme Tor the Group’s properies with an
aggregate net carrymg valoe of EMERTO million (2014, RMBSE0 million) was stll in progress.

{d} Asat 31 December 2015, the Group has no significant unused property and equipment (2014 nif)
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Investment properties

2015 014
Cogt:
A1 1 Januwary 2477 2,473
Tratiiders 140 B8
Exchange diflerence 7 ]
AL 3N Degermbied 2,634 2.477
Accumulated depreciation:
A1 danwary 793 678
Depreciation 1z7 119
Tramifer 41 (14}
Euchange dillerence 15 1]
A1 31 December SBG 783
Mot book walua;
At 31 Dogamber 1708 1.684
At 1 Janwary 1.684 1001

Analysed by remaining terms of leases

The aet book value af invesiment properties at the end af the reperting period = analysed by the remaining terms
of the e m follows

2015 mna

Held in Manland China
= Medilimeterm lpatat (10 = 50 yrars) 550 LOR
55':! . 586

Held in Hang Kang

= long leases {over 58 yearsh 55 B
= Medium-term leases (10 = 50 year) 1.059 1.088
1158 1.088
1.708 1684

Investment properties of the Group mainly represent the leang properties of WLE and the portion of the Bank's
headguariers in Shenthen that has been leased oul under operating leases or s avallable foo lease As @t 31
Decernber 2015, fair value of these properties wit RMB4 TE4 milllon (2014: AMB4, 216 milllan), The Group’s lotal
futuise minirmam lexse payments under non-cancellable operating leawed e recevatiler & folloas

2015 rana
Within 1 year (imclusve) 192 193
1 year 1o 5 years [inclusve) 206 57
Over S yoar 14 1
412 a7t
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Intangible assets

Land use right Soltware Core deposit Tatal
Coativaluation:
At 1 lanwary 2015 1,532 2,424 1,059 50135
Acditiong & oo - 715
Translers 124} - - {24)
Eul‘uﬁgl diff atence 3 2 43 48
A1 31 Decernber 2015 1,517 3,135 1,102 5,754
Amortisation
ALY January 2015 207 1,271 245 1,723
dubderionm 35 60 iz a427
Translers 1 - = 1
Exchange dif{eence - Fi 6 |
A1 31 Detembaer 2015 243 1,633 283 2,159
Net book value:
At 3 Decembar 2015 1,274 1,502 819 31,5485
At 1 January 2015 1,325 1,153 B4 3,392

Land wie right Salraare Care deposii Tolal

Costivaluation:
&1 1 larsary 2004 1,267 159491 1,034 &4 322
Addition 220 432 652
Translers & . = &
Exchange difference ] ] 15 a5
At 3 Deceribas 2014 1.5332 2424 1059 5015
Amortisation:
At 1 lanugary 2014 1] 456 199 1,326
Audditions 35 34 11 3940
Translers 1 - - 1
Exchamge diffsrance - ] 5 6
A1 31 Decembaer 2014 207 1.7 245 1,721
Net book valus:
At ¥ December 2014 1,325 1,153 814 3,292
At 1 lanuary 2004 1,126 1,035 £35 2

323/406



236

28

29

China Morchants Sank Xl Fnancial Statements
Annual Report 2075
Goodwill
As al Additien Releaze in Ax gt Impairmeni Hat walue at

1 lanauary m tha year tha yaar 31 Decambar boss 30 Decomber
WLE [Note (5] 10,577 = - 177 e} 0,598
CRIM {Mate (ul] 55 - - 355 - ans
CMEICHE (Mote fiif) = 1 - 1 = 1
Tartal 19,532 1 - 10,533 LTL 9,958
Hates

hk

O 30 Tagripmber J000 Sw Rank sogared 3 111 3% squsy ivisesiy in WIR O the scgquastion. Saiy, e far yalis of SLEY iderdifualss rert
s 6 vead HigH 1L W00 adlia®, ol wiezh P Bark scomsdid lor AMBOEGT salogn A Som of KMEIEHIT il Beng W eacrid of maije
st oy The Bas valus o (he aheraabie rat oals wom secogrnsd au pooriedl. Paaws fnd dw deteds sbout WK s Rlods 22

Ly 3B ipwawmhes 3013, the Bard mojured 8 55 5% sguily eviems in CRFLE Dw the soguiubon dets, the S value of CLEEY devisdishie
Fut L v AMETT meikn of whith e Rank scoonted P AMBEES milion A wem of AMBFSY Fibon Being the soes of meage ool
st the P gallr o the alerafusbls st oty s erioapresead ot goodnd]  Pagur Bne the detely sheut CWMBY = Nate T2

0m 1 A 30T, OMBCHT arquesd 8 §00% squty nteresn i Shendhen Songho informannn and Techaningy Copoeasan {emered
" Bunpies”™| On P gissllioh s, S e wehae o Songhiny igenlillable o0 anely v KLSRT 6D ®ilboss & wefm il BRALE nelvom bewg
the smirmy of mevger cost oesr the Lar sslie ol the enizhetle ned s wai woogrewil = goodwall Boegho's precpal scivlien weide
ddwplinfmer il Aile ol roMutn iafmdie e Harswdare il i CRTRUR IR stpojiinenl S5 Sl oe SUNOMENSN MpERTEnH, aSdury
weries of compate techmalogy and mimmgbae

Impairment test for CGU containing goodwill

Goodudl 4 allocated 1o the Group's CGU, WLE which was scqured on 30 September 2008 srd CMEM wiich was
acquired an 28 November 2013

The recowerable amount of the COU & determined based om valup-incuse ealculations These ealeylations use cash
fizwe prajections based on financial forecasts approved by management covening a S-year period, Cash flows beyond
the S-year penod are extrapolated using a steady giowth rate The growth rate does not edceed the long-term
average grawth rate for the business in which the CGU operates

In assessing mparment of goadwill, the Group assumed the termina! growth n line with long-term forecast grons
damitic produsct far the main opecating areas af WI1EB ard CMEM. & pre-tax dicoein? rate of 12% and 153% 014:
12% and 12%) win ued

Deferred tax assets, deferred tax liabilities

2015 1004
Deferrad tax assets 16,020 10,291
Deferred 1ax labihties (BET) [rrth
et amouns 15,153 9,520
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Deferred tax assets, deferred tax liabilities «ownsa

Analysed by nature of deferred tax assets and liabilities

The components of deferred tas dssetvBabilinees sre as follaws

2015 a0a
Deductibile! Deductibie!
[raxable} {tanabie}
temporary temporany
ditference Deferred tax difference Defrred taa
Deferred tax asiets
Impadrmenl allewanc et for loams and
advancey o customess and othed avaes 63,217 15,783 36,647 9 150
Investmnl mevaluation resenne (7,614} (1.9035) (2,203) {350)
Salary andd wellaie oy abie 9,665 2418 5.290 1,322
Othisrs {1,087} {276} 1,512 369
Total 64,185 16,020 41746 10,291
Deferred tax liabilities
Impasrmpnl allowandes on loam and
advances 1o customens and other awets 145 a2 112 34
investment mevaluation resare (252} {E1} {13 E1]
Dihers 15,304} {848) [5,022] 1BOZ)
Tatal 5,307 [867) [4.8231 i
Movements of deferred tax
Impairment
allowances
on loans and
advances to Investment Lalary and
custamess and revaluation wnllare
ather assets feierve payable Dthers Tatal
AL 1 January 2S5 a,1eq (553} 1,222 (233) 9,520
Recognited in profit or loss 6,638 1,096 (527 7,207
Recognised in other
carmprehesive Intome - {1,413} - (124) {1,537
Exchangw difforence 3 - - [€7i}] r,ﬂ'!
Al 31 Detsmbeer 2015 15,825 {1,966} 2418 {1,124) 15,153
Iimprastiniel
allrmancey
ol loans and
advances 1o Ireearment Salary and
custamers and recaluation woelfisre
) other assets resarye payakile Cithers Tartal
AT 1 lanuary 2004 LRE ] 1.B87 1,621 213 7,294
Recognised (n profit of loss 5174 - [leeic] L ER=21
fecognised in other
camprehensive inoome - 2,44481 - {263} {2,703)
E:_id'ullg_g diff erence 1 - - ({1 {17
&1 31 December 2014 9,184 [553) | P (433) a5
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Other assets
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2015 iong
Arratands ponding 1or wiilement 4,919 3.883
Progad leasd payments 1.091 C1E]
Hepetigsied Addets (Mot (A1) B3 455
Gunranies depoyls 463 926
Recaverable lram fsimiuien 219 235
Prghaymisit lor leasie rrprowement and other msdellateous lgms 158 kLT
Prefiuisin iscehvdbiles 129 135
Defined benef. plan {Note 37861 27 70
Other 5141 7150
Tatal 13,848 14,091
Repossessed assets

2015 2014
Aeudential properties 1,044 Tdb
Cithers 628 a5
Tatal 1,672 1.398
Lews! impaiement allwancet ([@a1) (azh
Met ieposseated asiels B9 a55

Maoies

1] # J015 the Gmop has doposes rpossesied et widhs Yol eosl of BT malien (1000 RGIELL millon]

[111) fiwe frtmen plam 10 depone the srpomenned s bty sechon, b=d and (raniles

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions

In EAminland
— Banky
- Qther financial nsIuions

Oulslde Mainlsnd
= Banky

2015

176,934
527.101
704,035

1,526
711,561

2008

203,283
386,030
569,313

108,135
RGT 84R
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32 Placements from banks and other financial

institutions
2015 204
in M:au:l.u-'-u
- Banks 165,471 77917
= Dgher financal institutons 1,100 -
“'Iii-lé:iﬂn F'.F-..‘;H !
Dutude Mainiand
- fanks 12,200 16,686
1?3.3}1 . 04,603

33 Amounts sold under repurchase agreements

{a) Analysed by nature of counterparties

2015 2014
I il
Banks 173,439 56,279
Other fimancal institutsorns 9,060 5,420
182,489 f1,70%
Outede Maintand
= Danks 3,153 5282
185,652 66,984
(b} Analysed by assets type
2015 2014
Coeout e
= FRC govermment bonds 12,833 13,328
- Bands [isued by policy banks £7,336 16,428
= Homds issued by cormmercial banks and other finanoal inslitutions 1,994 3,823
- Dihet debi securibies 1,159 1,588
§3,322 5, 167
Discounted inlly 102, 330 30,908
Lomams and advsmtes - 9113
185,652 66, 0E8

327/406



240

34

35

36

China Morchants Bank ¥l Financial Statements
Annual Report 2015

Deposits from customers

2015 rond
Codposalis cuthhmsn
= Demand deposity 1,167 467 973,646
— Tirmer deposits 1,194 064 1.237. 765
2,361,511 pA4An
Rataill customen
= Demainsd deposits E35.062 B4 B3I6
= Timi daposits 175,105 g 181
1,110,167 1,093,027
3,571,698 3,304,438
Customer deposts inchude margmal depodats for guarantess as follows
2015 Fond
Guaranted (&4 atcedlance bBil's 191 088 |7 437
Guarantes 1or loans 49 188 48,193
Guaranies loi mauing leilers of credil 56,409 5a T05
Deport for letters of quarantes 60,172 43 T
Oithers 57.887 51.005
415,714 Ip4.0EB
Interest payable
2015 FOTa
sswed dobd scurities 1.398 1,352
Cualomer deposl aivd allwis 37,675 43.997
39,073 45,340
Debt securities issued
Note 2015 a4
Subordinated nobes ksued Jtdal 32.519 1i.390
Lang-term deld securities issued LT 27,995 17,636
Megotiable interbank certificates of deposit 176,245 24,832
Certificates of depual nsued 14.748 1.1
151,507 106,155
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Debt securities issued commes

Subordinated notes issued

Ax i the god af the reparting perod, subordingled petes issoed by the Bank wees a1 folloe

Al Dacoust  Recaymest
ot o risrest lemra  hgoeng lmoen o pemam br - fndrg
Debt b Temjomulnly  Fwane ity why  hino  teree amoituben  tews el
8 n Ve
] (o Pt wuher] malicn|
Fooed vt bond et [0 180 mordiy Sep 42008 BT dw o7 005 .59 . | - 1]
it e
L
L5 {frm 71
P AT,
# the oty
are nat caled
by the Basi)
Fooed rate bond et JE1) 180 mordfn Dee 24201 5N LT 11,586 - 1 = s
Foued rate biored sk 00 120 marty Ao L MM G&2 G100 11288 - 1 - e
29965 - 4 - el
thobes

(2]

[T

The CEAL asd MIOC sppiowed the Besks imusdce of BN, D00 mellin subsedinsied robes on 12 Aot 1008 (Y L Fe | 2000) tio k0
nitied “The Appepwad of the Hssante 5l abornated boeds by China Metchares Basa™ and in 35 Thasg i Thon Yis T | 2008 8o 24
entthed "Deodon on Adeusigiranee Appeval ham e Peogley Resk of Chew™] The Rask sed SO0 000 milian keed 1air note srl
ElARd, 000 rallirr lsading catr rabes ancdl Sefiieesbes MOS8 Ba nutiniinnes reeitory o asliced ©bna indferthand fend Maks

The Rerk sweirnad W sedempion po or d Senbenbes 2015 e redeened 4 tolal al' BAEDY, 500 millans dubardnated Bandi, mclusing s
s il moenids islusend @l MR 5, 000 assdl b ing] WARAL DOD willisen et By,

The CABC s MMOC approvrd the Bark'y sy of RMET 700 ellipn mdsesnaied notey on £9 Woywmber 3087 1y Han T [7017] 8, 160
erttilived “The Apgremial ol the aiiane's Gabsfinsted banle iy o bins dechaem Reeki*) and oo 70 Deosmies 3007 070 She C e B Thon i
o |30N2| Wo9 evitied “Decuian on Afmniviiater Approssl from the Femles Bank of Chine ") The Beek musd AR, 700 w0 lien feed
Taim Feotid oy JE Dagwrrsee J017 in vy itiusenal st on WPawlesd Cling interbanh Beral b,

The CHAC ard PHOC dpowoowd B Binky tausnce ol BAID] 1 I06 mileirs tai-0 capatal bondy on 19 Detobe 1013 (¥ey Ram Fu [BO1T] 8 557
endtied “The Approval of the malerde wdordnated bordl By CRna Mercants Beck™] and an L bped 1008 (70 Shi Chang K fhin 7 T
|FOR] NeT2 weanled] “Decasse o Adminiiral e Agpnoval fiam the Peoples Renk of Chine®] The Benl imusd k011 300 mkion 1
caprtal ponm oo 18 Asrl P14 an Maeniend China merhank Rond Marke
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Debt securities issued e

Subordinated notes issued foonninusd)

As @t the end of the reporting perlod, subordinated nate issued by WLB was as fellows
Aerual Orcoint  Rigaiymert
Daie of il Moread  Begreng e i o premaEm far  Endeg
Dot brpe Tem o malualy  Asasce e vl biariy e noinaten e balege
[l W
= i i} il on) Fallin)
Fied rate Bomd T4 marehs DeclB M0 50 KD 500 113 - o « 1258
Fited tx fmaing 10 merd MeeE, 2017 150 (far the Lsmeng 1131 E B - (1]
rata ol st § yanl;
=43 B2 {from
g
s,
w noteam
ot el by
P Birie)
1430 - 112 - 158

¥ reperesents i &y L ey rate

Long-term debt securities

As a1 the end of the reperting pericd, leng-term defit securties ssued by the Bank were ay follows:

Aareal Doonent  Resyment
Cate of L Morisgd  Begreng |meein O premEm far  Endieg
Dear bype e o matunty  isance i3 walg bdance  hepwr imonnEen  thevesr  balece
|RiE WEn
i) I e} molian] radan)
13 ChE 0T frote [T B momtie Mur 4 N2 41§ B 500 i - i - £a37
1M 0 Irate |l 50 monti Mur e, W7 08 BN 50 13451 - 4 S
B3 [rote (il T monti Aprig e A LML - ' - W
ol - [ - %0

' R repieients T Veppd Raid depesil vate §CBale ) pesmokgaied by e PROC The Bale om0 Alecch PORT wam 7 50

Ml

The CBALC andl PO dppewerd B Bardy lnuaeas of KhE20, 000 wdlion beney-neme debi seaiies o LF Decsmber JO0 Y (v Jlan B (301
i 557 eniitled “The Appiossl of e ssusnce of ong.aem deb® seosd e by Chng Merdhants Besk ™) ardd s 18 lermary 22107 (¥in ik
Lhieg Sy fhar T i [5004] Mo 2 eriftied “Decrieon ph Admnntiatve Approvel Uoe Te Peopley Bai GF Chna™) The Hine oot RWEE, S
millipr g raiw dehn anad BRAT 3500 mdicn fipsting eaie detn s 14 Wach 2007 pn Fa Mainland Chisa derard Rond Barkat

The FROL snd Mehonsl Dewlopemsnt snd Bsfgrey Commegion sporoesd e Berks muaecs of AT 000 mifliom finencisl borek on 13
belstugey J0 b (¥in phey [BEEA] e 35 aevitied “The Apgroisl of thie mlecxs of lersral ekt teoate i Boag g Uy Chea hascha s
Bard =} avf oy 10 Waich 300 [Fa Ga e 5 L3000 a] Mo ARD evidfled ~The Approwdl o s of Binmink Sabi iemetue = liong Enng by
Chirss yberatuands Bank ™) The Rank ssued RIEY, D00 silion Gl Bandy o 1D &gl 2014 0 Hoeg Kong
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Debt securities issued o
Leng-term debt securities fcentinued
A4 &t the end of the repening period, long-term debt securities [ssued by CMBFLE woere a5 follaws:
Ll Dricoust  Rmpayramit
Duta ol ey lomral  Begmerg  bwan of premum far g
Dkt 1w Torm by malyirly Al i ke basnce  theyew dmofnaben  Bewer Bl
[T i n
% Ginlion) i) o)
Foed rate boed incia i) 36 mons fum 24, 3013 459 RuEL0 11000 - - (R ]
Foud e bond fpom (] 60 manths o 26, 1003 508 WUENS00 (1 o - (]
Food st boed {soteial] 36 mondy fud M, 013 457 RuBIG0D 1,000 - - 100
Foped rate bont fferw (] 60 mants i 24, 013 450 RSO3 .00 - - - 130
Fupd rat boed (oo ]~ 36 mony Doz 7. 2005 1% RUBIG - b - - m
4000 fa| 430
bt
i) A approeed by CSAC unchr A1y Dl Begdy on. the Weuance of Frisedial Bovdy fry CMBELC under w8 Yy b 4 [3013] Ba. 758 and FEOC

ubile 5 Divitinn ot The Cannd ul Adsrraabialles Peeratto widee rel Wie O Chang %o Thisn Vo 21 2013 Ne 30, CMBILE wiusd the gl
tranche of 2073 of BEF 008 mbion financs bordy on M hane JOKY @ the sscond tranche of 2013 af BWE2.000 millon finanaal bone
e 34y 3810, AL 1 1 Borrpmber JOIS, tia Bank bk AR milssn frm il bondy e by ChiBNE

(0] Aa approwed by COBRE Shanghm aifice wder i Baply om i Euance of Tinanpal Bormd by CHBRNE under ol Wiy Yire Jaan o [2676] b 4510
wrd PEOC ypncer j1s Decnéon on the Giant of Admeniiratsve Permson ander se®, Tim She Chang Xu B v D [ 2019] Mo 276, OV maes
e il Wirndlin o 3075 of BU 300 milice (imisc el bandi o F B 3016

An at the #nd of the reporting pediod, long-Leem delil securities sued by CWMB Intenational Leasing Matsagemne
Limnited {*CMBIL®), CAMBICHT s subssliary, were as follows:

Kol Ducourt  Aepiymest

Dz af fiteigad bemmd  Beponng  BLE N oF pRemam L ]

Dttty o T T i il bawy ey imoinien  Pewmr  Biliee

LT [

% Gomiloe) milor il

Faeed rale ol (Nake (1) ] manthy g 1,314 138 L] 0% = 15 - 328

haten

il O 11 sy 2O, AL et LD 500 milice wet® snnual indeveid fale of 1 3% gusrarised nstrs due 20715 o phe Hidls
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Staff welfare scheme

Salaries and welfare payable
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2015
Payment/
Beginning Change transfers Ending
balancoe In the year in the year balance
Short-term ermployee benedits (1) 5,865 24,004 {23,615) 6,254
Posl=employrment benafits
= diefined contrabution plans (i) 175 3,080 {3,023) 232
Orther long-term employee benefits (i) | 10 - el ]
6,068 27,094 (26.638) 6,528
2014
Paymentd
Beguntiing Charge tratistess Ending
bakance in thee year in the year alance
Shott -term employes bonedits (b B 057 19,093 (18, 285) 5.86%
Poil-emplayrmient banafing
= defined conirbailen plars (i) a% £ Bd9 2. 763 175
ke landg-18im srploves Bemstito (1) 13 15 - 28
5119 21,997 121,048 6,068
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Staff welfare scheme connen

Salaries and welfare payable frontinued

Short-term employee benefits
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2015
Payment/

Beginning Change transiers Ending

balance in the year in the year balance

Salary and bonurt 4,215 17,248 (16,887) 4,576

WaeHare EApEnTY 37 2,400 {2,395] 39

Social infurance

= Medical inidrance 14 1,611 {1,545) 80

= Irjury insutance i 35 {33) 3

= Maternity injurance 3 53 52) 4

Heurirng resene 247 1,546 (1,640) 148
Labiour uron dnd employes education

expeTie 1,353 1,111 {1,060) 1,404

5,865 24,004 [23.615]) 6,254

Z201&
Faymants

Beginning Change translers Ending

halance n the year n the year balarce

Salary &nd bonus 1576 15,069 (14, 430) 4,215

‘Wellare expenie k] B2 {a1) 7

Social imuatance

- Madical inturance 165 1,464 (1619 14

— Irjury iraufance 1 9 (29} 1

— Maternity Inustance F. A4 23y E |

Heuming resenve oE 1,548 (4141 242
Labaur unmon and employes education

EXpEITES 1,165 _B57 (6&7) 1,353

5057 19,063 {18,285) 5,865
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37 Staff welfare scheme (wmnuen
{a) Salaries and welfare payable jontinued)

i}  Post-employment benefits-defined centribution plan

2015
Payment/
Beginning Change transfers Ending
balance in the year in the year balance
Base retirorment wcuniy ay 1,385 {1,!5], 79
’iupphmllnhrp eriAsan 122 1,601 {1 .5!2: 141
Unemployrment inwirance 6 94 [EE) 12
175 3.080 {3.023) 232
2014
Faymentd
Beginning Charge transfers Ending
bakarnce in the year n the year balince
Batks retirement security iz 1,218 11,203} 4F
SupplamEntany PG 13 1,580 {1.47%) 122
Urlnhpluyrrl‘nl LT A LE 4 21 (B9 B
a9 2 8a9 (2763 175

Defined contribution pension schemes

In accoreance with the regulations in the PRC, the Group participates in-s1atutary pension schemes organsed by the
musnicipal and provincial governments for s employess |endowment insurance), Dunng the year 2015, the Group's
coiributions to the schemes are detarmined by local governments ard vary at a range of 12% te 35% (2014 10%
o 35 %) of the stall sadaries

In atdition to the above Datutory pension icheme, the Group hat established a wipplementary delmed contribution
plan for (14 employvess (annulty insisance) i accordance with relevant annuity pedices for corporate entities in the
PRC. Dufing the yesr 2005, the Ghouns anmeal contributions 1o thitv plan aré detémined besed on B 33% al the
abaf| salaries and bonuses (20014 8.33%).

For its employees outside Mainland China, the Group participates in defined contribution rethement schemas at
funding rates determined i accordance with the local practise and regulations
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Other long-term employees benefits
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215
Payment/
Beginning Change transfers Ending
balance in the year in the year balance
Cash settled thare-based transacton i1 10 - i8
2B 1] - EL |
2014
PFary ety
Beginning Change transders Ending
balance i the yeas n the year balarce
Cash sertied share-based transactions 13 15 - 28
____________________________ — = - = =

A at 31 Decernber 2015, the Group hay offered 7 phases of H share Appreciation Rights Scheme o s tenior
maragement (“the Scheme®). Tha options of the Scheme veit aftes F years or 3 yeafs from the grant date and are
than esprcisable withsn a period of B years or 7 years, Each ol the share sppreciation righd & lined 10 one H-share
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Staff welfare scheme (omnen
Salaries and welfare payable jontinued)

Other lang-term employee benefits fcontmue)

Al share Adpprociation rights shall bo settled = caih. The loims and condiliond af 1he wchome are ited balow:

Mumber al
uretercied
oplians
at the end of Contract period
2015 Exercrse conditans of aplions
{in millans)
Options granted an 30 October 2007 922 2 wears after the grant date 10 yeary
Options granted on 7 November 2008 0554 2 years after the grant date 10 years
Optiom granted on 16 Nevember 2009 1.110 2 yeary after the grant date 10 year
Optior grarted an 18 Februay 20011 1228 3 yaan aftes the grant date 10 yeary
Optior granted an 4 kay 2012 1.259 3 years after the grant date 10 yaaey
Option granted on 22 May 2013 1259 3 years alter the geant date 10 years
Cplior granted an 7 July 2014 2070 3 years after the grant date 10 yaary
Thie numbiet and wiighied average execiie praoes of share optrons ste ds Tollows
2015 2014
Weighted Wisghted
average Number of meorage Murmbier of
exerciie prios options onercie i oplaen
(HED} {in million] (M) {im millban)
Guistanding as ol the beginning of 1he yoar 15.43 o.70 1640 .11
Granied during tha year - - 14 B4 i1.78
Fodeited durng ibe yea 14.61 10903 15.64 {1.63)
Duistanding at the snd ol 1he year 1458 B.2D 15.43 970
Exerchuablie at the end of this year 15.23 ERD 16.29 148

The optiens outstanding at 31 December 2015 had an weighted avorage exercise price of HED14.58 (2014
HED 5.43) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 567 years 2014, & 76 yean)

Puruant ta the reculromerts del out in the Schimse, il any dividends weto ditributed, eapaal resend wiad canveried
inta shares, shane spiit of dilution, an adjustmient to the exenchie prce | applied.
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Staff welfare scheme o

Salaries and welfare payable fantinued

Other leng-term employes benefits (continwed)
Fair value af thare aptions and aviumpboi

The far value of services receved i return for share oplions granted are measwed by reference to the fas value
ol share optons granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share opton granted is messured bised on the
Black-Schales model. The contractual ife of the option is used a5 an aput into the mode!

2015
Phase | Phase Phawe Il Phase IV Phaie V' Phase VI Phase VI

Fair value at measuremend

date {in EA) 1.82 10,26 4325 461 5.09 a.81 1,63
Shato price (in HED) 18,30 1830 1830 18.30 18.30 18,30 1E.30
Exgrose price [in H KB} 24,00 5.46 16,69 15,56 1336 13,93 1399
Expacted volatiliy 435 43% 43% 43% 43% 3% A3%
Dptian life {year) 1.83 2.85 285 514 5,35 739 B52
Frpinsctod dividenty rate B.25% 65% 625% B I5% 6.25% B.25%: 65%
Risk-free intedes! rale 1.41% 1.40% 1.41% 1.41% 1.41% 1.41% 1.41%

2014
Phase | Phaze il Fhawe il Flmﬂ [i1 Fruase Phase Wl Phase Wil
Fale value & measurement

date {in Fhib) 116 o223 3.25 360 4.22 350 374
Share price (in HED) 19.46 1%.96 1946 19.46 19.46 19.46 19.46
Exerose price fin HED) 24,85 X 1754 1640 iEFd 14.78 14 84
Expacted volatility 26% 26% 265 6% 26% 26% 26
Cptan hfe {year) 183 3483 4 83 617 733 BAad .58
Expacied dividends rate £27% 527% 5.27T% 5.17% 5217% 5.27% 5.27%
Rokfres intersstrate  250%  258%  aS%  2S6W  258%  250% 2584

The pxpected volatlity s based on the historical volatility {caloulated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted Tod any expected changes te future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expecied dividends are based on historcal dividends, Charges i the subjecive input assumpliom csuld matenally
affect the faer value estimale.

Share aptons wene granted under a serate conddson, This condition has not been taken inlo account in the gram
date fair value maasurermnent of the serdces recered, There were no market conditions ssocated with the share
oplion grants
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Staff welfare scheme oonen
Salaries and welfare payable jconrinued)

Other long-term employes benefit fcontmued)

The numbier of shane aopreciation rights granted 1o miembern of senior managoment:

Fhae! Pl Pmell  PhalV Fumy

Frawe VI

Fhase ¥

Mo. ol harei Mo of shares Neo ofdhiess Mo efthater No, of shares Neoof thares Mo of baret Mo, of shares  Tatal na. of

arind graried granted gracted granied jranied pranied erecied hases

[in thowmand] (in thauaed) §a theusnd) {in thoesnd] [in thouard] (i theatand] [in thowsed] [in thoused) (m theusand]

M W g il 118 i mr nr 3T - - 1883
Tuateg Cuang il 15 158 L] bl Fi piii] 2 - 1330
Li Hae 153 15 123} Lo 00 Pl M = 131
tang T oy i ] 138 L] 18 184 184 il - 1,243
g Wes ¥ i) ji] 123} 184 15 TE4 1 = 121
Warey Qi fin - - 5} 153 184 1 bil] - 86l
Tan thi Yu - - - - B - o0 - 30
L bamy - - - - - - il - na
Wing Limg £ = & = = 150 = i
Lt B Lim - - - - - - 1% - 15
i 50 g = = - = = = 15 = !
ot 2 L] 1509 LT 1,55 139 aam - i1l

il ]
Funa | Fruna I Frune Il P & Phase ¥ P W1 Phawe ¥

Mo.ofshawy Mo ofvhem  Hooolvem  Neoof dew Mo oolvem  lo ofvam  Nooofshew U ofthees  Totslng o

arced goaied franind garsed qranied granted ranng raarc e e

[mtheuand fnthosaedl  [nthonandl  fnvthowwnd)  dn Fogued)  fin thomand) . [im o s {i {n £

Wi W Wi i 38 i wr ) £l : 1883
Thareg Guang Ha 15% 159 K1 L oo i T - 132
Li Hae 153 158 L) b na im & 1.3
lang ite Hoag 15% 134 1] L] LS 16 Y - 1343
g Wl m 159 L) 18 182 14 M - 1
Targ Ko g - - 1A ] 1% I TE4 e - ™
Wiing Qing bih - - LE] 153 154 14 1 - B
Taan et Yu - - - - - - 1 - g4
Lha a5 . - - - - - m - n
an Lung x . : : X = i : o
Lia# Bals - - - - - - 150 - 14
W i Gang - - = - - - 15 - B
Tetd 2 e 127 138 1,843 1,443 1 . gEN

Mole. i J07% romertber of sener marsgrment Bud esozned ene share spovecaios nehi (3014 Wil
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Staff welfare scheme comnea
Post-employment benefits — defined benefit plan

The Group's subsidiary WA operates & defined beneft plan ("the Flan®) for the stalf, which mcludes & defined
benslit wcheme and & defined beneft paniion wection. The contrbutions of the Plan ae determined based an
periodie valuatony by qualdied actuaries of the asets and Habibfies of the Pan The Plan prossdes benafits hased an
membery' final walarg The casty ame solely funded by WIR

The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan was performed in accordance with 1AS 19 issded by the [ASE a5 at 31
December 2015 hy’ Wilkii Towers Wattor Lmiled, & professional actuaral lim, The pictiend valuey ol the dehiped
banefit abligation and current sendce codt of the Plan are calculsted bawed on the projected wnit credit method. At
thit valuntion date. the Plan had & lund'mq lewol of 10E9% 2014 122%)

The amounts recogrised in the statement of financoal position & a1 31 December 2015 are analysed as follows

2015 2014
Fair valug of the Plan ssets 367 1ag
Fresent value of the funded dofned benefit abligatan {340) 1316
it gaset recognised in the staternent af Tinanclal posshan 7 Fii]

A porticn of the above aswel s expecied to be mcovemed after mone than one year However, it s not practicable
o seqregale ths amount from the amounts receivable in the pext taelee months, 0 futeme contributions will
aho mlate to Futue services rendeed and futue changes in achearial asumptions and makst conditionm. Mo
contribution to the Man is expected to be paid in 2016

There was no plan amendment, cumtallment or wttlement impact for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 7014

The amaunt: recognised in the conwodideted statemant of profit or loss are a3 folioews:

2015 2014
Curent Wervice (o4l (121 11
Mat intenedt ingome 1 F]
et munse_rnr_l.he yearulnc-lad_ec-lllﬁ retirament benelit costs _i-'|-1-]' 'i_E]

The actwal loses on the Plan assefs for the year ended 31 Decomber 2015 was AMBE4 million [2074: actual losses
wias BB mullan)

The movements in the delined benefit obligaton dunng the year are as follows

2015 2014
Predent value of obligation a1 1 Janwary ERLT 294
Current service ol 12 11
Interest cost 5 ]
Actsal benolils paid {29 22
Actiuarial lossey due fo |iu|l|'||ly A T 29 ta
Actsarial losses due to linancial assemption changes 7 g
Actuarial gain due to demographic ausumplion changes - -
Actial shligation at 31 Decpmnbes a0 EAL
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Staff welfare scheme jomies

Post-employment benefits — defined benefit plan jcontinued

Thie mawements (0 the fair valiee of the Flan sssets during the year are a5 follow

EDINETOOOO
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ms 004
Fair value of the Plan asets af 1 lanuay 186 400
Irterest imcome 4] B
Expected meturn an the Plan sssety other thsn interest lotses ) (1o}
Actual benefits paid [25) @22
Exchange aiference 13 10
Fair vabue of the Pan adsets at 31 December 367 1]
Thee major categories of the the Plan aisets are as foliows

2015 FLAL!
Amount L Amoaurnt b

Equitien 236 &4.3 240 6.5
Bands 63 172 a3 163
Cash [ 185 T 19.2
Tata! 367 100 186 o0
Mo dépodit with the Bank was included (in the amount of the Plan adtets (014; Bl
The princpal actuarial assumplions sdopled o the valuation dre as follyess

2015 2014

L =
Discount rate
= Definmed benefit schame 14 1.7
= Defined beraly pemion schoms 0.6 [ RE]

Long-lorm wierage rate of salary mcrease for the Plan 5.0 3.0
Pension increase rate 1o the aelined benelt penucn plan an 30

Staff salary and incentive scheme

Thie performance borus was accrued a1 2 lieed percentage based an the net prafit for the year as approved by the

Board of Directons and accounted a1 operating exgarso.

Tax payable

Corporate Incoms tax
Business 1an and surcharges payable
Erthurts

2015

9.540
2,633
347

12.820

I

B.383
2,745
=28
11,656
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Other liabilities

2015 2014

Clianng and wettlement accounts 12,294 7,001
Salary sk allovwandes tnoba) B.0003 3,704
indurande labihiei 1,865 1,409
Payment and coflecibon sccoum 1.295 1,369
Cheguss and remitlenoed feliuirned 15 116
Others 40,875 25,783
64,345 10678

firte. Seplevy ok allpwences o speode fendy witshedtd from The srpioyeey (rscudnyg neoe raragement of the lark ) anres! remumeBon ol
which P paprrents sie dolprd for e puipute ol sl messginent. The dlstston of the funds b based an gerlomeses gesrscnint
ne manegeresd results tskeeg Ao accound the shiet fene aeed long e benefd. I the evest o @ deciine i the amet guakty, & vham
irtetmiatan of ik plolies el prof@ulding, S scostrenios gl col, & 8 arificanl depilatsry vistolee shenkhed by ay sguldlony
mttoiibeL S iekesan smpopees will e resticoed from the shoomion of these slosances

Share capital

By type of share
Registensd capital
205 2014
Listed shares
- A-Shares 20,629 20,629
- H-Shares 4,591 i, 531
i 25.220 25,220

All H-Shanes afe ordinary shares and rank parl passd with the A-Shares. There 3 no mesdrichion condiion on these
shaiis,

Captal
Mo, of shares Amaunt
{in milin)
AL T lanuary 2015 and at 31 Decermbrer 1015 25,220 25,220

Capital reserve

The capital reserve primarily represents shire promium by the Bank, The capitad resende can be wied 10 sue shaes
siithi tha sharohalden” approvad,

05 2014
At 1 lanuary 2005 aned 31 Decsmber 2015 B7,523 fir 523
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Investment revaluation reserve

Invastment ravaluation reserve has beem accounted for in accoidance with (he aceaunting pelicles adopted for 1he
meaturement of the available-forsale finatoial aswets At faer valus, aet of delered (as

The mawements af inveetment rovaluatson isdeie

2015 2014
Baginning Balance 1.902 15,547
Share of investment revaluation resarve of joent wentures B 315
Aealed (gainkioss on dsposal of avallable-fo-sale
financial assets, net of defemed tax a1 145
Changes in falr value of available-for-sale financial assets,
_ret of defened tay 4643 7,269
Ending Ralance 6. 1ER 1907

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprees the effecive porbon of the cumulatee nel change in the falr value of hedging
imfrumaents uied in cssh flow hodges pending subiequant mcognition of the hadged cath flow in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted far cash Heee hedge in Note 2 (il

Surplus reserve

Stoulory duirplul redenar i caleulated .'n:dﬂrdlm; to the foqguifemedts af iha Accounting Standards for Buisngis
Entorpenies and other relevant regulations miwed by the Minitry of Finance ("MOF™) and s provided 4t 10% of thae
audited |:|n‘.|f|l alter tax Surpluy fpdervd can e vied to alfiet accumclated |addes af capilalivod &% paid-up captal
wirth the appreval of sharsholders

2015 014
At 1 Janaary 28,690 23,502
Fiatutory Raci ik Vg 218 S48
A1 31 December 34,009 78,690
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45 Regulatory general reserve

Pursuant fa medévant MOF notices, the Bank and the Group's linancial serices subudiaries in Mainland China are
required 1o set aside a general reserve according o a certaen percentage ol the end ng balance of gross rak-bearng
asyets through profit aliter 1ad to cover patential losses against thedr assets Effective fram 1 Jully 20012, the minimum
ganeral reserve balance thould increase ta 1.5% ot the ending balance af grow nsk-beading assets with a franition
pefiad of tive years. The Bank and the Group's financial services subsidianes in Mainland China have complisd with
The abowe requirements as of 31 December J015

20135 2014
AL T laraary 53,979 45,347
Statutony general resetve 10, 700 7632
At 1) Deqwmber B, 679 53979
46 Profit appropriations
(a) Dividends approved/declared by shareholders
2ME 2014
Dividonds in 2014, approved and 1o be declared RMBE, 70
per avery 10 shares 16,897
[rwidends in 200 4, approved and 1o be declared EMEBE. 0
par syvery 10 shares - 15 636
{b} Proposed profit appropriations
— 0% a0
Statutory surplus reserve 5319 5,788
Negulatery general reserce 10,700 7446
[vidands
cash dividend: AMBE. B0 per every 10 shares {2074; RMBE. ) por
every 10 shanes) 17402 16,897
Taotal 33,421 18,51

2015 profit appropriation s proposed in stcosdance with the resolubon paised st the mesting ol the Board of
Directary held an 30 March 2016 and will be submitted to the 2015 aanual general recting for approval

47 Exchange reserve

The exchange meierve comprises all forelgn exchange differerces aising from the transiation of the Tinancial
tatements of operationt outside Mainland China
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Capital, reserves and dividends

The recondliaion behwoen the opening and cosing balances of each component of the Groupt consolidated
enquity & et out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Detads of the changes i the Bank's ndieelual
components are as belowa (nete: the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 Dec. 2014 and the
balance of equity a4 al | dan. 2015 are restated tnee the bank has adopted “IAS Na 27 - Egquily Method o Separats

Faancial Statement” in advanda )

Imwestment Fequistory Prapaied
Shite Copital revabustion Wedgng Sumplui  gensral Retiined prelit Enthange
Mote  capilal rewtve  feene neene reserve redene profits approprigtions  eeener  Tatal
Bafants o1 1 lanuary M3 (redmted)  £3 25220 7E6E! 1,673 [163) 8888 532 MEMD 16,897 1 3250
Chaages in equity hee 15 - - L055 0 O5Hs 070 1874 505 {1 4070
Woet s B the yest - - - - - = 518 - - 5318
Qtter comprsmna mone
fat the pear - - 405 L] - - - - ) 44
Tetal conprehenilve seame
dot e your TR BT TR . .. APk PRI M L wem
Prafis appropriatom
Agpropration: b itatutnd
gl e - - - - 5319 = BNy - - -
Appropraton: b wgulitan
genyl e - - - - = s e - - -
Dredierdy pand for e yrar 2014 - {18,897 (46247
Propesed duidends far tha pear 1015 - - ) 17401 -
Balante 2131 Derender 2E LR 1 E ] # ML BaE e 1740 - B
levemert Regrdtnry Paopeotd
Sare Coptdl mwalaaten  Hedpeg Sapld el Aetaned smfle Eachangs
Mo meddl e metE lmew (eshe Ewrw ol mpopdbom  resee Taul
Bafante o1 1 laniasy T4 [restated) W1 TEEEN G643 @) MS@ J57E EGEW 15,65 4 266 85
Chiasges in equity foe 14 - - R A 58 AL I23a 1361 i 44350
Ha prosla far the pear - - - - - - ham ~ - Siam
(Otter compreseniog foome
lor Be year - - 1 i ] - - - - & EN6
Tetal cemprebentive meome
far the yes = - Lt -] - - Em £ fho
Frakt igpropriationt
Approfration) b itfutnd
arpl s - - - - 5B - & - - -
Aapropraticnt B seguliten
gnenl e - - - - - TAM Das - - -
Disicerc paud v the yeur 2013 o = = - - + - 15,638} - (15538
Frepousd duderdi for (he year 1014 - - - - - - 116357 1&ER - -
Balants of 31 Decemier 214
[reatnted] 0 BIM  TRAEN 14573 |hed] TR0 53208 D901 15,91 I e
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49 Notes to consolidated cash flow statements

{a) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents [with original maturity
within 3 manths):

2015 2014

Cash and balances with central bank 118,184 145,934
Balance with banks and oiber hinancaal institubions 56,014 4r d3h
Macaments with banks and ather financial ingtitutions 147,714 G953
Amounty held under resale agreemants 256,454 150,039
Dbt securilies invesimants 17,473 151715
E35.843 ATt an

(b} Significant non-cash transactions

Thiere are no other slgritficant mon-cesh transaciong duting the yedr

50 Operating segments
The Groups principal sctivities ame commarcial lending ard deposits taking, The funding of existing refail and
corporate loans are mainly from customes deposits

The Group mardges i busingsses by deoisona, which are orgamied I:-r a mixtere of both bisries lined and
qrography.

The Group makes business decisons, reporting and perlormance assessment by segment! corporate finance, retal
fimance, Interbank finance and other business. tn 2005, the profits andfor losses from treagury lunctions were
proportienally allocated to corporate fmance, ratall finance and interbank linance segments from ather business. The
Group's bisimess reporting segments are as follaws

=  Corporate finance business
The prwision of linancial wernces 1o corporations and govermrmantal instietions inchudes lending and depoii
taking actintliny, clearing and caih management sorvices, trade linance and alfithore Bulinesied, iInimitmant

banking ond ather devdes

- Retail finance business

The provison of Imancial sevices o regadl customers includes lendimg and depoyi taking actwites, bank card
buginess, wealth management services, private banking ard other sarvices.

- Interbank finance business

Thih sigrsent cavers interbank framactions tuch a8 interbank lending and repoichianing actinlbes, ssse
cuslody ctvilies and Tsancial market businesses
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Operating segments onne

- Other Business

Db buskness covets imveskinetl properies, bBusinewses in subisidianis, asocldles sl fonl venlures, and
ather rebevanl buinesses Mone of (hese segmenti meets any of the gudntitative thresha'dy o far for
determining repartable segments

Foi the purpoie of eperating seament analyiis, extarnal nel inteesl incomalespinse ieoreients the Al miereit
meomiet sarmed of expensd ncurred on banking wervices provided o eaternal parties. Internal net interest incomef
expingil repiewenty e assumed pralit or leds by 1he intenal funds tranaler prcng michanlen which Sas taken into
acoount the structure and market returns of the awets and lisbilities portfalio, Cost alocetlon i based on dinect
costi attnibutable 1o each ivoarting segment and appartion 1o the melevant factosn

segment results, assets and liabilities

Carperate Francial Fretail interhank
buinen finaecial buinem financial beaien Qther buneu Tatal
k] 4 ms nd o5 o ws k] kg ma
|Restated] [Nestatndh

Extgrral et rtonnd incoie 41,675 L7193 Bain 32T B51 1144 10td B8E 6T N2
Irterral vt ievimsd

Ineomafacenie) 18541 WE (500 12831 1953 LR A e - -
Nretitorest incomefenpense] RIS BRESE  B240E . S0AMG 11888 L] 4501 amE e v
Nt few ond commazen jncoee 13613 1054 1550 IETES am LU e e BAe J9am

(et art irvcpeny 181 | s W% &0m 398 s o e 9Em

Doerating Income, B T R WA B R R W B e

Oparating cupeniss

= Dipmociation LEn 025 Qe [T oLk (a3 i3 Mo |eoms] 3518

= Dthars sy TR (SSR SoM BuN Q4an ges gE EASM anE

Chaige lot imuancy g . - . - - . i a3l 257 cih]
BAND 3457 (B0 O0BEE (33E QRS AL DasE 0 @Ay

Regartabis 1egment profit'

(Bash belom inpairmesa

lexied SLIT BIg SIS JATIE ILMS 16124 1887 (19500 138 15

Impugirrram ks B3AT @S (B3d (TE 1188 1L A (YLleE  (51.8M)

Sk ol pelis of ocate

nd o el - - - - - . 1% 13 {3 18

Reportubis 1egment peofit!

(Bzi} b Tan ¥R BE o Wm BN i\ 1818 4,155 Q& TAME T
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Operating segments e

Reconciliations of reportable segments revenue, profit or loss, assets, liabilities
and ather material items

2015 2014
Revenue
Total revenue for mportable segments 202, 166 166,367
Dther rovenus - -
Condaldated révenue 202,166 166, 367
Profit
Total pradit or loss for reportable segments 15,079 73431
Other profit - %
Comnlidated profie befess incame tax 15,079 73,471
201% 2014
Asiety
Total awets for reportable Segmen i 5438 740 4701214
Goodwill 0,954 9,953
Intangible assets B19 1,059
Doferned tos aspts 15,538 0,830
Dther unallocated sty 9927 3723
Cormolidated 1atsl asiels 5,474,978 & T3 829
Liahilities
Total liabulities for reportable woment 5,060,114 LR CERLT
Tax payable 11,874 10,854
Other unallocated llabilities 41,232 21,653
Comolidated total habdities '5,113_,22& 4. 416,769
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Operating segments o

Geographical segments

The Group opedrates principally i the PRC walh branches localed i major prosinces, sulohemoul regesas and
municipalities diectly under the central govemimenl. The Graup alio has branches operatan in Hong Kang, Mew
Yark, Sngapore and Lurembouwy, subsidiasies operating in Hong Keng and Shanghal and representative offices in
Landan, New Yark and Taipel

In presenting mbiormation on the basis ol qqlng'.iphl:ﬂ wegmants, oparating miome o afloecated based on the
lecation af the Bradckhed that generals 1ha Fevaniae Segmeid adibli and Ao cuitend aveety are allociiad baded an
the geagraphical location ol the underyng assets

To support the Bank's operatbont and management’s assessments, the Geograophical iegments are delined as follows:

“Hoadguarter” mefers 1o tw Group headgquarten, specal purpose vehickes at the branch level which ane
-&m;w.ll:pI undet the huuﬁqudrlrﬂ, msociitey and poent ventures, includmng the headguartes shvd credit cardd
cenine, wic

“Yangize Rwver Defta tegion® refers to bramches i Shangha muniopality, Thejiang province and Hangsw
PhORINCE;

“Bohai Rim fegion” nelers 1o branches = Bavjing I'I'I.I'l.JEI.PﬂII'I'f. Tigrgan municipality, Shandong province and
Hobei peosince,

“Peail River Delta and West Coast region”™ meders 1o branches in Guangdong provinge and Fujian province,
“Horheast regesn” relers to branches in Lisganing pravinge, Hedanggiang praovince and Nin presinoe;

“Central region” mfers 1o branches in Henan provings, Anhwa province, Hunan province, Hube province,
Hangi province, Shangi province and Hainan provinoe;

“Weitern region ™ refers io branches n Sichuan pravinees, Chongging municipality, Guizhou previnee, Yumman
e, Shiaanxi provine, Gaaidu provinge, Hingzia Hus Aulonomaud fegion, Kinjleng Uyghur sulondmoos
megian, Guanga Zhuang sitenamous regeon, nner M-nm;nﬁ.l asutenomous region, Qmgha province and Tibet
auionomdds fegqion,

“Owerseas™ refers to overseas branches in Hong Kong, Mew York, Singapore, Lusembourg and representate
offices in Londan, New York and Taiper, and

“Subsihares” mwefer to subsidianes whally owned or contralled by the Groap, indeding WAE, CMBICHE,
CMEFLE and CRFRA
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Operating segments o
Geographical segments icontinued
Tatal murty Tatal labilizies Nerrearresd sawrts Frofit belom ta Eevenue
opographecal mfprmation mis Fl Fa i) 4 Fuil) 14 fuit] il -1 ol B
Headquartir L0548 L MELIAD IAORIST TAMFL MNS BRI NG 198 HMI 5E
argtas Fwer Dolts rigaoe TELGE RO TEVT9E  SEEAMT 2514 1557 1577 IOsM NPT W04
Eoiyi Rm spper A0 RGN OISR 4i4am 15 I5m nMe WA MED AN
Fwir] v Dot ard Wt
Camt ngoe BN ST S SI5EN 1,818 180 M2 IEME MO jEE
Morthess) igion MET  IMET i 70 148 1473 1990 §B5 1380 Vi)
[~ WE JIESE A T LI 17 3,583 TEM IETEE 1E317
Weslem tegos A1 IMEE 4RSS 170 iR A Hi LEi] I 19,487 10,205
[imeen W IEER L LI ot @ 1,79 b3 13 2517
Sobtifurin WEE I 1S40 M 1an 6311 £M1 545 10406 BgEm
ol SAMEE 4THIEN 511 4A67@ 0 @R LG58 HmOE 0 L MRS MG

Assets pledged as security

Thie lodlowing assets have been pledged as collateral For labdilies upder repuichass anangermenis;

2015 FLL]

Amounts wold snder repurchase agreaments 185,652 6,583
Aty plodged

= dgailable{onsale financial assats 13,367 3,027

= Hald=-tg-mafunty invesiments E7.980 29,050

= Trading assels £.752 3853

- Dther asuerty 102,330 a2

186,429 67746

The transactions under repurchase agreementy ae conducted under terms that are usual and austomary to standard
lending and seturities baareveing and lending adiwities.
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Contingent liabilities and commitments
Credit commitments

AL asty gren ime the Groug has outstanding commitmnents (o extend credit. These commetments take the form of
approved (oand and credit card limits.

The Group prowides linancial guaramees and letters of credit to guaranies the performance of cmtomers to third
partiet, Accoplances amguing undul'lllcmgq. by thi Group o pay illy af mh:mgw dravam &n custemom. The Group
erpocts modl acceplances to be wettled simultanecwsly with the mesmbursement fram the cuttomens

The contractual amounts ol commitments and contangent lalalities are 101 aut in the following table by categary.
The amaunts eflected in the table for commitments adsume that amounts are fully advanced. The amount rellected
in the table fer guaraniees and leiters of credit représents the maximum potential loss that would be recogrised ot
the end of the reporing period f courterparties fwled completely to perform as contracted.

2015 o4
Contractual amount

frrewocahie guarantees 235,652 148,337
lrreyocahis lotters of cradil 1RE 469 AT9RET
Hills of accoptances 163,035 159,489

Irmevacabie loan domimitmants
= with an angingl maturity within 1 year linchinsivel 5,979 4,064
~ iyt anm omgarial maturity ever 1 yoas 33.029 23,694
Credit card commetments zgonz 266094
Others 5,884 1.610
1,170,100 1,225,128

Irrgyocatie loan commitments onfy include cedit imets granted o offshore customers by overseas beanches, and
gnshome and offibore yndsated lpan

Apart Tram the irevacable laan cemmitmenis, the Group had foan commitments of AMBET,A96.021 milkan a1 31
Decernber 2015 (2014 RMEL, 725, 3E million) which are unconditionally carcellable by the Group of Automatically
cancellable dug 1o detenioration in the creditworthiness al the barrewes as stipulated in respectae lending
sgreements. The Group will Aot sdsure any ks en the unieed credit limas foe thiste loah custamesd. As b rewlt,
wuch balances are not included in the above conlingent llabilities and commitments

Theese commitments and comtingent liabilities have off-balance sheet credit risk. Before thr commitments are fulfilbed
of expired, managomant asseses and makes allowances for ary probable losses accordingly. As the facilities may
expire without being dunwn upon, the tatal of the contractual amounts is not represeniative of expecied Tuture cash
autibows

2015 2014
Credht thk waeighted amounts of contirgent liabdities and cormmitments 149 816 308 937

The Group calculaled the eredit ik weghted ameent of its contingert liabsbties and commitment in accordance
with the reguirements af the Admirnsirative Meaxsures on Capitsl of Commercial Banks (Thal) issued by the CBRC
The amounl within the scope appraved by the CERC i April 2014 & calcutared using the internal rating-based
appraach, and the risk-wesghied approach b wied 10 calculate thede no eligible to the internal rating-based
appraach.
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Contingent liabilities and commitments e
Capital commitments

Authoried capital commiaments were a5 fallaw

2015 7014

Far puichase of proparty and equipment
= Controcied Tor 4,380 1,965
= Authored but not contracted far 251 572
4,631 2,537

Operating lease commitments

Total future minimum lease payments imder non-cancellable operating leases of propertes are payable as fodloas:

[ A L
Within 1 year i) 2,613 4,293
1 i 13 S yeurs {ifeldanse] BT .99
Ohier 5 years 2,293 2,674

13,0213 12 958

The Group leaswes certain properties under operating leages. The leases typically run “or an inifial peviod of 1 to 5
wears, and may include an oplion 1o rerrw the lease when all terms are renegotialed, None of the lease indude
contingant rental

Outstanding litigations

AL 31 December 2015, the Group was a delendant in certain ouistandag tigations with gross dalmm of AMBL, 100
milign {2014: AMBS9S millin] arising fram it bhanking sctivitiss. The Board of Directars conuider that no matenal
lpsses would be ircurred by the Group as a result al these outdtanding litigations and therelare no provisen has
been made m the hinancial vlalemends

Redemption obligations

As an undenwriting agent of PAC gevernment bonds, the Group has the responsbildity o buy badk thase bands sobd
by it should the halders decide to early redeern 1he bonds he'd The redemption price for the bonds at any me
befare thesr maturity date & based on the coupon value plus any interest unpaid and acoued up 1o the redemplicn
date. Acerued Interest payables ta the bond holders are calculated in accordance with relevant fules of the Minister
of Finance and the PROC. The mdemption price may be different from the fair value of timilar instements traded a1
the redampiion date

The redempfion ohligaticns below reprosent the nomunal value of government bands underwntien and sald by the
Group, bul nat yet malured at the end of the reparting pethod:

2015
26,729

2014
3,497

Rademptinn ohligations

The Group expects that the amaunt of redemation Balore the maturty date of thase governmeant bands thraugh the
Group wil not be material
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Transactions on behalf of customers

Entrusted lending business

The Growps entiusted lending business refers 1o activitles where principali such as government depariments,
business entities and individualy sravide capital for loan advarces by the Group to their specified 1argen on their
behalt in accordance with specific terms and condithons, with the hslp of the Group i manitaneg loan usage and
seaking boan recovery. The entrusted lending biiness does nbl axpose the Group to any ersdit figk As instreced by
these principats, the Group holds and manages unoerlying assets and Habikities only in the capadty of an agent, and
charges handlng fees for ralated serviees.

Entrusted lending afe not assets of the Grogs and am nof recogmesed in the alement of fmancial potdion. Income
tocoved aid fecevable lor providing theds serncid are recognised s thie statément of pralil of low & lee and
commiksian INcome,

At the end of the reparting period, the enfrusted assets and labditiey were a3 follows:

2015 F0n4
Entrusted loans 320,110 243,197
Entrusted funds {320,000} {143,797

Wealth management services

Thie Gioup's wealth managemen! Lenaces 10 cutlemen manly represen] saled ol waalth management products 1o
codpatate and perional banking cudtomers. The lunds oblaned from wesith management services are imested In
inwastment producty, melueding government bands, PEOLC bills, nofes isued by pelicy banks, tharl-dated cofporate
naies and entnisted loans, The Group nitlated 1he lsunch ol wealth management ploducts The imsestment risk
associated with thede products i3 berme by the customens wha nvest in thete products The Group does not
coniplidate these wealth management producty, The Gioup earns commiwion whith régresents the charges on
custamers in relation to the provision of eustody, 32les and management Lenices

The wealth management products and funds abtained are nat asvets and labilitiey of the Group and are oot
rscngnitad in the tatement af limaneial positicen. The fundy abtaned from waakth managamant wrvices that hawe
nat yet been evested are feconded unded otk liakilities

At the end of the reporting pediod, funds recesved from customers under wealth management spivices ware s
follaws

2015 2014
Fundi recerend from cuttomert under wsalth msnagemont torvice 1,620,604 B31.473
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Risk management
Credit risk

Credit rlak represents the potentlal loss that may asne from the falicte af 8 counterparty or & debter te meel ks
ebligatsan or commiment 1o the Graup Credd ik inereases when all counterparties are concentrated in a tingle
induntey 0t 4 geographacal reglon, & different countérparties in the same reghon of Induitry may be affected by the
1ame economie development, which may oventually affect their repayment abilities

The Group has desgnes ity onganistion framework, credit pofSoes and processes with an obgective 1o identify,
evalunte and manage iy cedit riak eMectniely, The Mk and Capital Management Committes, et up and appeinted
by the Board of Directors |5 respomibde for supernsing and ovaluating the set-up, organmational structure, work
procest and effectivereis of vahow rizk managemen lunclsors

With respect 1o daly operations, the Hisk Management Department, as directed by the Hisk and Cagital Managemeni
Commiiee, participates in, coordinates and monstors the work: of other risk management funchions, including each
business wnit and the Legal and Compliance Department, Tne Gfoup manages credit rrtk throughout the endine credi
pracess including pre-lending evaluatons. credit appeoval and post-lending manitanng

With respect 1o the crodit risk management ol corporate linancal buuness, the Group foemudated credit palicy
guideline, and enhanced crodil acceptance and ext poficies {ad carporate and matltutional clivaty, and impermants
limi contral measures to snprove the quality of credd exposure.

Wit respect to the oedil dsl mansgement of retall lnancia busines, the Group refies o cedil sssessment of
applicants as Use basis for loan appeoeal. Customer relationship mansgers are reqired 10 assess the income leyve!,
oredit history, and repaymint alslity of the soplcant. The Group monies post-fending comditions by Focusing on
lroriowars’ epayment ability, the stalus of colateral and any chanoes to cofateral value. Once & loan becomes
overdue, the Groug starls this collection process scocidsing 1o standard retad leans colection procedunes.

Tor rmligate fisks, the Group tequents cuviomins (o provide collateral amd guarantoms when necessary. Cortinn
guidelines have been set lor the accoptability of speciic types of collateral or credit mik affset. Collaleral diruciuies
and legal covenants are neviewed regularly 1o ensure that they can still cover 1he gren nsks and be consistant wath
it practices.

In respoct of boan claswification, the Group adopts @ mik based kean caswsification methodelogy. Currently, tho Group
categoies s loars on a ten-grasde loan dassification basis in order ta refine intemnal risk classification management
{normal (grades 1-5), spacial mention (grades 1-2), whrtendard, doubtful and bess) The loans and sdvances foe
which objective svidence of impairment ewists baséd on @ low svent or seweral events and which bear significant
impairment losses are classfied a5 impaired loans and advances The alowances for impairment losses for the
impaimed loans and advances are aviessed collectively or indwvidually as sppeopriste

The risks involved in contingent lishilities and commitmenls areé esentially the seme o the osdil risk involved in
lpdns and advances 1o customers. These tdnsaclions s, therelomne, sibjecl to the seme oedit agplcation, post-
lending monitoding and collateral requiremnents o lor customen apphying Tor boans.

Concentratinn of credit mek when certain number ol customers are in the wame mines, located in the samp
geographical regon or their industies share similar sconomic charactensvtos, their ability fo meat thesr obligations
may be alfected by the same scopomic changes The lewel ol concentration af credit nsk reflects the semsitmby o
the Gioup’s operating result 1o a specttic indusry or gesgraphical region. To prevent concentration of credit nisk, the
Group has termulated the quota imit management pehcy 19 mondtor and analywe the loan portfalio,

Analyies of lsant and advances by Industry and loan partfolio are stated in Nole 19

The Growp's crodit sk management policy for dervative financial assets i the same a3 that for ather transactions,
i order 1o mitigate the eredit wak arising fram financial dervatives, the Group has sgned hedging agreements with
cetlain counterparties
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Risk management commes
Credit risk frontinued)

Bl aximum expasure

The Group™ mamimuen eapdicre to credit sk wathait laking Adcount al aivy eollateral hold or ather credit
enbancements i the totsd amount of the carrymy amount af the rebevant linancal assels (including dermatives) as
disclased on the balance shesl and the casrving amount of the off balance shest tems diclosed in Mole S24al.. At
31 Uecomber 2015, the masimum sxposure to credit rsk of the Groups relevant on balance sheel items and off
balance srieet items n RMES. 043,986 millian (2014: RMB7.597.633 millian),

The credit guality of loans and advances te customers can be analysed as follows:

2018 p i B
Impaired loans and advances to customerns
For which impairment allowances are mdrvidually asesied
Girodt amaunt 14,316 0484
Lem Impairment allowances {14,624} 13,5770
Carrying armiound 19,702 10,807
Fowr which imgairment allowancis are colbectively assesiod
Gross amaunt 13.070 7.408
Les: Imparment allowances {7,806G) 14.733)
Carrying amount 5,264 4,675
Overdue bt pot impalired
= wrihin 3 maonths (nclesvel 31,689 25105
= 3 raoithia to B months (inclugve) anz 152
=& months to | year finclusve) 254 -
- Owver 1 year 282 6
Giret. amaount 34,442 25 863
Less; Impairment allewances
- eolectively atsetied (3,600) {2.640)
CArTyIng amun 10,842 23313
Heither overdue nor impaired
Grads amaunt 2,742,448 2 460,164
Less: imparment allowances
- collscthely aseied {58,812) [A8.215)
Carrying amount 2,683,636 2,411,549
Tatal cafrying amicut 2,739,444 2,448 754

Loars and advantes that were owerdue or impaired had the terms been renegotiated amounted to RME4, 531 million
a5 at 31 Decembar 2015 (2014; AMBI9E mifiion),
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{a) Credit risk frontineed
(i}  Credit quality of debt hvestments
At thie end ol the repoiting period, the anilviis of the credit giality of debt investments by detigrated extetnal
oredit assessment institution, Standand & Poors, i as follews:
2015 2074
Individually azsessed and impaired gross amount ol debt invettmants (11 &al
Impairment allowances {601) 1619)
iuh:u_m &7 43
Neithar overdue nor impaired
ey 095 8,667
A= to Ak+ (Notel 540,986 adn Bz
A 10 Ad 14,671 5,543
Lower than A 15,763 7574
578,515 463 607
Unrated 159,815 154,334
Tl 73R, 397 B17 584

tar'e Borchi imaed by Be FRC Cominrmmi, FUOC and PRD Foacy Banky Sadd Sy the Goup amounrded ARIUELE, 300 ke L1004 NLE20 oE)
il dovmdit ity AA- D ae daiibed

(il  Collateral and ather eredit enhancements

An mtimate of the fair value of colateral and ether credit enhancements held against financial assets that are
overdue but not impaired 3 0 follows

2015 2074
Estimate af the fair value of collateral and
othar credil erhancements held against
- Leans and advances to cuitomers 115,400 BR,229
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Risk management e
Market risk

Mlarket riak i the rak that the fair value or (utere cash flowas of the Group's financial instraments will fluciuate and
wibich may resull in loss 1o the Group, becawse ol changes in Tedeign exchange fate, interest rate, commeddty price,
stock price and othes observable market faciors interest rate and foreign exchange rate are the lwe major market
risk facioss relevant to the Group The Group i expoted to market il thesugh the financial instruments under the
trading book and banking book. The financial instruments under the frading book are held for trading purposes
o for the puiposes of hedging the rsks aming lrem the trading book position, and these financial insoruments
aré lraded In active maikel The Hnscidl iadrusnents undee the banking book dre ssels and lalibte held by
the Group Tor stable ard determinable retuin, o for the puiposes of hedglng the rsks arking Tiom the banking
baok posithen The financial mstruments under the banking book mclude both the Group's oh-balance sheel and
ofi-balance sheet eapesure, and have relative stabie markel value.

Forelgn exchange risk

Foreign exchange rak ansed from the helding of {oreign currency assets, liabdities and equity nems, and the foreign
currency and foregn cermency derivatve positions which may eapose the Group 10 potential kosses in the event
of unfavowable foreign exchange rale movemeant. The functional cumency of the Group i RMB. The financial
assets and habilities of the Group are denomanated in RMB, and the other currencies are mamdy LS50 and HED The
Group has establshed (ts foreign exchange nik management and governance lramewoed based on segregation
of duty prnciple, which segregates the responsibilities of the establishment, execation and sepervision of foreign
exchange risk. This framewsork spected the rales, responsibilities and reporting lines of the Board of Directors,
SuUpErVsOrE seneod management, designated commitiess and relevant departments of the Bank in the management
of foreign exchange risk. The Group takes a prudent strategy in the management of foreign eschange nisk, and
would not voluntanly take foreign exchange risk, which suits the current development of the Group The cument
foesign emchange risk manzgement policies and procedures of the Group fullil the regulatory requirements and the
requirements of the Group m the management of foreign exchange risk

The BAF announced ARB join the SOR i Decomber 015, folowed by the FROCS anncuncement al AMAR sichange
rate sndex, which will accalérate the process of RMRE sachangs rate unpeg ta USD, and gradually seleence 1o o
baskel of currences, the EMA eschange rate foematon mechanivm will be more trantparent, and wall be mare
conducive n eshancng the igudity and stabukty of RMB 10 the future Along with the Fed rate hike and difference
In Sino US econamee development rend, S0 increased ssgnificanily at the end of the Tourth quartes, cagtal autiiow
boosted the appeecialion of USD againit RMB. Under the current saung of conditions, without PBOCS merventean,
the enchangs rate of RIAE sgainst USD, HED, IPY and ather cutrencies may continue o remain o

(1) Trading book

The Group hes establahed o maryet risk strecture snd system of the trading book, which nduding exchange
rale risk, o quantily the exchange rate risk of the tradg book lor umified menagement The structure,
process and method of exchange rate nak of rading book are consistent with the inteest rate rak of trading
ook,

Fot mamagemant pJipase, the Group adopls guantitative indicaton suck as exposure indicator, maiket
wallum al rink indicator (VaR, including interest rate, fongn exchange rate, commadity tisk fectors), eschange
tale scenanio siiews best lowi index, exchange rate semithity indes, curmalative bons mees, the managerment
method inchedes conducting business entitlement, setting guota limits, daily monitoring and confinuous
mparting, eic

Since 11 Acguit I015, wih accelerating devaluation and mcreasing velatiity al BME, the Gioup reduced
ity feeeign exchange exposure and risk kmit theeshald, stengthened ity tacking al the movermnents in this
cufréncy market, imphoved risk moninoning leved, 4o a8 1o effectively contral the Grougs Tareign exchange risk
eaposure in the trading book. Due to the prudent trading sirstegies and siect risk management methods,
trading book of forsgn exchange butinesses mantained siable, the risk indicarors performed well
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54 Risk management cormme
{b} Market risk icontinued)

{n Fareign exchange risk (contmued)
{21  Banking boak

The Groaup's foreign ecchange mk under the bankirg hook 4 overall managed by the Head Office. The Asse
and Luability Management Depariment, as the treasures of the Bank & in charge of the bankng boot foregn
exchange rik management. The treasurer 15 respanidhle to manage the foreign exchange sk under the
banking boak wsing a prudent appraach and compliant with the regulaion requirements, and managing the
faresgn exchange sk through management of hmits, controlled adjustments and budget

The banking book famign exchange risk of the Gioup ames from the mamatch i the non-RMID asen and
habilities. Tha Group stingently monitors ds foreign exchange risk expmunes 10 manage s lomign exchange
risk within an atonplable livel

The Group has adopted foreign exschange sspoture analyuis. scenand uimubation analyses and stress 1
far the measurement and snalysis of fomeign exchange sk The Groug regularly measures and analyses the
foreign exchange rik exposute llucivations, manitors and reports forelgn eschange nsk on & monthly basis
under the limit framework, adjusts the foreign exchange exposuses based on the trend of forsgn sachange
rale movemenis to mingate the banking book foreign exchange risk

In the Nt hall of 2015, the Group hady further optimized the fomign eschange risk measuning misthod of
the barking book, which offers a logical reference for the management decivion making The Group has
continuously strengthened (1 fur\d'gn exchangs sk monitoring in the banking bock nd authonzation |Frits
managemem, o eniure the rk expoiure @ in o reavorsble range
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Risk management oo

Market risk joontmed

Farelgn exthange risk (continued)

Aoty and labelitios by orgiral currency are shown as fallaws:

2015

Driginal eurrency

Equivalent in RMEBE million in millian
AMEB UsD HED Others Tatal s HED
Assets
Cash and balances with
ceniral hank 508,747 44,537 28,345 1,713 584342 6,852 33.796
Amspunts due from banks
wnd other financial
imstitutions 465, 757 109,509 1011 1,119 593,396 16,848 6,353
Loans and advances 1o
custoemers 2,473,549 158,776 B7. 013 18,796 2,739.444 14,428 104,852
Investments (ncheding
dervatives) 1582388 (135,718} 5,666 (11,533) 1,440,803 (20.880) 6,756
Crthr assats 10,365 1.718 G406 454 116,963 1,169 1.666
5,134,206 184,832 135,391 20,549 5,474,976 8,437 161429
Liakilities
Amapunts due fo banks and
athes linancial instiibons 1,051,084 78,385 2,640 4,475 1,138,584 12,060 5.532
Deposis from customerns 3135623 254,346 1401 67698 3,571 698 39,131 135,962
Fmancial Nabilrives at
fair value through
prafit or loss
(includirg derivatives) 215,920  (168,451) (5,163)  [14,504) 27802 [25.918) (6,156)
Debt wecwrities isiued 235,039 10,425 6,043 251,507 1,604 7,205
G ikt ey cied LHN  Ea nam e oAl
4,756,709 175,569 122,682 58,080 5,113,050 17.012 146,276
Met on-palance thagl
pasibon 377,457 9,263 12,709 {3.541) 341,928 1,425 15,153
Met afl-balanee sheet
pewitan
Credit commitmenty (Notel TIE M3 76,905 24916 14,088 8518622 11,832 19,708
Blervalses
~ fonwand purchased 347,450 Aa5,820 61,572 83,045 997.BET TE,282 FERCAT
- forwand sold [417,201) (482,0200 (52239}  (55.359) (1,007.81%) (74,159)  (62,266)
= nEl Lulrency oplion
pasition - {15.074) & {194) {15,260} [2319) 10
(69,751) {1,274} a,341 36,492 125,192) {196) 11,138
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54 Risk management ionme
{b) Market risk feontinued)
i Fareign exchange risk (continued)
14
Ciriginal currency
Equmvalent in RME million i million
RMB W50 HKD Oahers Tatal usp HED
AssRlE
Cash and balanoes
with central bank 621 938 18,874 13327 GaG BS54, 78S 3,044 16,669
Amounts due from
banks and other
fnancial
Instititions a458.014 52,091 4,686 0080 525051 8402 6111
Loars and advandtes
1o cuslomens 2,139,783 Fi4Tia 77,640 16,613 2, 448,754 34,632 aram
Arviastmenty
lincluding
darivatives! 40,676 34,184 17.652 3705 586117 5.514 22,079
Other assets #5413 3487 1.538 572 107,010 BB 5428
4,255,804 323,354 121,043 31,586 4,731817 52954 151,39
Liabilities
Amounts due 1o banki and
other financal imstitutiors 799,722 T4, 400 30064 1,853  B79,03% 12,000 3,832
Deposits fram customers 492,528 210,653 174,441 I6,817 3,304,438 338 2B&3
Fimancial liagdities a1 {air
walue through profit or
ko Gincluding dervativie) 5,352 3813 14,356 B4 23,815 7 17,955
Dbt securities isimed 83,601 15,5962 6,502 106,155 2575 B 245
Other labisies 94, GET 3,892 4,532 4an 103,523 6B 5,869

3875,B20 30B,735 203,085 20,159 4,416,769 49,797 253,830

et on-balance sheet

pasitian 379,934 14,619 (51,542 2,437 315,048 2.35% (02482
Men off-balance sheel
position;
Credit commatmants (Hote) B29.7E2 110,738 139226} 7.547 oo 241 17.8561 143,063)
Dheiivatnied
= forward purchased 283065 429 940 178,230 50,907 42182 69,352 222927
= forward sobd (384 460)  (439,124) (7,240 (49, 483) (952,313  (70.826) w3012)
= rt currancy ophon
'pwi!i?n_ - 151 '.'_' 16_?_-11 ﬁi l§b i_’d- 9
(101,401) (B,9493) G8.057 150 (10,647) 14500 123824

laee  Crecht cormmdiments gessialy supice batser (hay s drman, (hevalons T abese net pouton o ol phedped depossy ooR fe2 egessent T
Rutsare cmth ount S
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Risk management e
Market risk foonrinued

Forelgn exthange risk (continued)

Undei fthe existing matisged fluating exchangs rate regime, the Group used sensitivity snalyss o misasuie (s
patential effect of changes in ﬂﬂ'ﬁgn curnency exchange rates oo the Group's net fereign exchange gans and louses
The fnllnwirlg table et forth the resdlts af the Group's forsign exthange nik fenstivity analyms on the awets and
lkabilities az at 31 Docember 2015 and 31 December 2014

2015 2014
Change in foreign currency Change in foreign carrency
exchange rate (in basis paints) Excrange rate (in basis points)
Increased{decreasel in snnuahised net profit 94 (94} 37 arn

The sbove sensithity analyss b based an a static Temign currency expedure prolde of suets and labilities. In vies of
the nature of the RME exchange rate regime, the analvsis n based on the Tollowng assumptions

(i the foreign scchange rate semiteaty is the foreign eschange gains and lossex recognised as o result of a
wtandard 100 baxy point fiuctuation in the foroign currency axchange agains AME;

{in the enchange rates against AAME Tor all foreign curfencees i the change in the same dirsction smultansously,
and

(i the fareign exchange exposures calcwlated molude spot forelign exchange ssposures, fonwand foreign
exchanpe sapodures and optiom

Aaved on the assumpton above, sctual changes oo the Group's net fossign exchange gains and losies resulting fram
increases of decreasss in foreign exchange raes may be different from the results af this sensitivity analysie
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54 Risk management o
(b} Market risk fcontinued)

iy Interest rate risk

Interest fale vk arved fioen adiers ﬂhangw A entarmit ratldd and maluridy prnMr\. wehich Ty ipdlt in et 10 the
incorme and marke! walue of financial mstruments ant posttions held by the Group

{1} Trading back

The Group hay sl up ite markel mk governance ramework for irading book, covensg nterest rate mk,
Tonegn gachange nsi and commodity price riak. Toe Gooup’s market risk gowirance framework lor trading
book speciies the roles, sesponuibilities and reporting pipeline of the Board of Directory, senior management,
dq-liqnh'lud committess and refevant tlupu'h'ﬂun'l'l i emiure the effectiveneys of the trading book market nak
managemerd. The markel nik management department under the Bank's entire rak management office
resporable for execution al the management of intorest rate ik wunder the trading book

The Geoup has established markes sk limas management framewark, covering the interast rate nsk, forsgn
euchange rate sk and commodiy price sk updes U vading book. Within this Tremesork, U highest
lewsl mdecators, wiich are also the vading book market riak preference quantitaine indicators of the Group,
adopt Vaft and portfolio stress testing methadologles and desctly link to the Bank's net capital. In addition,
srcording to he product type, trading strategy and charactenstics of nsk of sub-portiofo, the lnghest level
indicator are allocated 1o lower level ndicators, and 1o each front office departments. These indicalors are
manitoded and regared on a dally basls.

In 2015, the Group continued 1o enhance the trading bool, market ik moanasgerment framework Dased i
eanting practice, The Group has optimised the proceduses. processes and 1ook for the messuement and
oG of market rish, and enhanced agpicaton of management 100 in Managemienl al market sk,

For management purpose, the Group adopts quantiative indicaton sech as exposure indicator, market valug
# risk indicator (VaR, includirg interest rate, loraign exchange mate, commadity risk facton), eschangs rate
wenano stress 185t loss inden, exchange rate sensinely mdex, cumulative boss inde, the manapement method
includes ¢onducting business entitfernent, setting guata limits, daily montoring and cortinuow reperting,
ete, The Vaf ‘ncledes general market value at nak and préssuees marke? value al risk which calculabed by
using hustorical limulation,

In 2015, the doamnward ol markel interest rate, and tgnilicantly decreated yield curve Tor all kindsy af bands
resulting im the bt market™ in the 8B bonds marbet. The Group conducted comprehensve reseanches
on and timely fracked the macto ecomomy, monetary policy and morke! sduation, and deployed trading
sirategles oomrespondigly. All ek indseators wnder the trading book performed well,
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54 Risk management e

(b} Market risk jontined

{il}  Interest eate rlak (contimed)

2

Banking book

The Group has established the govemance and management framework accondng to the aierest rate rig
management palicy las the banking book, which specfied the ioles, responsibiities ahd reporiing lines of
the Board of Duwectan, semor manegement, designaled commitiees and relevant depatiments 10 ensure 1he
effeciveness ol merest rate tok managemenl Interest 1ok of the banking book of the Group i managed
concentratively by the Asset and Liability Management Department

The Geeug has pamanly adopted sonaro smulation analyss, m-prong gap analysiy, diration analyii and
Meeas trihing for the messurement and analysis of inteest rale risk under the banking book. Thoough maeis
and liabilities anokgis mestings and reporing lramewark, the Group analyses the route cauues of inlerest
rale rnk under the banking book, propaies managemenrt adviced ang implemants management measwes

In 2015, the Grouwp pad close attention te changes in the external intems rate emaronmenl, predacted
mowEmEns in nterest rates in orolling bass: strengthened Ml flucteations moenfonng analysis deepened RI
schedule and budget gap analysis. On the Toundation of the macro prediction and refinement of intermal
management menioned above, the Group 1ook the nitiative W put forward an prospective program
of optimizing assets and babilities, to enaurs that the overall intesest rate risk bsvels temained within
management objectwes, and to safeqguard the stable opasation of the Nl

in 2015, there were Hye mierest rale cuts Er, the PEOC, ane-year benchmark de.pud.q rate was cut by 125
rasis paints in tatal onepear bonchmark lending rale was also cut by 125 batii points, a1 the tame time the
PO has fully liberalized the depesit intorest rate celling. To matigate the negative impact of the mtorest rate
cuts s doposit interest rate celling, the Group sdopted actve courtermeatines, including coardinating the
interest rate ik management and FTP managemen!, continue to sdpest the duration of the laans; impraving
thir deposit ditferential pricrng machanum, prarg semilisily and portinence, based on tha interest rale
domitnaty amabysis and customers pricing behaviour analyws; ressonably contral structured deposit and other
mlatod high cosl depeins, maintainng & comparative advantage on the cost of laklitiey In future, e
Group will coninue (o take on seversl messures to rmproae the fine management capseity of banking book
intoeedl At ik, i sevtems, procewses and evaliationy aspects, 1o achieve sieady growth ino el Ml
incame and ecanamic vl
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54 Risk management ionmnea
{b} Market risk jcontinued

{iiy Interest rate Hak fconbtinued)

The lalleweng table indicates the eipecied mext epricing dates (of malurity dates swhichever abe parlier for assots
ard liabiiithes i ihe end of the reperting pariod

2015
3 manths
or less Over Ower MNen-
{include 3 manths 1 year Ower  interast
Toral everdue) 1o 1year to 5 yean Syears  baaring
Adsets
Cash and balarces with central bank 5B4,342 544,820 - - - 19,522
Amounts due Trom banks and other
financial mstimarisens 583,396 535,143 45,374 10,168 o2 2,009
Loans and advances 1o oustomens (Note) 2,739 444 1,647,629 905, 94932 176,721 9,102 -
Inwesstmisnts (including dervatives) 1438017 493857 252,123 0022 296912 15,003
*E_\lhEr_a!.hE_'r& ; 1_1'_9.??5 - - - - 119,779
Tatal assets LATASTE 3221549 1.103488  5RGA11T 06,716 176,313
Liabilities
Aumounts due 1o banks and other
fimancial Institutions 1,138,534 871,075 254,003 9,202 - 4,304
Depodats from oustomers 3,571,698 2,596 345 603,585 357,570 5,088 B,110
Financial liabilities at falr vabee through
prodit or bass {includng denvatives) 27,802 6620 6,228 551 1] 8,015
Diebt securities issued 151,507 97,439 108411 21,425 24,232 -
Rither Vabinties 153629 W a &8 % 114N
Tatal lakbilities 5113220 3,571,581 9TL24% 3816 30,734 143,840
Asset-lability gap 361,758 (350,032} 23140 17095 275982 12,473
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54 Risk management iommen
(b} Market risk joontinwed

G} Interest rate flik fcontiveed)

1014
3 montha
ar lew Crvar Oy Mo«
{include 3 manths 1 yoar Croar imfarast
Tetal overdueel 1o ) year o 5 yeary 5 yuan bearing
ity
Cash and balances with central bank 654,785 632,518 - - - 22,267
Arrounis due {rom banks and other
financial inatitutions 525,051 304 44T BB, 569 41 21E E 2.817
Loaty and schvanced 1o customest (Note) 2448754  [.294 461 362,393 150,273 41,877 -
Inapstments (mchadang dorivatives) o6 21T 147 E&2 Tibd 913 78,652 212,029 12,761
Oithver st ‘07,022 - - = - 1G7. 032
Total aumets 4731829 2400 7ER 1703875 570,003 253,706 144 BGT
Liabillities
Armounis due 1o banks and other
financial institulians E7D.030 GBI 14T 103,798 20,526 - 1.068
Depority Tram cuslomsmn 3,304,438 2278910 GE1 858 335,500 1,444 6716
Fanancial labilitses a8 fas walue thrsagh
proflt or loss bircluding derivativia) 23,615 &.035 a7 6213 165 10,275
Debt securities ilaued DB 155 20,793 38,380 15.B17 3,165 -
ther llabilithes Q3527 23 &1 217 94 102,427
Total Habilities 4,416,760 LO6B.B04 914,524 374,973 42,808 121,456
Asset-liabslity gap 15060 4936200 379,33 191,120 220,838 23,0

Huoir T Imanh meel advercrs o coabomeny, the "3 menaita o lret™ coegory ncludes averdus aehousts @ ot 31 Detember 2015 amd 31 Deowmber
1A, el ol aliwenies lue inguaEmenl v Overduy sowurs Degepsarl e, ol whith Be woale o pael ol B piispes o misesl we
T
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{b} Market risk worrinued
{iiy Interest rate Hak fcontinued)
The Group uses senaitivily analysls to measums the potuntial effect of changes In mteredt rates on the Group's net
mteredl mcome. The followving table seis farth the resdlts of the Groups interest rate bty l'l'u:ll'ﬂli on the
Atieti and Habilites as at 31 December 2005 and 31 Dacembes 2014
2015 074
Change [n interest rates Change in interest rates
{im basis palmnts) {in basks palnisl
25 {25) 25 125)
(Dacreaselfincrease in annuelised net interest iNCome [1.042) 1042 (2ah5) a5

This semiiteaty analyiis n based on a static \nterest sate stk profile of asets and habilives The analyss measunes
anly the impact of changes in the interest rates within a year, as rellected by the repricing ol the Group's aicels and
liabibines within @ year, on annuased mitecest income. The analysis s based on the fallowing assemptions

L] all assets and liabilites that reprice or are due within one year reprice or are due at the beginning of the
[RAQRCTIvE PRrods;

iy these is a paraliel shilt in the yield curde and o interest rates, and
{iml thess are no other changes Lo the partiobo

Actual changes n the Group's net inferest inoome resultng from increase or decnease 9 inteest fales may diffes
Tram the retults af thd senutivity analysic
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Risk management e
Liquidity risk

Lipuibelety #ik arises when the Group fals to satisly customers” demand for diawing down on maiuting labditles, new
loans ard reasonable fimances, or whan f fails to meet thest needs at a neomal eaq

In lina wath its liguidity risk management policies, the Group sets out and implements the princple of superitory
duhr wgiegation It ale puld in place & gosverning framewaik andir which the falsd, rnpﬂm.h"!llll. and mparting
lines of the Board &l Directors, Supervison, senad management, designated commuttees and relovant depatiments to
ehsure the e'fectiveness af the Rguidity risk management. The Graup & paudent in managing the riik, wiseh bister
suits its curterd developmant stage, Basically, the Group's axisting liquidity ral management policas and systems
el fegulMady recuiferments and itk own Management needs

The Grewp's liguldity nsk management (5 coordinated by Head Office with branches acting in concert. The Asset
and Liability Managemeni Department acls as the treasirer of the Group 5 In charge ol routine liquidity risk
rranagement The tregdurer € responuble for managing bouddity on a prudent basis under regulatory requirement,
anid conducting centralised lquidity management through quota managemenl, budget conteal, inifiative dehe
mranagement as well as internal fund transfer promp

The Group measures, monitars and idendilies bowdiey sk by thort-term reserves i weall as duration stroctures
and contingencies. 11 clowly mendor vanouws limi indicatons at regular misrvah, performs regular sires testing fo
judge whether it can addrets lquidity nesdy under extrerms circumatances. in addition, the Group drvwa wp liguidity
contingency plins and eonducty hquedidy conlmgency drills ta prepare for bgudity crisey

In the first halfl of 2015, the owerall market liquidity was mone selased, only appeared as periodic tightened phase
due 1o seasonad factors during the Sgang Fedtival. Despite Tomeign exchange expoiure continued to decline, urder
the guedance of the PEOC cutiing intemest rales in o tmely manner and reducing the open market meverse repurchase
rate, the market cutlook was expected by instiutions to be stablized on the funding side and the inter-bank
funding maintamed at relased level. The Group's liguiditg risk remained in 3 medium-low level. During the second
half pear, the FBOC monetary policy continued to put in mone weights, in the continuatien of lowering interest rates
and AMB depowt reserve rato (RARA), the PEOC reformed the depoit reserve apprasal system, and established the
nterast rate corridor, lead down the market medium-1erm and long-term mierest rate. The overall market liquidity
remaned neutral and relased. During the year end, stfected by MLF maturity, deposit deiation assessment and
seasonal facions influences, market Liquidity shghtly tluctuated, the Group made liquidity arrangements in advance 1o
ensure & smooth overall oparation of the Group

The Group had adopted vanous meawured 1o deal with the lquidity nik prafile Toe this year, 1o emure the smoath
operation of the bank's liquidity: (1} wblized FTP regulating mechamism 1o guide branches 1o sbworb the duration
and total armount of labdties, to balance the wurce of lunding and uiage of funding (2) wrengihened the s
and lability mansgemert af the bill business snd other related business, improved the matunty mismatch situation.
() earrsed aut short-term and long-teem iritiatiee labities in & Heoble manner, including the suance of interbank
deposis, cerificates of deposit, as well ay the use of central hank manetary palicy toals for financing, coodnation
o Nguidity and cost of habilsly, ergunng the Group's source of funding, (4) sieadly progressed in assets backed
secutitization, The total amount of assets backed securities issued in 2015 was FMBZ3,020 million, mclsdng
RMBT 200 million for mongages and RME 15820 million for credhi card recewvables for vehicle, 150 through proacive
fisk management, the Group deployed imestment and finencing strategy based on the fundamental of dynamic
torecasting of future cash flows, 1o reduce cost and inCrease revenue.
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Risk manageme Nt cconninyed;
Ligquidity risk fcontinusd
Analysts of the Group's sssels and Habilies by resadual matierity 5 a1 fallows
MHE
Aftor Aftet Alter
Tmomth 3 months 1 jear but
Repayable Within  but within  but within within After
ondermand | month 3 months 1 yea Syean Syears  Indefinite Total
Cash ant bakahces wilh central haak
ate N 118,184 - - - - - 856,158 4,142
#rsounts doe {rom banks and
othet francisl mattulion 11173 451,241 G1,TES 45 00 10,480 - T 91,196
Loars ahd adwantes 10 ouiamens
ote 10854 124,077 A1, 899 972 196 08 BOT 533,883 ILOIE 2739444
ivpalman bl (eds dill]
= Franoad st A1 Lar uaiun
thisugh pralil o joas
(ncludng desmvatiesd) - 1.975 mr 12925 1536 im 0,737 6,251
~ hyailable-forssle financial s - 12,234 11,847 49 19% 163 B 332 2,585 299,358
= Hechipematufity mwétmsnhi - 117 2,358 15006 106,212 218 206 12 151997
— Debt securtes cavulied &y
recevables - TE3 659 w002 125453 121,619 16,286 3 V6,064
Other sasety 11,588 d Bl 5435 10,580 2052 1,085 BiE1B 118,79
Brtal amaey 162,208 7,156 SST.046 0,250,734 1,041 837 B63, 153 01,803 3474978
Arsaunts dus 10 batiks and
gihet fmancis malitulion aTE 1% I an 146,806 247 988 22,805 3735 = 1,138,584
Deperans from custemess [Nobe (v 2,008,673 6, E01 208 04T 503543 57584 IR - 157169
Fariincisd hatelities ot far waloe
threugh geafit of los
irilading defmathey) 118 1,637 1,135 LE37 5,70 IER 1574 27,50
Dobl securtind Hiued - 1,008 b5, 655 55,056 17,257 12519 - 154,507
{ither akeldie 62,614 11,662 1,666 11,51 11,508 238 FRRET 121,629
Txtad lakslities 2454 563 701,242 514912 5631975 78 B 13 448 2789 3111230
{Sborilong positinn (2250 651 255 584 -I;J]!.! JHE BOG 12 aLT E3705 sarna 161,754
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Liquidity risk fcontinued)

FitLEd

1montk  3months 1 pear but

Aepayahls Within bt withim  bub wethin wihn Aler
ondemand | month 3 monthi 1 yraz b ypany Syean  Indelints Tneal
Canh and balarory with ceniral Bank
{Note (4 LT - - - - - SGABAT ER4 TR
Amounts do Fram basis and
ohr finanmal insitutona 48 171,078 AT 9 823 43 582 - poH 525,051
Leans and advancey. b0 custemon
(Nobe | 1532 118,304 IE8 4 aro w7 SIB480 427757 A3IMh 7448 754
tnewiimesty (Note (iel)
= Fiaanoal siiabi af e valoe
Etnugh profl or o
lingluding deryates) = 1% 11,048 1,540 15872 14% R LR
= dwlabiyfosaals Francul assts = 1548 e 18749 183455 5,863 1166 178,516
~ Hisd+ to-mmabunty invesiments = fH 3,163 15,147 & 102 161,m3 n 158418
= Diptn gecurint cliss:fied a9
reconibli - 33 693 41529 52,693 157 955 IT 837 5 408 75F
Crther oeets 1316 5,735 Bk 914 £ i 13,134 107 a1
Tectad riusts TTHAET a%7.043 530 1264017 AT fi55,758 13681 4,731R19
Amounty due ba beeks snd
ofher fenancial Inlitubena 453 419003 I 433 103 605 X6 TES 404 - Er03
Depatits fram curtomers [Mote [«)) 1618442 106 234 47082 6E1 507 157248 1,944 - 31304418
Fmantial |abil tes al far vaboe
shrough pradi or leas
(ineluidirg desvatioe) an 138 1611 670 1332 353 10275 3 ES
Diedrl secuntnrs haed - 553 nE a5 28510 an 8L - 166, 155
Crthar lubslaey DRI 15,641 17450 13,100 BO0S 1,193 13a7 103,522
Tekal kihibkiss 1 EE4 364 640,207 TIE1M BUAINT 438000 35,774 12512 a6 763
[Bhartlang patkion (1,452,957 (ISLISEF  (IRLER4)  IRS OO0 SESA0E filo EOL I 315 D60
Ul
U Fow Ll vealy cmitral Lk, the s wath e el N Fl{EESil ¥ degeoall imistve asil Daes balaiirs mamlsil wilh e
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Liquidity risk fcontimued

Xil Financial Statements

The falloweng teble provides én analysis of the contractual undistounted cah Tlow of the nen-dervatne Hinancial
asiets, Habilites and gress loan commitments of the Group as at the end of the reporting perod The Graup’s
expected eah flow on thess instrements may vary signilicansly fram this analyua
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Lig L.tlldh.}r risk fcontinued)
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Operational risk

Operatiohal risk arises from the direct and indirect loss due 1o technigue, procedute, infrastruciee and stafl
deficency, as well at othar dsks which have effect on operation, 'which includes legal nsk. But the sirateqee risk and
repulaton ok dare not incuded

Duanng the oporting penod, the Group confmued to enhance (kv operabional rik management By lurlher rmphoving
operational risk management framework and methodatogies, strengthening operational risk appraisel and
avsesment mechanmma, stepping up the identfication. evalustion and monitaring of apeatianal tidk in key aeas,
and subjecting operatonal risk 1o it economic capital management. Various key risk indicator were compliant with
thit Greups ik preletence iequiremedty

In face of challenges trom internal and externad operations and management, the Group will, based on its nsk
prefaence, contenie 1o upgrade iis risk management skills, stirengthen operfatioral msk mondonng and controls, as
weell s endeavour to prevent and reduce nperational nsk logses

Capital management

The chctives of the Grouph capital managermant ame to:

- Keep capital sdequacy ratios ot reasorable levels, satily capital-specilic regulalory provisions and palicy
reQuUFemEnts on an ohgoing bass, and mainian a solid capital base in support of its business expansion and
sirategic planning imolamentation for compaehensive and coosdenated and sustainable growth,

- Comply wath caprtal regultory mequirerents, perfosm procedures 1o azsess miermal copial sdequacy, opeiby
disdiose information related to l:.:lplt.n| managermert, tully cover o rsis and emsure safe ocoeration of the
onEE Qroup;

- Pul ih plece ah economse cepilal-centred banking salue mansgement sptem by lully applying vakous
thk-ipecific quantitative deliverables, snhance dechien-making processes and managemant  application
recpimed, strengihen capital restraint and capial incenive mechanisma, renlorce capabilives te facditate dien
pricing and decokon-making, and increase capilal deplayment efficlency; and

- Rearonably use | kinds of capital mstrurrents, comtinue 1o Upgrade capitsl strengths, improve capital
structifes, raie capital guality, lower capital coats, and ereate the bost retums to tharohalders
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Capital management fcontinued

The Group mansges |15 capital structure and sdjui |t based on the economae condition and the ik chatactenstacs
of iy aperatony. To maintan of adjust it capitsl structure, the Graup may medidy itd profit distribution paley, nsue
o repurchase shares, ofber tles-1 capital imtruments, eliqible tier-2 capital initruments, and canverlible debenunes
The Graup's managerment segulaly monitor capital adeguacy ratie undes an appioach regulated by CBRC. The
Grough and the Bank {ile required information to CBRC half-yearly and quarterly

The Gigup's capital adequacy ratio calculation covers the Bank and its subpdiaries. The Bank's coprlal sdequacy ratio
calculation cavers the Bank's all branches. As a1 31 Decernber 2015, the Group's senidisnes that were within the
EOpe ol cordaldated wtatements in ieigect af the c.ﬂfn!a| .ﬂ.ﬂwuﬂl‘;, rotie inchoded: WILE, CMBICHE, CMBELC and
TR

Since 1 lanuary 2013, the Group has calculated ils capital sdequacy ratio in accordance with the CBRC'
Adeenmtrative Measures on the Capilal ol Commercal Banks (Tnall and other relevant regulations. On 18 April
2014, the CORC approved the Bank to adept the advanced capitsl management approach. Wilkin the scope of
approval of the CHRC, the Bank could calcalate comporanion and Finanoa!l smstitutions risk expasure using the primary
internal rating-based approeach, retal risk exposire using the intemnal rating-based appeoach, market risk wang
the irtemnal model apotoach, and operational nsk wsing the standardised approach. At the same tme, the CBRC
implemented a transition period for commercial banki approved to use the advanced approach to caloulate capital
[uring the transition period, the commeraal banks should use both the abanced approach and other approaches 1o
caleulate capital adequacy ratios. and comply with minimum capital requirements. Durng the period, the Group has
comiplied with the capital reguirement set by the regulators,

The Group™s copital management locused on the capital sdeguacy ratio management The capital adequacy
ratio reflects the Group's capabulity of sound operations and rdk iewitng The Grouph capital sdequacy ratio
managemaent's abjective i1 to caelully determine capital adequacy o, & begally requaied by regulaton, aceording
1o ectwal nik prables ang with reference to capilad adequicy rahio fivers ol globally leading markel peers and the
(ahoiep’s aparating condiiom

The Group adopis the swenaro simulation and siress testing methods 1o forecast, plans and manages its capital
adequagy ratko with conslderations of factors such as strategic development planning, business expansion status,
and risk movement frends
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Risk management e
Use of derivatives

Derivatives include fesward, swap and opisae jransactions undertsken by the Group In the lafeign excharge and
intedest rate markets All af the Greup's derivative linancial instruments ane traded sved the counter market

The Group enters into mierest rate, currency and ather financal derivatne tramactions for treatury business and its
asiets and linbdibes management suspose. The Group's dervative finsncial instruments can be divided inta trading
darivative financial instruments, cash flow hedge financial matraments and derivative financial instruments managed
i eonguicion werthy fmancial irstfurnents dewgrated at fair value through piofit @ loid

The Group will choose appropnate bedging strategies and toals in light of the nsk prafile of interestfeschange rates
of its mssets and llabelities, as well a5 its analyses and judgement regarding future interest/exchange rate movernents.

The Gioup n exposed 1o risk when awrts or Labilibes. denominated foreign cumenCir. Such nuk can be offset
through the wie of foraard foreign eachange contracts ar formgn exchange option contracts

In cash {low hedge, the Group uses interest rale swaps as hedging mstruments 1o hedge the cath fiows aming from
the interest 1k of AME loans and Interbank assets portfolios.

The follwing tables peavede ar aralyin of the notonal amounts and the comesponding Tair walue of cervatives of
the Group by residus] maturity at she end ol the reporting period. The natiopal smounts of the dervatived mdicate
thit autslanding transaction wolume at the #nd of the neporting penod, ot fopresenlng amounts at ridk

373/406

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooood

285



286

54
)

China Merchants Bank Xli Financial Statemants
&nnual Report X015

Risk management oo

Use of derivatives icontinued)

k0
Hotional amounts with remaining life of Falr value
Betarcon Bebwoen
Within 3 monthe 1 year and  Mowre than
2 months  and 1 year 5 yearn Sysars Total Aisets Liabilities
Derivatives held for trading
Initermsad rale derivatooms
Inilmenst rate vwaps 256,954 B17.880 75,345 ags 1,150,588 465 492}
Currency derivatae
Spot 35,308 - - - 35,908 0 {17
Farwards 148,564 460,622 15,85 - T30 5.536 (4, 400)
Formign eschange swaps 133,163 133,294 2,687 - 268,150 3123 [1.5831
Qptions punchaved 27,518 18,238 Té - 46,482 634 -
Dplions wirtn s,  wam W =  WEs - W
460,034 632,339 13876 = 1,136,249 §.3:3 (6,973}
Qther dermates
Credit default swaps - a7 - - ar - 1
Equity options purchased & - - - B 5 -
Equity options written 56 - - - 56 - 1
120 L} - - 7 5 2
Cath Tlow hedge defivatives
Imbereal rate desneatives
Inleeat FalE viaps 1700 9,800 18,010 - 249,510 136 (14}
Derlvatived managed in
tanjuntlion with
financial indtruments
deslgrated af falr valus
thraugh peolit of lot
I greal fete defivalies
IriE4aa] $218 Fuiidpd 1.0y a&7 13,226 395 15,525 38 (37}
Currehiy dativiine
Fargign exchange swapd 1.325 1,409 2,863 - 5,507 L] (]
2362 2,276 16,089 395 21,122 a7 (o2}
Tatal 10,176 {7,575)

374/406

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooood



EDINETOOOO

o s =053 125
Oooooodo
China Marchants Bank Xl Financial Statements 287
Annual Repart 2015
Risk management foantinied)
Use of derivatives icontmued
Fril bl
Notonal amourts with remaining life of Fair value
Batamon Batwesn
Within Imonths  Lyearapd Mo than
Imonthe  and 1 joa 5 ypars 5§ ymary Tedal Aswoly Liab#dios
Derivatives held for trading
Ineresl rabe denvatives
Inbenest rate swag 161,828 1074643 19,9595 152 100,238 104 (2440)
Currency darivatives
Spot 3,019 - - - 10,018 B a3
Fonwaeds 285,300 HE A0 A6, 306 - 77310 TR (2, 142y
Formign enchange swaos 13217 ELALE] 13 - 18, TE? 139 (1,270
Optons purchasad 16,626 L E - - 121,508 1333 -
Optans writhen 11,331 % ] . - 18,152 . (3,365
451,555 485,075 50,:38 = 106872 5,802 (%570
her demvatees
Crdit cefault swaps - s 83 - BER 1 2y
Equity opdiors perchaied 53 ol 4 El 14 15 -
Equity opdiors written L - - - Fal - -
Bz Bad 17 36 1,039 16 (2
Cath flow hedge derivatives
lIntenetl rate denvatves
Wbl rale Dwiagd 6,300 13,540 29,510 - 40,350 143 (360}
Dherivcatives managed in
tanfunction with
Timancial instruments
deslgnated at fair value
thieugh prafit o las
Interedl rale detatives
Wleiedl a8 twiagd 124 515 o.an nr 1957 13 xa)
Cutrgncy dendatongs
Farelgn enchangs wweaot - 3 1,286 - 1629 17 a5}
124 BSE 13,227 nr 14, 5B6 oo 74)
Tral q9315 [T 244)
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Use of derivatives fontinued)

Cradit risk welghted amount

The cradif ridk wq.ighl,lld amounis M respect of thete dereativoi ane a1 fallowes Thase hmounlt hava takos Uhe
eftocts af bidatorad netting amangemanis into account

2015 2014

Credit risk welghied assets of counterparties
Imigrest rate derivatives 442 FAl
Currendy detivalives 4,205 3.003
rter derratives 3 ]
Credht walustion adjustment ik weighted assets 10,518 5.830
Tatal 15,168 g, 0an

Fiaie The ool n wnghind st i g ol doneoee e lealsied o scscdeue weilh Fe Sdenaiviime bpasres m Cagrisd of
Commymaecisl Banls (Tl iowed Oy CORC, (overing deliadt mb seghied sosb ol countspaciiey sed oedil velusion squstmeni ek weighaed
widln Th sstuniiil widfeil et slose appimwed Ly CI0C b Al FO1E wii cilalitm] Usrag the biitiiial §albinglidard appsadly, sl i
Fil -wmghied apenach b sinpde o csbodsir those nod sy hie 10 rke imeenal ssimg Bl snpcach

Fair value information

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets manly include cash, balances with cenral banks, balances and placements with banks
and other financial nstitutions, amounts held under resale agreements, loans and advances to cusiomeds and
IN¥EsTmEnts

Ewoepd for loant and advances and held-to-maturity investments, most of the finapcid amsets vall mature within |
year or have been already stated at famr value, and their carrying value spproxmate their fair volus,

Loans and advances are stated at amortised costs less alowances for impsirment loss (Node 19). Loans and sdvances
are mostly prced at floating rates chose to 1he PEOC rates and repriced at markel rates annually a1l least, and
impaisment allowance (1 made (o reducs the carrying amourt ol impared loans (o estimate the recoverable amount
Accardingly, the carrying value of loansy and advances are elose 1o the Tair vatue.

Held-to-matusity Investiments are stated a1 amortbed costs |eis impairment, and the faie value of listed debt
secusilioy closufiod ay hoid-lo-maturdy srvestments are diiclosed in Nate 21(e)
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54 Risk management cormme
{g) Fair value information [continued:

{n Financial assets fcontmued)

The catiying value, faif walue and fair walue Rierarchy al held-to-maturity investments not measuiod of daclowd al
fait value ane listed an below

The far valioe meawirements lor Lesel 1 are based on quoted price of foreign curreney bondd in actnee marked
eleased by Bloamberg. Far Level 2, the [atesi valuatan results released by Chana bond pnong system are used 1o
measure fair value of bonds denominated in ANME. The Level 2 category also intludes fareign currency bonds watheut
active guates price, which are measured by Bloomberg comprehensive valuation The Level 3 adopts expecied cash
flow waluation technigue 1o mesure lair value.

2015 2014
l:.arrlring Fair Carmping Fair
amount value Level 1 Lewal 2 Lowel 2 amaun valug
Held-to-moturity investments. 353,137 372,697 1,332 71,353 12 259,434 264,612

{iiy Financial liabilities

Financial lakdities mainly inclode deposits from customars, amounis due to banks and other financial institutions,
and delrts securities nsued by the Group, The carrying value of financial labilities approsimate their fair value at the
end of the reporting period of the year presented, ekcep! the financial labdities set out below

2015 4
Carrying Fabr Catrying Fair
amount value Level 1 Level 2 Lewel 3 armott wislug
Subordinated rotes isued _3'2.-5_1'! i:i}-'aﬂ - H:I;B-n - nili.'ﬂﬁ :ﬁ.aﬂ
Laarsg-termm diebit secutities
e 27,9595 2E,146 - 28,146 - 21,636 27,244
0514 62E26 - 6LB26 - 0037 60,196

55 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

In cetermining the camang amaunts of some assets and liahifities, the Group makes assumptions. for the effects
of uncertam fuiure events on the assats and lighilities at the end of the reporting period. These estimates involve
assumplions about cash flows and the discount rates used. The Group's estimates and assumptions are based an
hastorscal expenence and expactabons of future events and are revewed penodually. In addition o the assumptions
and estimathors of future avents, judgements are alio made during the process of applying the Group’s accounting

podicies
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Significant accounting estimates and judgements

{continued)
Impairment losses on loans and receivables

Loan portfalios are asiessed pencdecally to assess whether impalrment losses exist and the amounts of impairment
losses if they do. Obpective evidence for impairment indudes observable data indicating that there & a significant
decrease n the estimated future cash flows from an indovadual leans and receivables. Objective endence Tor
impadrment s descibed In accounting palicy 2inkil, The impairment loss ter o loans and recervables that s
Indiedisally evalusted for impaimment i3 the decrease in the estimated future cash flow of that loans and recaivalbles.
When loans and recebvables ae collectively evaluated for impairment, the estimate o based on historical loss
oxpersence Tor assets with credit risk characteristics similar 1o the leans and seccivables. Histoncal loss ecxperience is
adjusted on the bans of the relevant observable data that reflect current economic condiens. Management neviews
the methodology and assumptions wsed in estimating future cash llows regularly to reduce avy difference betwesn
It estimates and actual loss experance,

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

For avadab'oforsale hranoial aswts, a sagruficant or prolonged decline in far vadue bolow cos s considered o
be chjpctve evidonce of imgairmont ludgemend is equired when determining wheiher a deching ln far value hag
bpen mgnificant or prodonged. In making this jedgement, the Group conmeders hitoncal data on markat volatiliby
and hictoncal oy of 1ha SPHI‘IHZ financral agsots an wel as other factors, voch ay wsctor perffermands and Tinancial
information regarding the mwoiloe

Fair value of financial instruments

For & number ol financial inttrements, no quoted prices on an active markel exiil The faor value ter these financial
nstruments are edtablished by using valuation techrigues. These techniques include using recent arm's length
rrarker wwantactions, reference 1o the current Tair value of sirmdar instruments and discounted cath llew aralyiic and
oplion prioing madels The Groep hay eitablshed & process 1o ensuee thal valuation techniguer ame constrached
by quabitied pessonned 2nd ane validated and revieaned by perionned mdependent of the arsa That eonyucioed Ve
valuatesn technigues, Vahuation technigues e cenified before being implementad for valustion and are calibrated 1o
emwre that outputs reflect actual marke! comnditiony. Vakiation models established by the Group make the maxemum
use of market inputs and rely as little as posuble on the Group’s speafic data Hewwever, it should be noted that
some inputs, such as eredit and counterparty risk and nsk correlations, regurne management esiimatas Managemsant
estemates and assumplicns s reviewed petodically and are adjusted if necessary,

Held-to-maturity investments

Mon-derivative financial assets with fieed or determinable payments and Tized maturity are classified as
held-to-maturity investrmams if 1he Group has the intention and ability 1o hold tham until maturty. In evaluating
whether the mquirements 10 clossdy o financial asset ot held-to-maturity investmants are met, management makes
sigrificant judgaments, Faslure in correcily assrisig the Group's intenton and abdity 1o hobd spedific meveitments
until matunty may result in reclassification of the whole partfolio a5 svailable-for-sale financial asvets
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Significant accounting estimates and judgements
featimd)
Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of cestain fransactioni. The
Group caretuly evahsates tan implications of transactions and tan provisions ae set wp accordingly. The tan treatment
af wich transactions i reconsidered perindically te take inte account 2l changes in tax legisdations. Defesred tax
assets are recognised for ta losses not yet wed and tempotary deguchible ditterences. As those deferred tan assets
can only be recognised to the extént that it is probable that future taxable profit will be avalable against which the
wrised Tax credits can be utised, managements judgement & required fo assess the probabllity of future tasable
profits. Management’s assessment I3 constanily reviewed and adoitional deferred tax assets are recognised of 11
recomes probable that future taxable profits wall allow the defesred tax asset to be recowered

Defined benefit plan

Aciuarial awumptions am made n valuing fuiue penson obligatiom as st oot in Note 37 There 15 uncertamty
that these ssumphions will hold true in the hduee, They ans evieswed peiodscally ang are updated whers necesary.

Ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts

The estimation of the ultmate lisbility aming from dairs made under insurance contracts o one of the Group's
critical accounting estimates Estimates and padgements are contimually evaluated and based on hislorical expersence
and other factors, including expectations of lods events that haye been incurred but not reported (“TIENA"} 1o the
Group ai ol the end of the reparting period. The estirration of IBHRE claims i generally subject 1o a greater deghes
of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settiing dalms aleady notified 1o the Groun, where information
about the clam events o avallable. 1BMR claims may not Se apparent 1o the ingwsed until many years after the event
that gives e 1o the claim has happened.

[stimabon af the ultimate cost of certain lability claims can be a complex process. There are several sources ol
wrcortainty that nead 1o be coridered in the estimating of the liakility that the Groug will utimately pay fo wuch
claims. bn particular, the daims arising from the employees” componsation and othar lisbdity polces can be longer
i tail and ditficult to estimate. The Grousp hay sppoirted an mdepondent actuary to estmate the claim lsabilitos
iing established actuaria! mathodologies. The methodologies are statistical m nature and can be affected by vanous
factors. The mome signiticant facions that can atlect the mliabality of the liabdity estimation include jursprudence
that can broaden the intent and stope coverage of the protectiom offered in the maurance contracty miued by
the Group, the sxtent to which actual claim results differ from historical exporencs and the tme lag botween the
ocourmnce of The eyent and the report of such diaim o the Group

Pravisions

Thee Group oses jodgemant o aiseds whather tha Giroun has a present T8gal of constructive obligation a5 a result of
past events al gach financial reporting date, and |udgement i used to detesmine if it B prabable that an surilew of
reseurced emboying ecanamic bemefis will be reguired to sentle the obligation, and 1o detesmine a reliabie #4timate
of the amourt of the abligaton
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Material related-party transactions

Material connected person information

Thie Bank™s largest shareholder and s parent compary and the Bank's subnidiaries.

Froportioa Propartion of
ol the Bank  1he Compary the
Regiitered dmed and Tulhy e by upld by *tlaliomhip Legul
Company same  location  pald capial the Compiny the Bank  Busnesi withthe Bank  Legalform  represeniatie
(China Meharty  Bsijng VBT 3,750 million L HY « Tarpotaion shppeg  Thelagnt  Dmried Ll Eaningng
Girop (TMGH (Rate [B{D FNCy, WL wamholdesy oomgany
ad shmage, lewng, parerd
ruslectiengheiding  fompany
] facity, mgaar ared
ioriactng, Lie
apelng mahipre
arvich
China Meshardis  Baifng AW 300 meifion 13 4% = Turmpotaton, bildeg Tre Larginit et vieh Li Banong
Erieh) Mawgains Ve fp = repr e, hanholde e
Corgany Limawd tugply thain marsgenen temgany
CMENTL =] dninbytn, Seppng
SgEney e
CME lebrrabivesl g oeg 4D, D00 mifica = 100% Financial adeisory poricm Sedaidiony Limvted Tan by
Laptul H=dem =Ty
Comoraton
mited
(CRIBC D)
CME Franny Sharghai VG000 mion - 100% Frande ke Soindiry femited Livn Bakn
Legtirg Compsry Ty
Lmited (CMEFLTY
Wisglung Raed  Jiong [ty HIEDY,16) mficn = 100% Raviity etnidury Limited Taan g
Rreted PALE Ty
Ching Wmhartt.  Sherghes  INIEDID milen - 5% At Management fistruiany Lirvied Ll Hag
Furd =5 T

Minsgeners
o Lid (ChET

Muirt

HE - CWIG Doy, 0000 % ol B Rank 004 1O OO tvagh &5 pulnidiatieg

Im A the Rt shasshoider, CMANCL wihad mi e derechary ol CWIG, hidds 10.04% of ine Bark as ot 31 Deosrehes FOIS G104 17 54%0
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Material connected person information fcontnued

Or 28 Decenber 2015, thee Stale-owned Assels Supervision and Admimtralion Comimissean gl (he Slale Counc
{the “SASAC of the State Coundl™) iswed an appicval letter appreving that Sinotrend & C5C Heldings Co., Ltd
"Sinotrans & C50°) be sllocatad into CWMG at ol comideratien. On 24 February 2016, the Enterprne Property Reght
Registratken faem of Sinatrans & CSC was confirmed by the SASAC of the Stale Coureil, conlinmed that CMG i
registeted o the promoter af Sinotrand & CSC The shames af the Bank held by Sifotrant & C5C and its subsidlary
Wuhan Changgiang Shipping Campany (" Wuhan Chargjiang Shippirg*) are indirectly hald by CMG (the “Change in
Sha‘ehalding™), which lead ta an sggregate of over 10.00% of the tatal share capital of the Bank & hold by CMG,
with the completion ol changes in equity, CMG (neluding Sinatrans and Wiuhan Changjlang Shipping) can contral
Ihe actual shares of the & 1otal of 30.06%. |n sccoedance with the "Administrative Fules on Acquisibion of Listed
Campany® . inested can actually contial ever 30% af the voting rights af the listed enfity, will have the enntral of
The listed entity.

Unfulfilled adminmgirative piocedures of the acquiution; {a} The cancenliaton of coeraior camed by 1 AU ey
raquires review and realy from the Mindtry of Commeree, and & reply of “not prohibited” should be chiained (b)
Matters related 1o the change af magee shawhalders” holding stopamian cauled by the acquitition are wiyect to the
mowlew of CHRC e} ©WG should apply o the Ching Securities Requlatory Commisuon for an esemplion from the
obligatsn 1o make & general eller

The change of the registered capital of eadh company

Name of related party 2015 2014
CMG RMBYZ, 750,000,000 RBABY Y, 550,000,000
CMSNLL RMIES, 200,000,000 RMES, 300,000,000
CREICHLD HED, 000,000,000 HED, 000,000,
CMAFLC RMABE, 000,000,000 RMBEG, 000, 000,03
WLB HED1, 160,950,575 HED, 180,950,575
CHIFM RMB2 10,000,000 i 10,000,000

The change of propartian of the Bank held by the largest sharcholder and the partion of the subsidiaries
held by the Bank

The dack heid by
the gest hareholder The kil held by the Bark

CWGNCL. CHEKHD (4 - 120N W (40|
T HE W M N WD % AE N

&3 1 iy TS LRAIE W 0ot 100 =.mm:m' R LES0E W 50008 S
Chavge (ol T L - - - -

I dBembe S LISANIT  (A0L LOMACLOOC 000D 4S0N0INN0 'GOD0 1 IGSSEEIS  fodm HEs0me 800
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Material related-party transactions e

Transaction terms and conditions

Iit mach year, the Group entered into transactions wath relsted parties o the ondnary couise of its banking buiiness
Including lending, investment, depodil, securities tading, agency sendces, trusl services, and off-bafance shest
transactioni. Thse opinion af the directors b that the Group's matesal rélated-panty ramsacttons were 4l entered Into
naiieal cormerckal tems. The banking rancachors wese priced af the madket rates al each time of transactson
Imteret rates on loans and depoaits are required to be el in accordance with the following berchmark rates set by
the PFEOC

2015 2014
Short-term dpans 4.35% p.a. S60% pa
Madium to lang-term laans 4. 75% 1o 4.90% pa. 6.00% 126 15% pa
Bemand depoiits 0.35% p.a. O3IE% pa
Tims dopaotity 1.10% 10 2.75% pa 2 35% 1o A00% pa

There were no individually assessed allowanaes for impasment |osses made aganst loans and advances granted fo
related partes during the year

Shareholders and their related companies

Thie Bank™ larges shamwebolder CRMENCL and ity related companies hold 259 97% (2014, 20,00%) shares ol e Bani,
at al 31 Decambiet 2015 Garneng them 13 08% shanes 3 bwid by CMSNCL (2074; 12 54%]). The Group's (ransactions.
and balamoes with CMSNCL end its related companies ane disclosed oy follows

) 2015 2014
On-balance sheet!
= Loans sndd advanoes 10 cusiomers 5124 4 365
= Invastments 11,345 5.282
- Depouts from cusiomen 119679 A0 038
Off-balance sheet:
= rayocable guarantees 1.849 1.23T7
=~ Wravocabile lellery of wedit 893 1 166
= Bills of acceplances 58 aF
Irlorsdt incama ADG JiE
Irterist eapene 1,151 4BT
Mot fee and commitson incame SE0 175
Ciiher et ineome 7 B
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Companies controlled by directors and supervisors other than those under Note

56(c) above
2015 2014
Drn-balance sheat:

- Loans and aovances 1o customers 6,110 5,330

= Irvestments 1,425 2,149

= Dppowty from customerns 10,929 10,454
Off-batance shoer:

- Irrvacable guarantess 1,076 1,320
Interest incoma 220 200
Intarest expense mar 546
Mot fee and commission income 204 144
Dthes mai income 1 3
Associates and joint ventures other than those under Note 56{(c) above

2015 2014
Oribalance shest:

= Loans and advances 10 customers 5 !

- Beposits from customeds 442 10
Inbareal e pinie 6 ]
Mt Tew and comimmslan indome 454 349
Other shareholders helding more than 5% shares

2015 O
On-balance shest

— Irvestments 1,100 L0100

- Deposite drom customess 10,287 3,520
Ofi-balance shest

= Irrevocabls guarantses 6,000 6,000
Intovesl incoms 9 L7
Intoreil sxporme 20 13
Nat Tee and commniion incams 915 n
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Material related-party transactions commes

Subsidiaries
2015 2004
Cre-balance theet
= Balances with banks and other financial institutions 5,588 2,438
= Macements with banks and other financial institutions 28,102 29826
= Loans and advances 1o customen 315 o
frrepstmients 440 440
- Doposits from banks and other finangial institutions 13,497 18,688
= Plagmments from banks and ather fmancial Rstitutons L E] 164
= Deposits from cuslomens 1.657 1.374
OH-balante sheet
= brevocable guarantees 3,269 nr
= Bifls of acceptances - 1mz
Interest income n 661
Inlsrest expenie 426 354
Met fes and commission 1,494 BES
Gther net income [4) 2k

Any dignificant balances and traniactrons betwesn the Bank and (ts subskhiaries have been offset in the consalidated

ferancisl statementi

Key management personnel

Eey management parsonnel are those persens having authority and responsshility fer planning, directing and
controlling the acteaties of the Group, diractly or indirectiy, inclhieling directars, suparvisen and executive oflicers

2015 2004

RME D0D Rnt0"000

(Mate 8)

Salaries and other amaluments 46,236 42,534
Miscrethonary bomeses (Mote BOH - 14,751
Share-hased pagmont 0,556 15,160
Contritutions to defined contribution setisement scheries 5475 5427
61,267 7 Beil

The abowe shane-based poyments meprosent the estimated fadr value of the vhare apperecalien righls granied (NRole
Fitaituh to snior management under thir Bank's H share Apprecation Rights Scheme, The far value i measured by
using the Black-Scholes model and according to the aocountimg pohcy set out in Nate Jiuldil, and the amounti have
been charged 1o the comolidated statement of prafit or fovs and other comprehimave income. As the share options
iy expine without biing evercised, the directars comidet the amounty disclosed are not representative of aciual

cash ligsars recenied or 1o be received by wniar managermen
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Material related-party transactions e

Annuity scheme

Apart from the chbigation fof delined contributions to the annuity scheme and normal banking transactions, no
othér transacliong were conducled betwesn the Group and the annuity schems for the years ended 31 Decembe:
2015 amd 31 Decernleer 2074

Non-controlling interests

Mon-tontrollng intedests repeesent the mierests that the Group does nat hold in the non-whally cwmned subsidianes.
Ihere s no subsidiary of the Group which has matenal non-cantralimg interests dunng the reporting penod

Transfer of financial assets

The Group enters into transactions in the normal course of business by which it transfers recognised fnancial assets
to third parties or 1o specsl purpose rusts. in some cases whese these transferss may give rse 1o Tull or parial
derecogrition of the financal assets concerned. in other casss whee the transferred ausets do not gualily for
carecoqnition a5 the Group has retaned wubstantially a8 the ks and rewards of these asets, the Group continued
1o recognize the transferned assets

Securitisation of credit aszen

The Growp selis the credit assets 1o special puiposs trust, and then the wpecial purpoie tnmt ssues the assety backed
wecurities fo investons.

The Groups book valkee of sefusipied credi] astels on frantler day |5 EMBAT 565 million lof the year ended 31
Decembor 2015 The asaet valug o sergd tranches ol secuntitation of credot asigly « EMEESE milon a1 Groud
leuel, The Hsel value of subiardinaled ranched of secuhnisation o credit i4ets i RMB TS imillan &1 Grogep beyvel
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Interests in unconsolidated structured entities
Interest in the structured entities sponsored by third party institutions

The Group holds an interest in some structuted entities spontored by thind party institutions Vsough investments in
the noles msuwed by these structured enatitied, Such structured eafities incluge wealth management praduets, asset
mansgement schemes, trust beneficiary rights, assets backed securites and investrments o funds, and the Group
doet not eonsalidate these structured enatities. The ndture and puspase af these structured entites ale 1o generate
fees fram mahaging assen on behall af investors and aee financed thiough the e of notes to ivveston.

The fullmwng tatile seti cul an analyas of the carrying amounty ol intereats held by the Group ad at 31 Decemiser
2015 and 31 Recember 2004 m the struttured entities sponscred by third party institutsons and an anabysls of the
lari it o the tatemant of financial potithen as at 31 Decembes 2015 s 31 Décimber 2014 b wwhich aitéts ara
recognied telating to the Group's Intereits in structsred entities spontored by thend parties:

2015
B Em?lnu amaiunt
Amounts  Avallable- Debt
held under for-sile Held-te-  sedurities
resabe  finapelal | maturity elassified & Maximum
agreements Aset Inﬂnm_um muh.ll_:lu ?‘p_ul eagamire
Wealth management products - - - 300 1] 300
Aget management whemes 11,381 - - 606,424 617,805 617,805
Trumt bameficiary sights 10,693 - - 067 L] &A, 760
Asmet baced securiies - FAPE] 1673 118 5,563 5,563
Imesment in funcs - ™ : - W wm
22074 3,785 672 684,509 T340 EAE IR
2014
Cartying smount
Amaunt Avalablp. Dt
held yrider fneale Held-tos wRouribe
resale firancial maturity  clnaibied s Manmum
agregments vl matments mienable Total o
‘Weealth managomaont products - - - 140 G, 140 &, 140
st Managoment wirme 45 487 - - 247,484 F92 976 192 976
Trust bonaficiany nghts £3 482 - - 142,038 175,532 175,522
Anent bt eeruritios - 2,135 1,367 - 3,507 1,507
Iveitmiens e fundy - 7 - - Nz ER )
108,976 2452 1,367 AES, BED 478,457 4TR AT

The mazimum siposures held by the Grobp in the subordinated tranches of assets backed securities and irvestmenty
im furds are the fakr value of the assets at the reporting date The maomum eposures in the wealth managemsant
products. assel management schemes. trust beneficiary nghts. seqior tranches of assets badded secunties are the
amorfised cost of the assets hedd by the Group at the reporting date in accordance with the kne item: of these
assats recognised in the statement ol Tinancial positions.
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Interests in unconsolidated structured entities o
Interest in the unconsolidated structured entities sponsored by the Group

The unconselldated struciured entities sponsored by the Group include non-principal- guarantesd wealth
maragernent praducts. The nature and purpote of theie sructured entied are to generate fess from managing
asiets on behalf of investars. These structured entithes are lnanced thraugh the sue of investment preducis to
investors. Interest held by the Graup ineludes fees charged an management séndces prouided

As at 31 Decembor 3015, the amowunt of the wnconsoldated nnn-prln::pnl-gunranbﬂfd weallth managomeni
products, which aim soonioned by the Gisup, it RMEY E20.604 millian (2014: AMERZL 473 mellionk

As at 31 December 2015, the balance of reverse repuschase transacisons and money market placement between
the Group and its non-principal-quataniesd wealth management products, which are sponsored by the Group, i
RIMB208.1 50 million (2014° AMBI17,333 milllen) and RMBS, 723 milllon (2014 RMBT 1,270 mallion) respectively, The
above transactions wiere made in accordance with normal business tesms and condithons

Dunng the year of 2615, the amount of fee and commisuon ncome recewved from such category of
non-principal-guaranteed Wwealth management produdct by the Group i BMET 128 mdlion 2014: RMBS, 373 miflionk

The total amount of non-principal-guararteed wealth management products msued by the Group after 1 lanuary
2015 with a maturity date before 31 Dacember 2015 was RNVB2 622,189 mdlion (2014] AME2 420,525 milllon),
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2015 Ian4
{Resiated)

Aazets
Caih 13,783 14,200
Precious medals 16,0059 15178
Balinces wilh cendral bank 543,218 830,661
Halances with barks snc other finandial (netifutians 55,927 47,015
Platements wilh bankt and ather finandial iaatitatian. 102,524 137 B4
Armaunds hald undes resale agresments 342 928 343,955
Ladid and sthvanded 16 CUSLSMEE 2,506,618 23231388
|FeErEt recenable 23,648 2241
Feraniid asiels 4l lair valis [|1'ﬂug|1 getealil o lads 54,960 37218
Denvatioe linancial maeis Sa07 B.346
Avmlabile-farsale naneal suseti 276,845 262 947
Held-to-malurity fnvesiments 151,704 254,708
Debl wecarities elatifed & recolvabled 715,864 408 504
Irvestmenis in subsdianes A 664 39 _Hibd
litmrel if jEint vnlures 1,341 [.22%
Prapery st equlpment 24,091 73510
lipstimenl prapeitied 535 581
Imtangible assets 2,595 2,179
Delerred fax Fisems 15,626 B.967
Qithir ansels 9,388 434
Total awsets 5,208,037 4481115
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The Bank's statement of financial position e

Rote 2015 2014
eitated)
Liabilities
Darhtranng {ram contral bank 62,600 20,000
Depaiits feorm banks and ather financial indtiiutions TOZ BR2 TO0,042
Macomanti ligm banks and athes linancial tnatulion 112,659 40,058
Ampunts sold ender repurchase agresments 185,285 BB, 075
Dupodts frorm cusbamets 3,421,403 3958, 745
Intereil payable 37,559 43,873
Financial labadities @1 Tair vilee lhrbug.h peall af ladd 19, 7RG 12,929
Darivalive financia babsldies 7,084 Q. 766
Dbt weeurities istued 235 B54 Bd, 559
flaries and welfane payable 5,363 5367
Tax payable 12,100 11,105
Dther habilitaes 53441 #1841
Total liabilities 4,855,590 4,179,864
Equity 481a)
Share capital 25220 35,220
Capital resarve 76681 TE,E81
Investment mvaluation resens 5,769 1.673
Hadging resemne 241 1163)
Surplus miarve 34,0009 18,650
Ragulatory general resenve 63528 53,2048
Rotainod profits 128,791 109,043
Praposed prabit appropristions 17,402 16 857
Exchangs resorvn = 2
Total equity 352,041 NN
Total equity and liabilities 5,208,037 AART 15

Approved and authonzed for issue by the Board of Drectors on 30 March 2016

Li luanhang Tian Huiyu Coampany Chop
Direrioe Durectar

389/406

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000(E05986)
Oooooood

o



302

61

62

63

China Morchants Bank Xl Financial Statements
Annual Report 2015

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2015

Up to the date of ssue of the financial statements, the LASE has issued the following amendments, new standards
and inteqpeetatsens which ane nob yel eflective for the yeat ended 37 December 2005 and which have not besn
adopted in thess Tinancial statermenty

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

IFRS 9, Financial imitruments | Jamuary 2018
|FRS 15, Revenue lrom Contracts wilh Cosfomens 1 lanuary 01T

5o far the Group has concluded that the adoption of other standards 5 unlikely 1o hawve a significant Impact on s
operating resdts and linancial position, except for FRS 9 “Financial instiuments®. Since the Group is in the process
of making an assesEmem on gverall impact of IFRS 9, the Group carmot quaniify the mpact on its operatng remilis
and financial position

Non-adjusting events after the reporting period

Save as otherwie drclosed in Note 22, Note 46{b} and Hate 560a), the Group has no ugnficant post reporting date
event iubieguent 1o the end of the mporting period 82 at the date of approval 19 the financial statements

Comparative figures
Duting the financiel year, the Bank hes reclassfliod the credit cord holdes sstaimesn moome from commission

revenue 1o nteredt revenue, and has adjusted the comesponding cantemporary comparison figues

In 2015, CHRC reclassdied the National Development Bank {rom commemial banks and othes financial institutons 1o
palicy Banks, the couresponding investiments are reclassified, comparative figutes in Nate 21 has been ddjusted

Equity listed m the Rank sstement of financial pasition (Nate 600 i restated for the eary adopiion of the
Armendments 1o WS I “heparate Funancial Statements — Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements™ [Note
3]
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
13.05 13.77 17.31 19.78 20.37
11.94 12.07 13.89 16.39 18.55
12.34 12.65 15.80 17.23 19.35
12.33 13.69 16.74 19.47 18.56
100
2015 2015 2015 2015 10 2015 11 2015 12
20.25 20.33 18.99 19.07 19.37 19.26
19.67 18.55 18.70 18.73 19.06 18.55
20.08 19.53 18.87 18.91 19.23 18.87
100
16.18 2016 13

100
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Independent auditor’' s report to the shareholders of
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd

(ajoint stock company incorporated in the People’ s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd (the “Bank”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 151 to 317 which comprise the consolidated
and Bank statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated and
Bank statements of changesin equity and the  consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and asummary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with International Financia Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financia statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financia
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Independent auditor’' s report to the shareholders of
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd (continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Bank and of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

/s KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince's Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

18 March 2015
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd

(ajoint stock company incorporated in the People’' s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd (the “Bank”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 164 to 302 which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statements of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with International Financia Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s interna control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financia
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd (continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financia statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2015, and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

/s KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince's Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2016
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